
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2020 

WORK SESSION & REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

5:30 PM 
 

 

EnterTextHere 

Space to Create – Work Session  

Roll Call 
Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 
Agenda Approval 

Announcements 
Announcements 

Trustee Appointment – Carolyn Diehl Oath of Office 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
1. Visitors & Guests 

Consent Agenda 
2. Amended Minutes – November 18, 2019 

Regular Minutes – January 14, 2020 

Mayor’s Report 
3. Mayor’s Report 

4. Committee Appointments 

Staff Reports 
5. Administrator’s Report 

Public Works 

Police Report 

Treasurer’s Report 

Disbursements 
6. Treasurer’s Report 

7. Disbursements 

Unfinished Business 
8. USDA Loan Refinance – Continued  

New Business 
9. Pickin In The Park – Rob Miller 

10. Western Slope Conservation Center – 2020 Riverpark Project Updates 

11. Space to Create – Request for Board of Trustees Commit a Town Owned Parcel for Housing  

12. Discussion Regarding Dogs at Large 

13. Discussion Regarding the Creation of a Municipal Water Committee 

14. Discussion of Proposed Language Amending Municipal Code Chapter 18 – Temporary Signs – As 

provided by Trustee Pattison 

15. Discussion of Proposed Language Amending Municipal Code Chapter 2 – Elections – As provided by 

Trustee Pattison 

Committee Reports 

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

16. Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

17. Governmental Affairs & Public Safety – Priority List 

18. Space 2 Create 

19. Tree Board 

Executive Session 
20. West Fourth Street Town Lot 

21. Clark Alley Sewer Line Project 

Adjournment 
22. Adjournment 

 

  

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

3



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more than one 

of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the announcement 

of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into executive session, 

there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

  

4



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Space to Create – Work Session  

Summary:  

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

5



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

6



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Agenda Approval 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

7



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Announcements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

8



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Trustee Appointment – Carolyn Diehl Oath of Office 

Summary:  

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

9



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Visitors & Guests 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

10

1.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Amended Minutes – November 18, 2019 

Regular Minutes – January 14, 2020 

Summary:  

Amended minutes from November 18, 2019 – adding the motion to place water committee 

discussion on the agenda. 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

11

2.



 

 

  

NOVEMBER 18, 2019, SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Special Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

November 18, 2019 
 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 
1. Roll Call 

 PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

       Trustee Dave Knutson 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

 Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout - arrived at 5:01 PM. 

 

The Regular Town Board Meeting held Tuesday, November 18, 2019, was called to order at 5:00 

PM by Mayor Charles Stewart, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

Approval of Agenda 
2. Agenda Approval 

      

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Bachran. 

Voting Yea: Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger. Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, 

Trustee Bachran. Motion carries. 

 

Unfinished Business 

 

1. The continued budget of 2020 - no comments 

 

 

2. Ordinance 2019-12 Sewer rates 

 

Included in the packer was the draft ordinance 2019-12 regarding sewer rates. Notes from 

staff were included in the summary to consider the topic regarding billing for wastewater 

based on the water consumption of the customer. Currently, the town does not charge for 

this service. 

 

Administrator/Town Clerk Ferguson stated only change to the draft ordinance was the 

reduction of the rate increase to ($4) four dollars from ($5) five dollars.  

 

Trustee Bear was not in favor of the ($4) four-dollar increase. Trustee Knutson is in 

support of the ($4) four dollar increase to the sewer rate. 

 

Motion to modify the rate increase to ($1) one dollar across the board.  

Motion made by Trustee Bear. The motion failed due to a lack of a second. 

 

Motion to increase rate to nearest ($1) one dollar across-the-board and raise stand by fees 

to regular rates. Motion made by Trustee Pattison seconded by Trustee Bear. Motion 

failed.  

 

Motion to adopt Ordinance 2019-12 sewer rate charges as presented. Motion made 

Trustee Bachran seconded Trustee Knutson. Voting Yay: Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Knutson, Trustee Budinger, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. Voting Nay: Trustee Pattison, 

Trustee Bear. Motion Carries. 

 

12

2.



 

 

  

NOVEMBER 18, 2019, SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

3. Ordinance 2019-17 - Garbage Rates 

  

 Included in the packet was the draft ordinance 2019-17 garbage rates. Staff recommends 

single can rate increase by ($1) one dollar, the other rates will be as presented in the ordinance 

2019-17. 

 

Trustee Bear was not in favor of raising trash fees. Discussion ensued regarding the increase of 

tipping fees by county and the cost of maintenance of the new trash truck.  

 

Discussion Points: 

● Spring clean - extra trash fee 

● Reserve ending amount  

● Larger communities have lower trash rates vs. Smaller communities 

 

Public Comment: 

 

Thomas Markle questioned the cost of new truck maintenance. 

Erica McCarney stated that larger communities pay less for trash. 

Suzanne Watson stated that having roll off dumpsters during spring clean is costly to the town. 

Lulu Volkhousen stated a way to have the option to opt-out of trash service. 

 

Administrator/Town Clerk Ferguson stated the board of trustees has the option to rewrite the 

garbage ordinance. 

  

Motion to adopt Ordinance 2019-17 garbage rate. Motion made by Trustee Budinger seconded 

by Trustee Bachran. Voting Yay: Trustee Budinger. Voting Nay: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, 

Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. Motion failed with five nays, one 

aye. 

 

4. Resolution 2019-18- Water Rate 

  

Included was the draft resolution 2019-18 water rate. Discussion ensued regarding the proposed 

water rate and the new tier rate. No changes made to the draft resolution 2019-18 

 

Trustee Bachran commented on the new tier rates. As a result, water usage will decrease. 

Therefore, some customers will have a lower water usage bill.  

 

Discussion ensued on the water rates regarding the in town and out of town rates Trustee Bear 

was not in favor of both in/out of town rates being different.   

 

Public concerns regarding the resolution 2019-18 water rate and charges. 

 Hardship for those on a fixed to low income 

 Water company's hardship with the state-mandated cost for water testing 

 Water companies - form one water district – water companies could purchase the 

infrastructure at a high cost or consolidate into on whole company.  

  Citizens concerned with water usage cost with new rate tiers  

 Mayor Stewart stated the water system is operated as a whole for services for in/out of 

town water. 

 Higher rates would affect the business cost to go up. 

 

 Motion to adopt resolution 2019-18 water rate and charges. Motion made by Trustee Bachran 

seconded by Trustee Budinger. 

 

Main motion to amend in/out of town base rate increase of $2.45 be the same for both. Motion 

made by Trustee Bear seconded Trustee Knutson. Voting Yay: Trustee Bear, Trustee Knutson. 

Voting Nay: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Pattison, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. 

Motion failed with 4 Nays and 2 ayes. 

 

 

13

2.



 

 

  

NOVEMBER 18, 2019, SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Motion to adopt resolution 2019-18 water rate and charges. Motion made by Trustee 

Budinger seconded by Trustee Bachran. Voting Yay: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison, Trustee Bear, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. Motion 

carries. 

 

Motion for a 5-minute recess. Motion made by Trustee Bachran seconded Mayor Pro-

Tem Bookout. Voting Yay: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee 

Pattison, Trustee Bear, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. Motion carries. 

The meeting resumed at 7:35 PM. 

 

 

5. Establishing Utility Relief 

 

Discussion ensued regarding (LEAP) Low Income Energy Assistance Program. Staff is 

requesting that the Board allow town staff to establish and implement a program to offer 

relief on customers water and sewer base rates. 

 

Discussion Points: 

 Winter relief program months November – April 

 Interim Administrator Ferguson contacted communities who use LEAP 

 Cedaredge uses LEAP – currently, 80 people applied 

 Funding – no other financing will be coming in 

 LEAP vouchers 

 LEAP is household-based not individual 

 

Motion that Administrator/Town Clerk Ferguson works with Town Attorney Nerlin on a 

resolution for the utility relief program. Motion made by Trustee Bachran seconded by 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. 

 

Main motion amended to add water and sewer in the resolution for utility relief. Amended 

motion made by Trustee Knutson seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. Voting Yay: Trustee 

Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison, Trustee Bear, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Bookout. Motion carries. 

 

Motion by Trustee Pattison, seconded by Trustee Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout to add discussion 

of creating a water committee on the agenda for next meeting. 

 

Main motion modified to add discussion of creating a water committee on the agenda for the 

second meeting in January 2020. Voting Yay: Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee 

Knutson, Trustee Pattison, Trustee Bear, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. Motion carries. 

 

Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn. 

Motion made by Trustee Bachran, Seconded by Trustee Budinger. 

Voting Yea:  Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Pattison, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. 

Adjourned at: 7:58 PM  

  

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

14

2.



 
  

JANUARY 14, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

 Regular Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

January 14, 2020 

 

 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

The Regular Board Meeting held Tuesday, January 14, 2020, was called to order at 6:31 PM by 

Mayor Charles Stewart, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll Call: 

Board members present were as follows: 
 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Bachran 

Trustee Budinger 

Trustee Knuston 

Trustee Pattison 

 

Absent board members were as follows: 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout 

 

Town Staff present were as follows: 

 

Administrator Corinne Ferguson 

Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

 

A quorum was present, and Mayor Stewart proceeded with the meeting. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, seconded by Trustee Budinger to approve the agenda. Voting aye: 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

Announcements 

 

2019 Christmas Light Contest Winners 

 

Mayor Stewart welcomed everyone back from the holidays and announced the 2019 Christmas 

light winners. 

  

1st place - $75.00 - Kendall/Lage family - North Fork Avenue. 

2nd place - $50.00 - Husted family - Clark Avenue. 

3rd place - $25.00 - Mundy family - 4th Street. 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Minutes - Regular Board Minutes, December 10, 2019. 

Special Event Liquor License - Edesia Kitchen - Kids Pasta Project. 

 

Trustee Pattison recused herself from regular December 10, 2019 minutes. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bachran, seconded by Trustee Knutson to approve the consent agenda as 

presented. Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Knutson. 

 

 

 

15

2.



 
  

JANUARY 14, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

Mayor’s Report 

Recognition of Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. 

Procedure for Filling Vacant Trustee Seat. 

 

Mayor Stewart signed Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout’s certificate of recognition for her service. 

 

Mayor Stewart read staff recommendations in regard to filling vacant trustee seat via regular 

Municipal Election April 07, 2020. 

 

Discussion Points: 

● An appointed trustee will serve a short time period on the Board of Trustees. 

● Fill vacant trustee seat on January 28, 2020. 

● All interested candidates wanting to serve on the board of trustees for the next term will 

need to submit a petition. 

● The deadline to return the petition is January 28, 2020. 

 

Trustee Pattison is in favor of appointing a new trustee to serve a short time period. 

Trustee Bachran is in favor of filling vacant trustee seat via the Municipal Elections April 07, 

2020. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bachran, seconded by Trustee Knutson to delay the decision of filling vacant 

trustee seat at the next regular board meeting. 

 

Trustee Bear stated if the prior applicant Carolyn Diehl was still interested in serving on the 

Board of Trustees. 

 

Public Comment: 

 

Prior applicant Carolyn Diehl stated she is still interested in serving for a short time period on the 

board of trustees. 

 

Main Motion Withdrawn by Trustee Bachran. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, seconded by Trustee Knutson to appoint a new trustee at the next 

regular board meeting, January 28, 2020, effective February 11, 2020. Unless Mayor Pro-Tem 

Bookout resigns earlier. Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Pattison. 

 

Mayor Stewart stated the appointment of the new Mayor Pro-Tem to be on agenda for the regular 

board meeting held on January 28, 2020. 

 

 

Staff Reports 

 

Administrators Report 

 

Administrator Ferguson discussed the assessment of precarious trees and sidewalks in town for 

the 2020 year and discussed that the Municipal Election April 07, 2020 petition packet deadline 

is January 28, 2020, and a calendar of important dates was included in the packet. The monthly 

energy production report for Paonia Town Hall was in the packet. 

 

Trustee Bachran thanked Administrator Ferguson for having public works clear up the ice on the 

street in front of Town Hall. 

  

Public Comment: 

Suzanne Watson would like to see a list of the assessed trees. 

 

Administrator Ferguson stated that per board approval, a notice is sent out to homeowners letting 

them know in advance when the tree will be cut down. 

 

16

2.



 
  

JANUARY 14, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Public Works Report 

● January 21, 2020, State engineer coming to look at the computer program for the sewer 

plant. 

● Continue to work on ice and snow buildup. 

● Street plowing schedule in the works. 

● Two employees on call for middle of night snow plowing. 

 

Discussion ensued by Public Works Travis Loberg asking the board to consider reallocating the 

budget monies for the mini-truck purchase in exchange to purchase a generator for the water and 

sewer plants the cost of the generator is $10,000. 

 

Administrator Ferguson is in favor of reallocating the fund for the purchase of a generator for the 

water and sewer plants.  

 

Trustee Bear is in favor of purchasing a generator. In regard to that Trustee Bear recommends 

that Public works Director Loberg present information on the generator before approving the 

reallocation of funds. 

 

Trustee Knutson and Trustee Pattison would like to have more information on the generator and 

recommend delaying the decision of the purchase until the next regular board meeting  

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, seconded by Trustee Bachran to continue the discussion of the purchase 

of a generator for the next regular board meeting on January 28, 2020. Voting aye: Trustee Bear, 

Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 
 

Public Comment: 

● 3rd Street and Lamborn needs sanding 

● Trustee Knutson stated Vista Drive needs sanding at the stop sign. 

● The side street off of 3rd Street is icy. 

 

Police Report 

 

Chief Ferguson informed the Board of Trustees the electric car was purchased from a company 

named WANCO. Paonia Police blotter was included in the packet. 

 

Chief Ferguson informed the Board of Trustees wanting to bring back the Drug Abuse 

Resistance Education (D.A.R.E) program to the Delta County Schools – Paonia area. The SRO 

officer will need to go for training in the state of Utah and get certified to start the D.A.R.E 

program.  

 

Treasurer’s Report 

  

Treasurer King informed the board the payroll and disbursements were reviewed. 2020 Budget 

was accepted by and is on file with the State. November 2019 budget to actual spreadsheets were 

included in the packet. 

 

USDA Loan Refinance 

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart regarding the USDA loan refinance. Finance Officer Cindy 

Jones recommended approval of the USDA loan refinance. Finance officer Cindy Jones has been 

in contact with a USDA loan officer who is willing to do a presentation for the Board of 

Trustees. 

 

Mayor Stewart informed that discussion of the USDA loan refinance and the presentation to be 

on agenda for the regular board meeting held January 28, 2020. 

 

 

Disbursements 

December 2019 Final Disbursements Acceptance 

 

17

2.



 
  

JANUARY 14, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

Final December 2019 and January 2020 disbursement reports and spreadsheets were included in 

the packet. 

 

Motion by Trustee Budinger, seconded by Trustee Knutson to approve December 2019 final 

disbursements as presented. Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

Motion by Trustee Budinger, seconded by Trustee Knutson to approve January 2020 

disbursements as presented. Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

Unfinished Business 
 

Tree Board Appointment 

 

Mayor Stewart announced that there was a seat vacancy on the Tree Board and two candidates 

have submitted letters of interest to serve on the Tree Board. Mayor Stewart welcomed the two 

interested candidates to introduce themselves to the Board of Trustees. 

 

Greg Hottinger and Mark Newland were the two candidates interested in the vacancy seat of the 

Tree Board and addressed the Board of Trustees with their interests. Mr. Hottinger’s and Mr. 

Newland’s letters of interest were included in the packet. 

 

Discussion Points: 

● Tree Board often has vacant a seat. 

● Only 5 members can serve on the Tree Board. 

● Trustee Bachran discussed to amend the Tree Board Ordinance as to how many members 

are allowed. 

● Administrator Ferguson recommended the Tree Board have an ex-officio member. 

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson, seconded by Trustee Bachran to appoint Mark Newland as the new 

Tree Board Member. Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee 

Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

Clark Avenue Sewer Line Change Order #1 

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart regarding the Clark alley sewer pipe and the three-manhole 

error. The Clark Avenue sewer line change order #1 letter by Roop Excavating was included in 

the packet. 

 

Administrator Ferguson has contacted the parties involved in the Clark Ave sewer line project as 

to what the errors were and informed the Board of Trustees, they approved the replacement and 

reinstallation of the (300 ft) three hundred feet of sewer pipe and the (3) three manholes. 

 

Trustee Bear recommends a discussion of the payment of the change order be on the agenda for 

the next regular Board meeting held on January 28, 2020.  

 

Public Comments: 

 

Thomas Markle asked who the parties involved were. 

 

Administrator Ferguson stated the names of the parties were West Water Engineering, Wilmore 

Surveying Company, and Roop Excavating. 

 

DMEA Street Lights - Paonia Street Lights Continued 

 

Discussion ensued by Administrator Ferguson on the ongoing discussion of the Paonia 

streetlights and has been in contact with DMEA regarding this project. Paonia streetlight upgrade 

outline by Administrator Ferguson was included in the packet. An American Medical 

Association (AMA) article regarding high-intensity street light was included in the packet. 

18

2.



 
  

JANUARY 14, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

  

Discussion Points: 

● Town lights with an orange hue are 2200 Kalvin 

● No cost from DMEA to go for 2700 lower Kalvin 

● No cost from DMEA for installation or roll out time if done at same time 

● Dimmable is not an option - DMEA does not provide 

● 4th St. and Poplar Ave. are 3000 Kalvin with a shield 

● DMEA allowing to phase-in 

● The cost is the same for the 2700 Kalvin and 3000 Kalvin. 

● Lights have a 10-year warranty does not include acts of vandalism 

● Lights are budgeted in line item under the street. 

● 2021 budget will show a better idea of how much savings the town gets. 

 

Public Comment: 

 

Aaron Watson dark skies member recommends the 2700 Kalvin and recommended allocating 

savings from having the lower 2700 Kalvin light into a fund for the future. 

 

Roger Brail - is in favor of 2700 Kalvin. Feels the 3000 Kalvin is bright. 

Donna Willoughby - discussed the effects of a higher Kalvin light on human health. 

Suzanne Watson - discussed on how the Town of Olathe adopted the 4000 Kalvin light from 

DMEA when they initiated changing communities’ streetlights.   

 

Thomas Markle - stated if the washed-out hue of the lights will have an effect on certain colors 

and if this will affect emergency responders.  

 

Chief Ferguson stated that the light will not have an effect that he is aware of. 

 

Administrator Ferguson stated that after the lights are installed the effects of the lights will have 

are unknown. 

 

Finance Officer Cindy Jones recommends taking the cost out of capital. 

 

Motion by Trustee Knuston, seconded by Trustee Bachran to approve the change out of the lights 

to the 2700 Kalvin light with the shield and the payment to come out of capital. Voting aye: 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

Interim Administrator Contract Amendment #1 

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart that at the December 10, 2019, regular board meeting the 

Interim Administrators contract was extended to May 31, 2020. The Interim Administrator 

contract amendment #1 was included in the packet. 

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson, seconded by Trustee Budinger to approve the First (1st) Amendment 

to Interim Employment Agreement. Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

New Business 
 

Resolution 2020-01 Designating Posting Location & Publication Newspaper of Record. 

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart regarding the annual posting designation resolution. 

 

Discussion ensued by Trustee Knutson regarding the use of local newspapers to use as the 

designating posting and publication. 

 

Attorney Nerlin stated it needs to be with a newspaper of general circulation that circulates Delta 

County. Resolution 2020-01 Designating Posting Location & Publication Newspaper of Record 

was included in the packet. 

 

19

2.



 
  

JANUARY 14, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, seconded by Trustee Bachran to adopt Resolution 2020-01. Voting aye: 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

Resolution 2020-02 Authorized Signors 

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart regarding authority signer that can sign on behalf of the 

Town. Resolution 2020-02 was included in the packet. 

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson, seconded by Trustee Bear to adopt Resolution of The Board of 

Trustees Authorizing the Legal Signors for the Town of Paonia, Colorado. Voting aye: Trustee 

Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

Delta County Municipal Election Intergovernmental Agreement. 

 

Discussion ensued by Administrator Ferguson regarding the intergovernmental agreement 

between the County and the Town the Intergovernmental Agreement and the outline of 

responsibilities was included in the packet. On election day people can vote in person either at 

Delta County or the North Fork Annex located in the Town of Hotchkiss. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, seconded by Trustee Bachran to approve Delta County Municipal 

Election Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

Colorado Water Resource & Power Development Authority Rate Covenant Compliance 

 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart regarding on how the Town is out of compliance in the rate 

covenant. 

 

Finance Officer Cindy Jones discussed the reserves and that the water and power authority loan – 

rate compliance only includes water. A Colorado Water Resource & Power Development 

Authority letter to former Administrator Knight regarding the compliance and budget 

spreadsheet was included in the packet. 

 

Discussion Points: 

 DOLA 60/40 to 50/50 

 2019 unspent revenue reserve 

 Rate covenant – compliance 

 Auto trash sewer cleaner 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, seconded by Trustee Bachran to approve budget modifications: DOLA 

grant match 50/50, Accepting 2019 unspent revenue reserves, change the rate increase, and 

change to an auto trash cleaner for the sewer plant. Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

 

Committee Reports 

 

Finance & Personal 

  

Nothing to report. 

 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

 

Trustee Pattison stated that she will be meeting with Trustee Knutson later in the week. An 

invitation to Carolyn Diel to attend meeting was provided. 

 

Public Works – Utilities – Facilities 

 

 Clark Street project – monitor and assess how to recover the monies spent on the re-

laying of pipework done. 

20

2.



 
  

JANUARY 14, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 7 

 

 Snow Plowing 

 Shoveling sidewalks – notices have been sent to the public regarding shoveling their 

sidewalks. 

 Frederick Zimmer’s agreement was given to Town staff for review. 

 As Built for Silver Leaf has not been received by Town from Frederick Zimmer. 

 Teen Center is under construction. 

  

Space 2 Create 

 

Space 2 Create will be meeting on January 15, 2020. 

 

Tree Board 

 

 Received Tree City USA designation 

 Arbor Day celebration with received Tree Board designation. 

 Appointed new Tree Board member Mr. Mark Newland.  

 

Executive Session 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Bachran to extend the meeting to 10:00 pm.. 

Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

 

Executive session for a conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of receiving 

legal advice on specific questions under C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)(b); regarding the case of Eric 

Pace v. Town of Paonia; and, to discuss the sale of real property pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-

402(4)(a). 

 

Motion to enter executive session for a conference with the Town attorney for the purpose 

of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b); 

regarding the case of Eric Pace v. Town of Paonia. Motion made by Trustee Bachran, 

Seconded by Trustee Bear. Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

.To discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other property 

interest under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a); to discuss the sale of the 4th Street parcel real property 

pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)(a). Motion made by Trustee Bachran, Seconded by Trustee 

Bear. Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee 

Pattison. 

 

Entered executive session at 8:52 pm. 

 

Returned to open meeting at 7:38 pm.  

 

In attendance were: Mayor Stewart, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee 

Pattison, Trustee Knutson, Town Attorney Nerlin, Administrator Ferguson. 

 

No issues noted. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, seconded by Trustee Bachran to order an appraisal for 313 4th St. 

Voting Yea: Voting aye: Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, 

Trustee Pattison. 

 

 

 

 

 

Adjournment 
 

21

2.



 
  

JANUARY 14, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 8 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, seconded by Trustee Bachran to adjourn the meeting. Voting aye: 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Pattison. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 9:55 pm. 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                         Charles Stewart, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22

2.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: 

: 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

23

3.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Committee Appointments 

Summary:  

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

24

4.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

Administrator’s Report 

Public Works 

Police Report 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: 

: 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

25

5.



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   01/15/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
14:07:37 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
15:50:33 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
18:04:41 Traffic Stop PPD DIST3 CIT

18:08:14 CRIM MISCHIEF PPD PPD
18:38:38 Traffic Stop

Address
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO
50 BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE RD., Paonia, 
CO
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
400 Block of 2nd St., Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW

19:09:15 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
20:03:13 Information

MEADOWBROOK BLVD, Paonia, CO  
ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 7

Date Occurred:   01/16/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
18:05:16 Traffic Stop 50 BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE RD., Paonia,

CO
PPD DIST3 CIT

21:17:45 Traffic Stop 50 BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE RD., Paonia,
CO

PPD DIST3 CIT

21:49:42 Traffic Stop 50 BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE RD., Paonia,
CO

PPD DIST3 CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   01/17/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:36:30 911/hangup PPD PPD
18:24:50 Traffic Stop PPD PPD VW

20:45:33 Traffic Stop

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
50 BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE RD., Paonia, 
CO
50 BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE RD., Paonia, 
CO

PPD PPD VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   01/18/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:40:00 Information

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

15:09:52 LOST/FOUND PROP 3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
22:41:00 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
23:15:48 AGENCY ASSIST

MEADOWBROOK BLVD, Paonia, CO 
HIGHWAY 133 MILE MARKER 3.5, Paonia, 
CO

PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

26

5.



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 4

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   01/21/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:49:50 SUSPICIOUS

Address
GRAND AVE; PHS, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

14:30:00 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD PPD
18:21:51 Traffic Stop PPD PPD VW
19:00:15 AGENCY ASSIST

Pan American AVE., Paonia, CO
200 BLOCK OF GRAND AVE., Paonia, CO 
COBURN RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   01/22/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:44:19 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
12:46:04 SUSPICIOUS

Address
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO  
GRAND AVE; PHS, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

14:15:19 THEFT FROM AUTO 3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
14:25:03 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
18:15:17 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT

20:55:54 AUTO THEFT

GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO
50 BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE RD., Paonia, 
CO
POPLAR AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD RECOVERED

Total Incidents for this Date: 6

Date Occurred:   01/23/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
07:35:00 WELFARE CHECK MAIN AVE ; axf 2 houses van, Paonia, CO       PPD PPD
08:09:47 TrafficAccident PPD PPD
16:53:15 911/hangup

3RD ST & GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO  
RIO GRANDE AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

19:18:25 Traffic Stop 1500 BLOCK OF CLARK AVE., Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW
21:01:01 Traffic Stop 50 BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE RD., Paonia,

CO
PPD PPD VW

21:34:01 Traffic Stop 50 BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE RD., Paonia,
CO

PPD DIST3 VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 6

Date Occurred:   01/24/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:10:56 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
16:00:18 Traffic Stop PPD PPD VW
18:52:20 Traffic Stop PPD DIST3 VW
19:59:46 Traffic Stop

Address
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO
200 3RD ST, Paonia, CO
100 BLOCK OF 3RD St., Paonia, CO
50 BLOCK OF SAMUEL WADE RD., Paonia, 
CO

PPD PPD VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   01/25/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
12:33:38 Traffic Stop 200 GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

27

5.



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 4

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
15:04:36 Traffic Stop 300 5TH ST, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3 CIT
15:35:18 AGENCY ASSIST DIST3
15:36:51 SUSPICIOUS PPD

15:54:09 TrafficAccident PPD
18:52:49 Intoxication PPD
21:47:27 AGENCY ASSIST

BLOCK COLORADO AVE; county, Paonia,          PPD 
GRAND AVE; HEART OF THE DRAGON,          PPD 
Paonia, CO
200 BLOCK OF GRAND AVE., Paonia, CO PPD 
GRAND AVE; RIO BRAVO, Paonia, CO        PPD 
MATHEWS LN, Paonia, CO            PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 7

Date Occurred:   01/26/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
00:54:03 AGENCY ASSIST PPD PPD
07:41:49 Noise Complaint PPD PPD VW
11:38:36 Traffic Stop

Address
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO  
MAIN AVE ;7, Paonia, CO
300 SAMUEL WADE RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3 CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   01/27/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
13:04:08 AGENCY ASSIST PPD DIST3
17:38:29 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
18:17:07 AGENCY ASSIST PPD DIST3
18:48:32 HARASSMENT PPD PPD
20:45:35 Medical/transfe

Address
SAMUEL WADE RD, Paonia, CO 
100 GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
HIGHWAY 133; 11, Paonia, CO
ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO 
2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Date Occurred:   01/28/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
13:29:47 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
13:34:20 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
13:46:38 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
14:48:23 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
15:54:24 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
15:54:32 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW
17:43:23 Code Enforce

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO  
ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO  
2ND ST, Paonia, CO
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO  
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO  
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO  
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW

18:52:21 RESTR/PROT ORDR ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD RFR
Total Incidents for this Date: 8

Date Occurred:   01/29/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:10:54 FRAUD

Address
3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

10:51:43 WELFARE CHECK PPD PPD
14:13:13 VIN INSPECTION

POPLAR AVE, Paonia, CO  
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

14:55:59 ANIMAL CONTROL POPLAR AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT
15:44:34 ANIMAL CONTROL OAK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

28

5.



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 4 of 4

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 01/15/20` and `00:00:01 02/01/20`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:50:22 ALARM PPD PPD
16:25:04 Certified Vin PPD PPD
18:04:44 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO  
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
 CITY MARKET HOT, Hotchkiss, CO PPD HOT

Total Incidents for this Date: 8

Date Occurred:   01/30/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
13:40:41 RESTR/PROT ORDR PPD PPD RFR
18:36:01 Traffic Stop PPD PPD VW

21:34:00 Traffic Stop

MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO
200 BLOCK OF BOX ELDER AVE., Paonia, 
CO
300 BLOCK OF 2ND St., Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   01/31/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
10:37:58 ANIMAL CONTROL NORTH FORK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW
13:33:32 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD WW

13:43:35 Traffic Stop

pan american av; apple valley park, Paonia, 
CO
200 1ST ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

17:45:05 Code Enforce 100 BLOCK OF DORRIS AVE., Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW
18:23:14 Traffic Stop 300 BLOCK OF 2ND St., Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT
Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Total reported: 76

VW=13
WW= 10
CIT= 13
RECOVERED = 1
RFR= 2

29

5.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

30

6.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

31

7.



32

7.



33

7.



34

7.



35

7.



36

7.



37

7.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

USDA Loan Refinance – Continued  

Summary:  

 At the January 28th Regular Board meeting trustees voted to send AMKO agreement 

documents to the town attorney for review and recommendation. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

38

8.



 

Page 1 of 2 

Memo 
To: Board of Trustees – Town of Paonia    

From: Bo James Nerlin 

CC: Ms. Corinne Ferguson 

Date: February 11, 2020 

Re: AMKO Advisors – Proposal for Refinancing 2006 USDA Note  

 

At the request of the Board of Trustees (the “Board” ) for the Town of Paonia (the “Town”), 

our office has been asked to review the AMKO Advisors’ (“AMKO”) January 28, 2020 proposal 

regarding refinancing the Town’s 2006 USDA Note (the “2006 Note”).  With respect to this review, I 

have examined the following documents:  

1. January 28, 2020 Memo from AMKO to the Town Board regarding refinancing the 2006 

Note;  

2. January 2020 Debt Services Comparison;  

3. January 2020 USDA Loan Refunding Analysis;  

4. Proposed Town Refinancing Timeline;  

5. AMKO Advising Agreement with Scope of Services;  

6. Disclosure Statement of AMKO;  

7. AMKO Filing Assistance Service Agreement; and  

8. The 2006 Note. 

  Based upon my review of the above referenced documents, it appears that the proposal outlined 

by AMKO is within the scope of mutual bond transactions. Under AMKO’s proposal, the 2006 Note 

will be retired through the issuance of utility revenue bonds.  The security for these newly issued bonds 

is would be the revenue generated by the Town’s utility system.   

2006 Note 

  With respect to 2006 Note, should the Town pursue refinance, there is nothing contained in the 

2006 Note that prevents the Town from an early repayment, as any prepayment penalty dates under the 

2006 Note have since expired.  In addition, as the 2006 Note has an interest rate of 4.5%, the Town 

would be looking at a cost savings by obtaining a lower interest rate from the issuance of utility revenue 

bonds.  

39

8.



 

Page 2 of 2 

Refinance Fees 

 It is presumed that AMKO will pursue the reissuance of the bonds through a public sale, wherein 

the bonds will be sold directly to a financial institution.  Under the proposed refinance, AMKO estimates 

a $32,150.00 Cost of Issuance, which includes a $20,000.00 Municipal Advisory Fee, a $10,000.00 

Bond Counsel Fee, a $1,500.00 Publication Fee, a $350.00 Paying Agent annual fee, and a $300.00 

Paying Agent one time set fee. In addition to the foregoing, the Town will be responsible for our office’s 

time in serving as the Town’s Issuance Counsel.  Pursuant to the AMKO Advising Agreement, the 

$20,000.00 Municipal Advisory Fee will be incorporated into the loan and only due in the event the 

refinance is complete.  With respect the Bond Counsel Fee, it is anticipated that it would be folded into 

the cost of the refinance, as with any other closing fees incurred as a result of the transaction or attributed 

to a financial institution’s purchase of the issued utility bonds.  However, should the Town not close on 

the refinance, the Town would likely be responsible for any Bond Counsel fees, publication fees and 

Issuance Counsel Fees incurred up to the date the transaction is terminated. 

Professional Advisors 

 In the event the Town proceeds with the refinance of the 2006 Note, in addition to our office 

serving as General Counsel or Issuance Counsel, the Town will need to retain Bond Counsel.  The role 

of Bond Counsel is to prepare an opinion that the bonds have been duly authorized and executed by the 

Town, that the bonds are valid and binding obligations of the Town, and that the interest of the bonds is 

executable from gross income for federal purposes.  It appears that AMKO wishes to work with Dorsey 

& Whitney, LP as Bond Counsel.    

As Issuance Counsel, our role would be to write an opinion that the Board meetings authorizing 

the refinance were duly noticed and held, that the issuance of the bonds does not conflict with existing 

Town law, that the Town’s disclosures in offering the issuance are true and correct, that there is no 

pending litigation that would affect the issuance of the bonds, and that the party signing the bonds and 

closing paperwork is authorized to do so.   

In addition to Bond Counsel and Issuance Counsel, the financial institution pursuing the bonds 

would likely hire their own Counsel and advisors in reviewing the bond purchase and payoff of the 2006 

Note.   

Conclusion 

 

 Our office has not undertaken an independent review of AMKO or their analysis regarding the 

proposed cost savings the Town may realize should it proceed.  Should the Town wish to proceed, it is 

presumed that the next step would be a motion to proceed from the Board, authorizing the Mayor to 

enter into the AMKO Advising Agreement and notifying AMKO of the same.   

 

 

 

 

40

8.



1

Corinne Ferguson

From: Mark Deraney <mark.deraney@amkoadvisors.com>
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2020 3:40 PM
To: Cindy Jones; Corinne Ferguson; Dan Andersen (andersen.daniel@dorsey.com); 

skoby.rhonda@dorsey.com
Cc: Tim Hintz
Subject: Town of Paonia - Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A
Attachments: POS - Paonia CO - 2020A DRAFT 200210.pdf

Importance: High

Good afternoon.  Attached, please find the current draft of the Preliminary Official Statement for tomorrow’s Town 
Board meeting.  Please note that are several placeholders in the document due to a lack of receipt (yet) of that 
information and that the document has not been fully reviewed or approved.  There are also several Appendices that 
are not attached, which are not necessary at this point.  This first version of the POS is a rough draft to refer to in the 
meeting, only.  The “essentially complete” version may have some changes as we continue to finalize the verbiage, etc., 
and will be available for the second reading of the Ordinance.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions about the document or anything contained within it.  I hope to have the 
“essentially complete” POS out by the end of this week, after all comments and changes have been received. 
 
Thanks very much and we look forward to obtaining Board approval during the first reading of the Ordinance 
tomorrow.  If I can be of any help with that, please don’t hesitate to let me know. 
 
Have a great rest of your day. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Mark Deraney 
AMKO Advisors, LLC 
Office:  701‐364‐9884 
Mobile:  701‐367‐4058 
www.amkoadvisors.com 
 

 
 
AMKO Advisors, LLC is a Registered Municipal Advisor with the Municipal Securities Rule Board (MSRB) #K0852 and the United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) #867-00428 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This message, including any attachments, is intended for the use of the addressee and may contain information that is 
PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL, AND EXEMPT FROM DISCLOSURE UNDER APPLICABLE LAW.  Therefore, if you are not the intended recipient, please notify 
us immediately by telephone for instructions.  Thank you. 
 
 

41

8.



 

 

 

 
 

State of Colorado 

Town of Paonia 

 Ordinance 

2020-TBD 

 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE BY THE TOWN OF 

PAONIA, COLORADO, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS WATER AND 

SEWER ENTERPRISE, OF ITS WATER AND SEWER REVENUE 

REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2020A, IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED $1,800,000, FOR THE PURPOSE OF REFUNDING, PAYING AND 

DISCHARGING ITS OUTSTANDING WATER REVENUE BOND, 

SERIES 2006, ISSUED PURSUANT TO ORDINANCE 2006-06; DELEGATING 

CERTAIN AUTHORITY TO TOWN OFFICERS IN CONNECTION WITH THE 

COMPETITIVE SALE OF THE SERIES 2020A BONDS; PLEDGING 

CERTAIN NET REVENUES FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE SERIES 2020A 

BONDS; AND PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND OTHER DETAILS OF SUCH 

SERIES 2020A BONDS. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, 

COLORADO, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE: 

Section 1. Findings.  The Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, Colorado (the 

“Board” and the “Town,” respectively) acting by and through its Water and Sewer Enterprise (the 

“Enterprise”) hereby finds and determines as follows: 

(a) The Town, through the Enterprise, owns, operates and maintains a 

municipal water and sewer system.  Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution 

permits the refunding of outstanding bonds at a lower interest rate without an election. 

Accordingly, no election is necessary under Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado 

Constitution to issue the below-defined Series 2020A Bonds. 

(b) It is necessary and desirable, and in the best interests of the health, safety 

and welfare of the people of the Town, to refund, at a lower interest rate, the Water Revenue 

Bond, Series 2006 (the “Series 2006 Bond”), originally issued by the Town pursuant to 

Ordinance 2006-06 to finance the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a wastewater 

treatment facility as part of the Enterprise (defined below).  

(c) For the purpose of effecting such refunding, it is necessary to authorize the 

issuance of not to exceed $1,800,000 aggregate principal amount of Water and Sewer 

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A (the “Series 2020A Bonds”) upon the terms 

provided herein. 

(d) The Series 2020A Bonds shall be payable solely from and secured by a 

pledge of and an irrevocable lien on the Net Revenues (as defined below).  The 

Series 2020A Bonds shall not constitute a debt or indebtedness of the Town within the 

meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation and are not secured by 

the full faith and credit of the Town or by any taxing power of the Town or any other 

42

8.



 

 

2 
 

government; nor shall the Series 2020A Bonds constitute a multiple-fiscal year direct or 

indirect debt or other financial obligation within the meaning of Article X, Section 20 of 

the Colorado Constitution; nor shall the Series 2020A Bonds be considered or held to be 

general obligations of the Town; rather, the Series 2020A Bonds shall be payable only from 

the Net Revenues. 

(e) Other than the Series 2006 Bond, there are no other outstanding bonds, 

notes or other obligations of the Town that are secured by a pledge of or a lien on the Net 

Revenues, except for the amounts due pursuant to the Loan Agreement dated as of 

November 5, 2008, and the Loan Agreement dated as of May 1, 2014, each between the 

Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority and the Town. 

(f) There are no ordinances, resolutions, contracts, agreements, or other 

enactments or commitments of the Town that would prevent the Town from issuing and 

performing its obligations with respect to the Series 2020A Bonds. 

(g) Pursuant to § 18-8-308, Colorado Revised Statutes (“C.R.S.”), all known 

potential conflicting interests, if any, with respect to the Series 2020A Bonds and the 

expenditure of proceeds thereof have been disclosed to the Board and to the Colorado 

Secretary of State.  No member of the Board has a personal or private interest, as such 

terms are used in § 24-18-109, C.R.S., in the Series 2020A Bonds, the Refunding, or any 

other subject matter of this ordinance (the “Ordinance”), and no member of the Board has 

any interest, as such term is used in § 24-18-201, C.R.S., in the Series 2020A Bonds, the 

Refunding or any other contract made or to be made pursuant to this Ordinance. 

Section 2. Definitions.  The terms defined in this Section shall have the meanings 

assigned in this Section for all purposes of this Ordinance, Exhibit A hereto and any amendatory 

or supplemental ordinance, except where the context by clear implication requires otherwise. Other 

terms are defined elsewhere in this Ordinance. 

“Bond” or “Bonds” includes the Series 2020A Bonds and any other designated bonds or 

similar obligations of the Town as the context requires. 

“Bond Account” means the Series 2020A Bond Account created and designated as such 

pursuant to Section 18 hereof. 

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or a day on which banks 

in Denver, Colorado, are required or authorized to be closed. 

“Capital Improvements” means the acquisition of land, easements, water and sewer rights, 

facilities, equipment and materials (other than ordinary repairs and replacements), and the 

construction, reconstruction or other acquisition of improvements, betterments and extensions, for 

use by or in connection with the Enterprise; including, without limitation, any of the foregoing that 

are constructed, reconstructed, acquired or owned on a cooperative basis with any other entities. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date of delivery of 

the Bonds, and applicable regulations and rulings thereunder. 

43

8.



 

 

3 
 

“Enterprise” means the Water and Sewer Enterprise of the Town, including the municipal 

water and sewer system now owned or hereafter acquired, whether situated within or without the 

Town boundaries, including all present or future improvements, extensions, enlargements, 

betterments, replacements or additions thereof or thereto. 

“Event of Default” means any one or more of the events set forth in Section 26 hereof. 

“Federal Securities” means (a) direct obligations of the United States for which its full faith 

and credit are pledged (or ownership interests in the same); or (b) obligations the principal of and 

interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States (or ownership interests in 

the same).  No Federal Securities may be callable prior to their scheduled maturities by the issuer 

thereof. 

“Final Terms Certificate” means the certificate to be executed by the Mayor, dated on or 

before the date of delivery of the Series 2020A Bonds, setting forth the determinations pursuant to 

Section 15 of this Ordinance of (a) the winning bid for the Series 2020A Bonds, as determined 

pursuant to Section 15 hereof; (b) the rates of interest on the Series 2020A Bonds and the premium, 

if any, to be paid therefor pursuant to such winning bid; (c) the date upon which payments of 

interest and principal will commence; (d) the aggregate principal amount and principal amount of 

each maturity of the Series 2020A Bonds, if reduced as provided in Section 5(a) hereof, and any 

related reduction in the premium bid for the Series 2020A Bonds; (e) the Minimum Reserve 

amount to be deposited in the Reserve Account to be established in connection with the 

Series 2020A Bonds; and (f) the optional redemption terms of the Series 2020A Bonds.  The Final 

Terms Certificate shall be construed as if it were a part of this Ordinance, provided that all 

provisions of the Final Terms Certificate shall be subject to the parameters and restrictions 

contained in this Ordinance. 

“Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” means accounting principles, methods and 

terminology followed and construed for utilities and enterprises of governmental units, as 

established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, as amended from time to time. 

“Gross Revenues” means all income and Gross Revenues directly or indirectly derived by 

the Enterprise from the operation and use of the Enterprise, or any part thereof, including, without 

limitation, any rates, fees (including plant investment fees), and charges for the services furnished 

by, or the use of, the Enterprise, and all income attributable to any past or future dispositions of 

property or rights or related contracts, settlements, or judgments held or obtained in connection 

with the Enterprise or its operations, including investment income accruing from moneys held to 

the credit of the Town’s Bond Account and from moneys required to be paid into any fund or 

account pledged to the payment of the Series 2020A Bonds or Parity Obligations or Subordinate 

Obligations, except to the extent otherwise provided in their respective authorizing proceedings; 

provided however, that there shall be excluded from Gross Revenues any moneys borrowed and 

used for providing Capital Improvements; any moneys and securities, and investment income 

therefrom, in any refunding fund, escrow account, or similar account pledged to the payment of 

any refunded bonds or other legally defeased obligations; and any moneys received as grants or 

appropriations the use of which is limited or restricted by the grantor or donor to Capital 

Improvements or other purposes inconsistent with the inclusion of such moneys as Gross 

Revenues. 

44

8.



 

 

4 
 

“Letter of Representations” means the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations from the 

Town to The Depository Trust Company, or any similar agreement with any successor to The 

Depository Trust Company, together with schedules thereto and materials referred to therein. 

“Maximum Debt Service Year” means the single calendar year during the term of the 

Series 2020A Bonds in which there is the greatest amount of total combined debt service on the 

Series 2020A Bonds, Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations, Other Water and Sewer 

Obligations, and the Parity Obligations or Subordinate Obligations proposed to be issued. 

“Minimum Reserve” means the amount, calculated as of the initial delivery of the 

Series 2020A Bonds, equal to the least of (a) 10% of the proceeds of the Series 2020A Bonds, 

(b) 100% of the maximum annual principal and interest to come due on the Series 2020A Bonds 

in any calendar year, or (c) 125% of the average annual principal and interest requirements on the 

Series 2020A Bonds; provided that such amount may be reduced to the maximum amount 

permitted to be capitalized by the issuance of tax-exempt obligations under applicable provisions 

of federal tax laws and regulations. 

“Net Revenues” for any period means the Gross Revenues during such period, minus 

Operating Expenses during such period. 

“Operating Expenses” means, for any particular period, all reasonable and necessary 

current expenses of the Town, paid or accrued, for operating, maintaining, and repairing the 

Enterprise , but only if such charges are made in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles.  Such Operating Expenses include, but are not limited to, expenses for ordinary repairs, 

renewals and replacements of the Enterprise, salaries and wages, employees’ health, 

hospitalization, pension and retirement expenses, fees for services, materials and supplies, rents, 

administrative and general expenses, including legal and overhead expenses of the Town directly 

related to the administration of the Enterprise, insurance expenses, legal, engineering, accounting, 

trustee, paying agent and financial advisory fees and expenses and costs of other consulting and 

technical services, taxes (except as set forth in the following sentence), payments in lieu of taxes 

and other governmental charges, payments to the United States Treasury pursuant to 

Section 148(f) of the Code or similar requirement to pay rebate, fuel costs, installment payments 

to make up operations and maintenance reserve shortfalls that may be required in connection with 

any other current expenses or obligations required to be paid by the Town by law, all to the extent 

properly allocable to the Enterprise.  Operating Expenses do not include depreciation or 

obsolescence charges or reserves, amortization of intangibles or other bookkeeping entries of a 

similar nature, interest charges and charges for the payment of principal, or amortization, of 

bonded or other indebtedness of the Town, costs, or charges made therefor, for capital additions, 

replacements, betterments, extensions or improvements to or retirements from the Enterprise that 

under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles are properly chargeable to the capital account or 

the reserve for depreciation, and do not include losses from the sale, abandonment, reclassification, 

revaluation or other disposition of any properties of the Enterprise nor such property items, 

including taxes and fuel, which are capitalized pursuant to the then existing accounting practice of 

the Town. 

“Other Water and Sewer Obligations” means obligations (whether currently outstanding or 

hereafter issued) that are not secured by a pledge of or a lien on all or any part of the Gross 

45

8.



 

 

5 
 

Revenues, but the debt service on which is required to be taken into account in establishing water 

and sewer rates. 

“Outstanding” or “outstanding” when used with reference to the Series 2020A Bonds (or 

any other designated bonds or similar obligations of the Town) and as of any particular date, means 

all the Series 2020A Bonds (or such other bonds or similar obligations) theretofore duly issued 

except: 

(a) any Series 2020A Bond (or such other bonds or similar obligations) 

canceled or delivered to be canceled by the Town, or on the Town’s behalf, at or before 

such date; 

(b) any Series 2020A Bond (or such other bonds or similar obligations) deemed 

to have been paid within the meaning of Section 29 hereof (or of any corresponding section 

of the ordinance or other enactment authorizing the issuance of such other bond or 

obligation); and 

(c) any Series 2020A Bond (or such other bonds or similar obligations) in lieu 

of or in substitution for which another bond or obligation shall have been executed and 

delivered pursuant to Section 9 hereof (or of any corresponding section of the ordinance or 

other enactment authorizing the issuance of such other bond or obligation). 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Bonds the principal of or interest on which have been paid by 

a bond insurer or similar entity shall be considered Outstanding as further provided in Section 29 

hereof. 

“Owner” or “Registered Owner” or “Bondholder” means any person who is the registered 

owner of any Bond as shown on the registration records kept by the Registrar. As further provided 

in Section 8 hereof, the initial Owner of the Series 2020A Bonds will be Cede & Co. as nominee 

of The Depository Trust Company, the initial securities depository for the Series 2020A Bonds. 

“Parity Obligations” means any additional bonds, notes, interim securities or other 

obligations currently outstanding, including the amounts due pursuant to the Loan Agreement 

dated as of November 5, 2008, and the Loan Agreement dated as of May 1, 2014, each between 

the Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority and the Town, or hereafter 

issued by the Town having a lien on all or any portion of the Net Revenues that is on a parity with 

the lien of the Series 2020A Bonds.  “Parity Obligations” does not include the Series 2020A 

Bonds. 

“Paying Agent” means U.S. Bank National Association in Denver, Colorado, and Saint 

Paul, Minnesota, acting in the capacity as the paying agent for the Series 2020A Bonds (or such 

other entity as may be appointed as a successor Paying Agent as provided in Section 31 hereof). 

“Permitted Investments” means deposits or investments that are at the time legal deposits 

or investments for the Town under applicable law. 

46

8.



 

 

6 
 

“Purchaser” means the manager of the original purchasing account for the Series 2020A 

Bonds as determined pursuant to Section 15 hereof based upon competitive bids received at the 

public sale of the Series 2020A Bonds as provided herein. 

“Rebate Account” means the Series 2020A Rebate Account created and designated as such 

pursuant to Section 18 hereof. 

“Record Date” means the close of business on the fifteenth day (whether or not a Business 

Day) of the calendar month next preceding an interest payment date. 

“Refunded Bonds” means the Series 2006 Bond. 

“Refunding” means the refunding, payment and discharge of the Refunded Bonds. 

“Refunding Account” means the Town of Paonia, Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2020A, Refunding Account created and designated as such pursuant to Section 17 

hereof. 

“Registrar” means U.S. Bank National Association in Denver, Colorado, and Saint Paul, 

Minnesota, acting in the capacity as the registrar and transfer agent for the Bonds (or such other 

entity as may be appointed as a successor Registrar as provided in Section 31 hereof). 

“Reserve Account” means the Series 2020A Reserve Account created and designated as 

such pursuant to Section 18 hereof. 

“Series 2006 Bond” means the Water Revenue Bond, Series 2006, issued pursuant to 

Ordinance 2006-06 of the Town. 

“Series 2020A Bonds” means the Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, 

Series 2020A of the Town, acting by and through the Enterprise, authorized by this Ordinance. 

“Special Record Date” means a special date fixed to determine the names and addresses of 

Owners for purposes of paying interest on a special interest payment date for the payment of 

defaulted interest. 

“State” means the State of Colorado. 

“Subordinate Obligations” means one or more additional bonds, notes, interim securities 

or other obligations, or series of any such obligations, issued by the Town having a lien on all or 

any portion of the Net Revenues that is subordinate or junior to the lien of the Series 2020A Bonds. 

“Water Revenue Fund” means the existing fund of the Enterprise designated as the “Water 

Revenue Fund” into which all Gross Revenues are directed to be deposited, as provided in Section 

18 hereof. 

Section 3. Ratification.  All actions (not inconsistent with the provisions of this 

Ordinance) heretofore taken by the Town and the officers, employees and agents of the Town 

47

8.



 

 

7 
 

directed toward the Refunding or the sale and delivery of the Series 2020A Bonds are hereby 

ratified, approved and confirmed. 

Section 4. Authorization.  The Board has determined and hereby declares that the 

District is authorized to issue the Series 2020A Bonds to refund the Refunded Bonds pursuant to 

the provisions of Article 35 of Title 31, C.R.S. (the “Revenue Bond Act”); Article 45.1 of Title 37, 

C.R.S.; Part 2 of Article 57 of Title 11, C.R.S. (the “Supplemental Act”); and all other laws 

thereunto enabling.  In accordance with those laws and Article XX of the Constitution of the State, 

the Board, on behalf of the Town, acting by and through the Enterprise, hereby authorizes the 

issuance of the Series 2020A Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $1,800,000 

for the purpose of providing funds to finance the Refunding, including payment of costs of issuance 

of the Series 2020A Bonds as provided herein. 

Section 11-57-204 of the Supplemental Act provides that a public entity, including the 

District, may elect in an act of issuance to apply all or any of the provisions of the Supplemental 

Act.  The Board hereby elects to apply all of the Supplemental Act to the Series 2020A Bonds.  

The Series 2020A Bonds will be issued under the authority of the Revenue Bond Act and 

the Supplemental Act and shall so recite as provided in Exhibit A hereto.  Pursuant to 

Section 31-35-413, such recital conclusively imparts full compliance with all the provisions of 

such statutes and that Series 2020A Bonds issued containing such recital are incontestable for any 

cause whatsoever after their delivery for value.  Pursuant to Section 11-57-210, such recital shall 

be conclusive evidence of the validity and the regularity of the issuance of the Series 2020A Bonds 

after their delivery for value. 

Section 5. Series 2020A Bond Details. 

(a) The Series 2020A Bonds shall be issued only in fully registered form 

(i.e., registered as to payment of both principal and interest) in denominations of $5,000 

and integral multiples thereof (and further provided that no Series 2020A Bond may be in 

a denomination that exceeds the principal coming due on the same maturity date and no 

individual Series 2020A Bond may be issued for more than one maturity).  The 

Series 2020A Bonds shall be dated their date of issuance.  The Series 2020A Bonds shall 

be numbered in such manner as the Registrar shall determine.  The Series 2020A Bonds 

shall bear interest at the rates set forth in the Final Terms Certificate (computed on the basis 

of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) from their date to maturity or prior 

redemption per annum (which shall be market rates determined upon competitive bidding) 

at a net effective interest rate not to exceed 3.50%, payable on April 1 and October 1 in 

each year commencing on October 1, 2020 (unless otherwise provided in the Final Terms 

Certificate), except that Series 2020A Bonds that are reissued upon transfer, exchange or 

other replacement shall bear interest at the interest rates shown below from the most recent 

interest payment date to which interest has been paid, or if no interest has been paid, from 

the date of the Series 2020A Bonds.  The Series 2020A Bonds shall mature on April 1 in 

the years set forth in the Final Terms Certificate, with the final maturity thereof not later 

than April 1, 2044 (unless otherwise set forth in the Final Terms Certificate). 

48

8.



 

 

8 
 

(b) The principal of any Series 2020A Bond shall be payable to the Owner 

thereof as shown on the registration records kept by the Registrar upon maturity thereof or 

prior redemption and upon presentation and surrender at the office of the Paying Agent. If 

the principal of any Series 2020A Bond shall not be paid upon such presentation and 

surrender at or after maturity or prior redemption, interest thereon shall continue to accrue 

at the interest rate borne by said Series 2020A Bond until the principal thereof is paid in 

full. Payment of interest on any Series 2020A Bond shall be made to the Owner thereof by 

check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent, on or before each interest payment date (or, if 

such interest payment date is not a Business Day, on or before the next succeeding Business 

Day), to the Owner thereof at such Owner’s address as it last appears on the registration 

records kept by the Registrar on the Record Date; but any such interest not so timely paid 

shall cease to be payable to the person who is the Owner thereof at the close of business 

on the Record Date and shall be payable to the person who is the Owner thereof at the close 

of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such defaulted interest.  Such 

Special Record Date and the date fixed for the payment of the defaulted interest shall be 

fixed by the Registrar whenever moneys become available for payment of the defaulted 

interest, and notice shall be given to the Owners of the Series 2020A Bonds not less than 

10 days prior to the Special Record Date by first-class mail to each such Owner as shown 

on the Registrar’s registration records on a date selected by the Registrar, stating the date 

of the Special Record Date and the date fixed for the payment of such defaulted interest.  

The Paying Agent may make payments of interest on any Series 2020A Bond by such 

alternative means as may be mutually agreed to between the Owner of such Series 2020A 

Bond and the Paying Agent (provided, however, that the Town will not be required to make 

funds available to the Paying Agent prior to the interest payment dates stated herein). All 

such payments shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America without 

deduction for the services of the Paying Agent or Registrar. 

Section 6. Prior Redemption. 

(a) Optional Redemption of the Series 2020A Bonds.  Unless otherwise set 

forth in the Final Terms Certificate, the Series 2020A Bonds maturing on April 1, 2028, 

shall be subject to redemption prior to their respective maturities, at the option of the Town, 

on and after April 1, 2027, in whole or in part at any time thereafter (if in part, in integral 

multiples of $5,000, from any maturity or maturities or portions thereof as selected by the 

Town and by lot within a maturity, giving proportionate weight to Series 2020A Bonds in 

denominations larger than $5,000, in such manner as the Registrar shall determine), at a 

redemption price equal to the principal amount of each Series 2020A Bond or portion 

thereof so redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, without 

redemption premium. 

(b) Redemption in Part.  In the case of Series 2020A Bonds of a denomination 

larger than $5,000, each $5,000 of principal shall be treated as a separate bond for purposes 

of determining which bonds of a particular maturity are to be redeemed on a particular 

redemption date. If less than all of the principal amount of any Series 2020A Bond is 

redeemed, the Registrar shall, without charge to the Owner of such Series 2020A Bond, 

authenticate and issue a replacement Series 2020A Bond or Bonds for the unredeemed 

portion thereof. 

49

8.



 

 

9 
 

(c) Notice and Effect of Redemption. Notice of any prior redemption under 

paragraph (a) or (b) of this Section shall be given by the Registrar in the name of the Town 

by sending a copy of such notice, by first-class, postage prepaid mail, not less than 30 days 

nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date, to each Owner of any Series 2020A 

Bond all or a portion of which is called for prior redemption at such Owner’s address as it 

last appears on the registration records kept by the Registrar. Failure to give such notice to 

the Owner of any Series 2020A Bond shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for 

the redemption of any other Bonds. Such notice shall specify the maturities of the 

Series 2020A Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed (if less than all are to be redeemed), 

and the date fixed for redemption, and shall further state that on such redemption date the 

principal due in connection with such redemption will become due and payable at the office 

of the Paying Agent, and that from and after such date interest on the Series 2020A Bonds 

to be redeemed will cease to accrue. Accrued interest to the redemption date will be paid 

by check or draft mailed to the Owner (or by alternative means if so agreed to by the Paying 

Agent and the Owner). Notice having been given in the manner provided in this paragraph, 

the Series 2020A Bonds so called for redemption shall become due and payable on the 

redemption date so designated, and interest on such Series 2020A Bonds shall cease to 

accrue; and upon presentation thereof at the Paying Agent, the Town shall pay any 

Series 2020A Bond or Bonds so called for redemption. All provisions of this Section as to 

notices, selection of Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, and other procedural 

provisions of this Section shall be subject to applicable procedures of the book-entry 

system provided for in Section 8 hereof. 

Section 7. Execution and Authentication. 

(a) The Series 2020A Bonds shall be executed in the name of and on behalf of 

the Town and shall be signed by the Mayor of the Town, shall be sealed with a manual or 

facsimile impression of the seal of the Town, and shall be attested by the Town Clerk.  The 

signatures of the Mayor and the Town Clerk on the Series 2020A Bonds may be manual 

or by facsimile.  The Series 2020A Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of 

the officers in office at the time of the signing thereof shall be the valid and binding 

obligations of the Town (subject to the requirement of authentication by the Registrar as 

hereinafter provided) notwithstanding that before the delivery thereof, or before the 

issuance thereof upon transfer or exchange, any or all of the persons whose manual or 

facsimile signatures appear thereon shall have ceased to fill their respective offices.  The 

Mayor and the Town Clerk shall, by the execution of a certificate pertaining to the 

Series 2020A Bonds, adopt as and for their respective signatures any facsimiles thereof 

appearing on the Series 2020A Bonds.  At the time of the execution of such certificate, the 

Mayor and the Town Clerk may each adopt as and for their respective facsimile signatures 

the facsimile signature of their respective predecessors in office in the event that such 

facsimile signature appears upon any of the Series 2020A Bonds. 

(b) No Series 2020A Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless 

the certificate of authentication, substantially in the form provided in Exhibit A hereto, has 

been duly executed by the Registrar.  The Registrar’s certificate of authentication shall be 

deemed to have been duly executed by it if manually signed by a duly authorized 

representative of the Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same representative 

50

8.



 

 

10 
 

sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds issued hereunder.  By 

authenticating any Series 2020A Bonds pursuant to this Ordinance, the Registrar and the 

Paying Agent shall be deemed to have assented to the provisions of, and to have agreed to 

abide by and perform the duties assigned to them in, this Ordinance. 

Section 8. Book-Entry System.  Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the 

Series 2020A Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate single certificated fully 

registered Series 2020A Bond for each of the maturities set forth in the Final Terms Certificate.  

Upon initial issuance the ownership of each Series 2020A Bond shall be registered in the 

registration records kept by the Registrar in the name of Cede & Co. (“Cede”), as nominee of The 

Depository Trust Company (including its successors and assigns, “DTC”), which is hereby 

designated as the initial securities depository for the Series 2020A Bonds under the DTC book-

entry system, which book-entry system is hereby authorized and agreed to by the Town.  The 

execution and delivery of the Representation Letter from the Town to DTC, relating to such book-

entry system, is hereby authorized (or, if a previously executed and delivered Representation Letter 

applies to the Series 2020A Bonds, such execution and delivery is hereby ratified and confirmed).  

Notwithstanding any other provision hereof to the contrary, so long as any Series 2020A Bond is 

registered in the name of Cede, as nominee of DTC, all payments and all notices with respect to 

such Series 2020A Bond shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in such 

Representation Letter. 

Section 9. Registration, Transfer and Exchange.  Subject to the provisions of 

Sections 5 and 8 hereof: 

(a) Records for the registration and transfer of the Series 2020A Bonds shall be 

kept by the Registrar, which is hereby appointed by the Town as registrar (i.e., transfer 

agent) for the Series 2020A Bonds.  Upon the surrender for transfer of any Bond at the 

office of the Registrar, duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment or 

written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Registrar and duly executed by the 

Owner or the Owner’s attorney duly authorized in writing, the Registrar shall enter such 

transfer on the registration records and shall authenticate and deliver in the name of the 

transferee or transferees a new Series 2020A Bond or Bonds of a like aggregate principal 

amount and of the same maturity, bearing a number or numbers not previously assigned. 

Series 2020A Bonds may be exchanged at the office of the Registrar for an equal aggregate 

principal amount of Series 2020A Bonds of the same maturity of other authorized 

denominations.  The Registrar shall authenticate and deliver a Series 2020A Bond or Bonds 

that the Owner making the exchange is entitled to receive, bearing a number or numbers 

not previously assigned.  The Registrar may impose reasonable charges in connection with 

such exchanges and transfers of Series 2020A Bonds, which charges (as well as any tax or 

other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer) 

shall be paid by the Owner requesting such exchange or transfer. 

(b) The Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange (i) all or any 

portion of any Series 2020A Bond subject to prior redemption during the period beginning 

at the opening of business 15 days before the day of the mailing by the Registrar of notice 

calling any Series 2020A Bonds for prior redemption as herein provided and ending at the 

close of business on the day of such mailing; or (ii) all or any portion of a Series 2020A 

51

8.



 

 

11 
 

Bond after the mailing of notice calling such Series 2020A Bond or any portion thereof for 

prior redemption. 

(c) Except as otherwise provided with respect to payment of interest pursuant 

to Section 5 hereof, and except as otherwise provided in Sections 31 and 33 hereof, the 

person in whose name any Series 2020A Bond shall be registered on the registration 

records kept by the Registrar shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof 

for the purpose of making payment thereof and for all other purposes. Payment of or on 

account of principal or interest on any Series 2020A Bond shall be made only to or upon 

the written order of the Owner thereof or such Owner’s legal representative, but such 

registration may be changed upon transfer of such Series 2020A Bond in the manner and 

subject to the conditions and limitations provided herein.  All such payments shall be valid 

and effectual to discharge the liability upon such Series 2020A Bond to the extent of the 

sum or sums so paid. 

(d) If any Series 2020A Bond shall be lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated, the 

Registrar shall, upon receipt of such evidence, information or indemnity relating thereto as 

it or the Town may reasonably require, authenticate and deliver a replacement 

Series 2020A Bond or Bonds of a like aggregate principal amount and of the same 

maturity, bearing a number or numbers not previously assigned.  If such lost, stolen, 

destroyed or mutilated Bond shall have matured or shall have been called for redemption, 

or is about to mature or be called for redemption, the Registrar may direct that such 

Series 2020A Bond be paid by the Paying Agent in lieu of replacement.  The Registrar and 

the Town may require that the Owner of any such Bond pay their reasonable fees, charges 

and expenses relating to their activities pursuant to this paragraph. 

(e) The officers of the Town are authorized to deliver to the Registrar fully 

executed but unauthenticated Series 2020A Bonds in such quantities as may be convenient 

to be held in custody by the Registrar pending use as herein provided. 

(f) Whenever any Series 2020A Bond shall be surrendered to the Paying Agent 

upon payment thereof, or to the Registrar for transfer, exchange or replacement as provided 

herein, such Series 2020A Bond shall be promptly canceled and destroyed by the Paying 

Agent or Registrar, and a record of such cancellation shall be furnished by the Paying Agent 

or Registrar to the Town. 

Section 10. Negotiability.  Subject to the registration provisions hereof, the 

Series 2020A Bonds shall be fully negotiable and shall have all the qualities of negotiable paper, 

and the Owners thereof shall possess all rights enjoyed by the holders of negotiable instruments 

under the provisions of the Colorado Uniform Commercial Code.  The principal of and interest on 

the Series 2020A Bonds shall be paid, and the Series 2020A Bonds shall be transferable, free from 

and without regard to any equities between the Town and the original or any intermediate Owner 

of any Series 2020A Bonds or any setoffs or cross-claims. 

Section 11. Form of Series 2020A Bonds.  The Series 2020A Bonds shall be in 

substantially the form set forth in Exhibit A hereto, with such omissions, insertions, endorsements 

and variations as to any recitals of fact or other provisions as may be required by the circumstances, 

52

8.



 

 

12 
 

be required or permitted by this Ordinance, or as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the 

purposes of this Ordinance or to conform to the rules and requirements of any governmental 

authority, of DTC (or any substitute securities depository as provided herein), or any applicable 

usage or requirement of law (including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, such 

modifications and additions as may be necessary or appropriate to conform to the provisions of 

any amendments to this Ordinance and the completed Exhibit A hereto). 

Section 12. Series 2020A Bonds Equally Secured.  Except as otherwise expressly 

provided in or pursuant to this Ordinance, the covenants and agreements herein set forth to be 

performed on behalf of the Town shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the 

Owners of any and all of the Series 2020A Outstanding Bonds, all of which, regardless of the time 

or times of their issuance or maturity, shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or 

distinction. 

Section 13. Pledge of Net Revenues; Special Obligations. 

(a) The Town hereby irrevocably pledges the Net Revenues and moneys in the 

Bond Account, on the terms provided herein, for the payment of the principal of and 

interest on the Series 2020A Bonds. Such pledge shall create an irrevocable and first lien 

(but not necessarily an exclusively first lien) on the Net Revenues, on a parity with the lien 

of other Parity Obligations that may be issued in the future as provided in Section 25 

hereof.  This pledge shall be valid and binding from and after the date of the first delivery 

of the Series 2020A Bonds, and the Net Revenues, as received by the Town, shall 

immediately be subject to the lien of this pledge without any physical delivery thereof or 

any filing or further act.  Net Revenues in amounts sufficient to make all of the payments 

to the Bond Account and the Rebate Account are hereby appropriated for said purposes, 

and said amounts for each year shall be included in the annual budget and appropriation 

ordinances or measures to be adopted or passed by the Board in each year respectively until 

the Series 2020A Bonds have been paid in full or otherwise discharged as herein provided.  

If the Board elects, for any reason, not to appropriate sufficient Net Revenues to continue 

paying the principal of and interest on the Series 2020A Bonds for the following fiscal 

year, the Town will have no further obligation to make payments of the principal of or 

interest on the Series 2020A Bonds under this Ordinance. 

(b) The Series 2020A Bonds shall be special, limited obligations of the Town, 

payable and collectible solely out of Net Revenues and moneys in the Bond Account as 

provided herein. The Series 2020A Bonds shall not constitute a debt or an indebtedness of 

the Town, Delta County, the State or any political subdivision of the State within the 

meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation, and are not secured by 

the full faith and credit of the Town or by any taxing power of the Town or any other 

government; nor shall the Series 2020A Bonds constitute a multiple-fiscal year direct or 

indirect debt or other financial obligation within the meaning of Article X, Section 20 of 

the Colorado Constitution; nor shall such obligations be considered or held to be general 

obligations of the Town; rather, such obligations shall be payable only from the Net 

Revenues.  The Owners of the Series 2020A Bonds may not look to any general fund of 

the Town for the payment of the Series 2020A Bonds, nor do the Owners of the 

Series 2020A Bonds have any right to require or compel the exercise of the ad valorem 

53

8.



 

 

13 
 

property taxing power or any other taxing power of the Town or of any other taxing entity 

for payment of the Series 2020A Bonds. 

(c) None of the covenants, agreements, representations and warranties 

contained herein or in the Series 2020A Bonds shall ever impose or be construed as 

imposing any liability, obligation or charge against the Town (except to the extent of the 

Net Revenues and the moneys in the Bond Account pledged pursuant to paragraph (a) of 

this Section) or its general credit; nor shall the Series 2020A Bonds be payable out of any 

general fund of the Town, or any funds derived from taxation, or any funds other than the 

Net Revenues.  The payment of the Series 2020A Bonds is not secured by any 

encumbrance, mortgage or other pledge of any property, except the Net Revenues and the 

moneys in the Bond Account as provided herein. 

Section 14. Preliminary Official Statement; Official Statement.  The proposed form of 

Preliminary Official Statement of the Town relating to the issuance and sale of the Series 2020A 

Bonds has been presented to the meeting of the Board at which this Ordinance is approved, and is 

on file in the office of the Town Clerk.  The Preliminary Official Statement, in substantially the 

form so presented with such additional changes and additions as are made prior to final passage of 

this Ordinance or approved by the Mayor of the Town, is hereby deemed by the Town to be a 

“nearly final official statement” for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange 

Commission.  The distribution and use by the Purchaser for the reoffering of the Series 2020A 

Bonds to the public of the final Official Statement (the “Official Statement”), in substantially the 

form of the Preliminary Official Statement, but with such amendments, additions and deletions as 

are consistent with the facts, as are not inconsistent herewith and as are approved by the Mayor as 

evidenced by the Mayor’s execution of the Official Statement, is hereby authorized and approved, 

and the Mayor is authorized to sign the final Official Statement on behalf of the Town. 

Section 15. Sale; Delegated Duties.  The Board will meet on March 24, 2020, at 

6:30 p.m., MST, to determine and accept the winning bid for the Series 2020A Bonds, and to 

determine and approve the final aggregate principal amount, annual principal maturities, 

mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions, interest rates, and purchase price (i.e., premium, 

if any) of the Series 2020A Bonds, which determinations and approvals must be consistent with 

the parameters and restrictions of this Ordinance.  The determinations and approvals set forth in 

this Section will be documented in the Final Terms Certificate. 

As provided in Section 11-57-205, C.R.S., as amended, the delegations of authority 

provided in this Section 15 shall be effective for 1 year from the final adoption of this Ordinance, 

and if the Series 2020A Bonds are not sold within such 1-year period, the Series 2020A Bonds 

may not be sold without additional Board authorization (which authorization, together with other 

provisions supplemental to this Ordinance, may be by resolution adopted by the Board).  The 

delegations provided for in this Section 15 shall be in addition to the delegations to Town officers 

provided for in other provisions of this Ordinance. 

The officers, employees and agents of the Town are hereby authorized and directed to take 

all action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this Ordinance, which may 

include, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (i) the preparation and delivery of the 

Series 2020A Bonds; (ii) such action as shall be necessary or desirable to maintain the tax-exempt 

54

8.



 

 

14 
 

status of the Series 2020A Bonds; (iii) the entering into and execution of the Undertaking (as 

defined in Section 31 hereof) and appropriate agreements relating thereto; (iv) the entering into 

and execution of appropriate agreements as to the security for the Series 2020A Bonds; (v) the 

entering into and execution of appropriate agreements as to the book-entry system for the 

Series 2020A Bonds; and (vi) the execution of such certificates as may be required by the 

Purchaser, including without limitation certificates related to the following:  the signing of the 

Series 2020A Bonds, the tenure and identity of municipal officials, the delivery of the 

Series 2020A Bonds and receipt of the purchase price therefor, the tax exempt status of the 

Series 2020A Bonds, the accuracy and completeness of the Official Statement, and relevant 

pending or threatened litigation or the absence thereof.   

Any officer of the Town designated as “acting” may take any action authorized or directed 

by this Ordinance (including, without limitation, execution or authentication of the Series 2020A 

Bonds) under the title of such officer’s office, with or without notation of the “acting” designation.  

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, in the absence, unavailability or disability of any 

officer of the Town authorized or directed to take any action pursuant to this Ordinance (including, 

without limitation, execution or authentication of the Series 2020A Bonds or execution of any 

other document, instrument or certificate), such action may be taken by an officer designated as 

“pro tem” or “acting” for such office, or by any deputy or assistant for such office. 

Section 16. Delivery of Series 2020A Bonds.  When the Series 2020A Bonds have been 

duly executed and authenticated, they shall be delivered to the Purchaser on receipt of the agreed 

purchase price.  The funds realized from the sale of the Series 2020A Bonds shall be applied solely 

for the purposes set forth in Section 17 hereof and for no other purposes whatsoever.  Neither the 

Purchaser nor any subsequent Owner of any of the Series 2020A Bonds shall be responsible for 

the application or disposal by the Town, or any of its officers or employees, of any such funds. 

Section 17. Disposition of Series 2020A Bond Proceeds.  The proceeds derived from 

the sale of the Bonds, upon the receipt thereof, shall immediately be deposited and accounted for 

in the following order of priority: 

(a) The amount necessary to pay outstanding principal and interest to their date 

of redemption shall be deposited in a special account hereby created in the Water Revenue 

Fund to be designated as the “Town of Paonia, Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2020A, Refunding Account” (the “Refunding Account”), and immediately 

applied to prepay and redeem the Series 2006 Bond; moneys in the Refunding Account, 

and interest or investment income thereon, are not included within the Gross Revenues and 

do not constitute security for the Series 2020A Bonds. 

(b) The amount (if any) set forth in the Final Terms Certificate shall be 

deposited to the Reserve Account, together with any available amounts from the reserve 

account for the Refunded Bonds; 

(c) There shall be deposited into the Bond Account and applied to the payment 

of interest on the Series 2020A Bonds (a) all accrued interest on the Series 2020A Bonds, 

if any and (b) any premium paid on the purchase of the Series 2020A Bonds, to the extent 

set forth in the Final Terms Certificate and not applied to the purposes stated above;  

55

8.



 

 

15 
 

(d) The amount necessary to pay or reimburse costs of the Refunding and other 

costs of issuance of the Series 2020A Bonds and other incidental costs necessary or 

appropriate in connection with the Series 2020A Bonds shall be applied thereto; and 

(e) The remaining proceeds of the Series 2020A Bonds shall be deposited, to 

the extent not needed for the above purposes, into the Bond Account and applied to the 

payment of interest on the Series 2020A Bonds. 

Section 18. Flow of Funds. 

(a) The Town hereby creates the following special accounts: 

(i) the “Series 2020A Rebate Account” (the “Rebate Account”); 

(ii) the “Series 2020A Bond Account” (the “Bond Account”); and 

(iii) the “Series 2020A Reserve Account” (the “Reserve Account”). 

(b) The Town shall credit to the Water Revenue Fund all Gross Revenues 

immediately upon receipt.  The Gross Revenues shall be applied, on or before the last day 

of each month, first to the payment of Operating Expenses as they become due and payable, 

including payments to the Rebate Account as required by Section 23 hereof.  After such 

payments, the Town shall apply the remaining moneys (i.e., the Net Revenues) in the 

following order of priority: 

FIRST, to the credit of the Bond Account in the amounts and at the times 

required by Section 19 hereof; and concurrently, to the credit of any similar fund 

or account (including any sinking fund) hereafter created for the payment of Parity 

Obligations, in the amounts and at the times required in connection with such Parity 

Obligations; 

SECOND, to the replenishment of the Reserve Account, and concurrently, 

to the credit of any reserve or similar fund or account created to secure other Parity 

Obligations (or for repayment pursuant to any insurance policy, surety bond, letter 

or line of credit, or similar credit facility utilized in lieu of such fund or account), 

in the amounts and at the times required in connection with such Parity Obligations; 

THIRD, to the credit of any other funds or accounts hereafter established 

for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on any Subordinate 

Obligations, including any sinking fund, reserve fund or similar fund or account 

established therefor, in the amounts and at the times required by the ordinance or 

other enactment authorizing the issuance of such Subordinate Obligations; and 

FOURTH, to the credit of any other fund or account as may be designated 

by the Town, to be used for any lawful purpose (which may include, without 

limitation, the payment of debt service on any Other Water and Sewer Obligations). 

56

8.



 

 

16 
 

Section 19. Bond Account.  The Town shall credit to the Bond Account from the Net 

Revenues, the following amounts at the following times: 

(a) monthly, commencing no later than the last day of the month immediately 

succeeding the delivery of the Series 2020A Bonds, an amount in equal monthly 

installments necessary, together with any moneys therein and available therefor, to pay the 

interest due and payable on the Outstanding Series 2020A Bonds on the next succeeding 

interest payment date; and 

(b) monthly, commencing no later than the last day of the month immediately 

succeeding the delivery of the Series 2020A Bonds, an amount in equal monthly 

installments necessary, together with any moneys therein and available therefor, to pay the 

principal due and payable on the Outstanding Series 2020A Bonds on the next succeeding 

principal payment date. 

Net Revenues sufficient to make payments of principal and interest due on the Series 2020A Bonds 

shall be deposited with the Paying Agent not later than the Business Day prior to the payment date. 

The Bond Account shall secure only the Series 2020A Bonds and not any Parity 

Obligations or Subordinate Obligations. 

Section 20. Reserve Account.  The Reserve Account shall be maintained in an amount 

equal to the Minimum Reserve as a continuing reserve to be used to prevent deficiencies in the 

payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2020A Bonds resulting from the failure to 

credit to the Bond Account sufficient funds to pay such principal and interest as the same become 

due.  The Reserve Account shall secure only the Series 2020A Bonds and not any Parity 

Obligations or Subordinate Obligations.  In the event the amounts credited to the Bond Account 

are insufficient to pay the principal of or interest on the Series 2020A Bonds when due, the Town 

shall transfer from the Reserve Account to the Bond Account an amount which, when combined 

with amounts in the Bond Account, will be sufficient to make such payments when due. 

Section 21. General Administration of Funds and Accounts. 

(a) The Water Revenue Fund, the Bond Account, the Rebate Account, and the 

Refunding Account shall be held in the custody of the Town.  Each periodic payment shall 

be credited to the proper fund or account not later than the date designated therefor, except 

that when any such date shall be a day that is not a Business Day, then such payment shall 

be made on or before the next succeeding Business Day. 

(b) Securities or obligations purchased as an investment of moneys in the Water 

Revenue Fund or in any account thereof created by this Ordinance shall be deemed at all 

times to be a part of such fund or account, except to the extent otherwise provided herein.  

Moneys in the Water Revenue Fund, the Bond Account, the Rebate Account, and the 

Refunding Account not immediately needed may be deposited or invested and reinvested 

by the Town in deposits or investments that are at the time Permitted Investments, subject 

to the provisions of this Section and Section 23 hereof.  Interest and any profit realized or 

any loss resulting from investments in the Water Revenue Fund and the Bond Account 

shall be credited or charged to each such fund or account, respectively (provided that 

57

8.



 

 

17 
 

interest or profit realized from investments in the Bond Account shall be deemed credited 

to the Water Revenue Fund for accounting purposes, subject to immediate transfer back to 

the Bond Account).  Interest and profit realized and any loss resulting from investments in 

the Rebate Account shall be credited or charged to such account, except to the extent 

otherwise provided in Section 23 hereof. 

(c) No payment need be made into the Bond Account if the amounts in the 

Bond Account total a sum at least equal to the entire amount of the Outstanding 

Series 2020A Bonds, as to all debt service requirements (both accrued and unaccrued) to 

their respective maturities or to any redemption date or redemption dates on which the 

Town shall have exercised or shall have obligated itself to exercise its redemption option; 

in which case moneys in the Bond Account in an amount at least equal to such debt service 

requirements shall be used solely to pay such debt service requirements as the same become 

due; and any moneys in excess thereof in the Bond Account may be withdrawn and used 

for any lawful purpose, and thereafter nothing herein shall preclude the use of any other 

moneys derived from the Net Revenues for any lawful purpose, as determined by the Town. 

(d) Neither the Town nor any officer or employee of the Town shall be liable 

or responsible for any loss resulting from any investment or reinvestment made in 

accordance with this Ordinance. 

(e) The moneys in any fund or account herein authorized shall consist of lawful 

money of the United States or Permitted Investments or both such money and such 

Permitted Investments. Moneys deposited in a demand or time deposit account in or 

evidenced by a certificate of deposit of a commercial bank, appropriately secured according 

to the laws of the State, shall be deemed lawful money of the United States. 

(f) Nothing herein prevents the accumulation in any fund or account herein 

designated of any money at a faster rate than the rate or minimum rate, as the case may be, 

provided therefor. 

Section 22. Rates and Charges.  The Town covenants that it shall establish and collect 

rates and charges for the use or the sale of the products and services of the Enterprise, which 

together with other moneys available therefor (exclusive of any unappropriated fund balances), are 

expected to produce Gross Revenues for each calendar year that will be at least sufficient for such 

calendar year to pay the sum of: 

(a) all amounts estimated to be required to pay Operating Expenses during such 

calendar year; 

(b) a sum equal to 110% of (i) the debt service due on the Series 2020A Bonds 

for such calendar year and (ii) the debt service due during such calendar year on any Parity 

Obligations, in each case computed as of the beginning of such calendar year; 

(c) a sum equal to the debt service on any Other Water and Sewer Obligations 

and any Subordinate Obligations for such calendar year computed as of the beginning of 

such calendar year; and 

58

8.



 

 

18 
 

(d) amounts necessary to pay and discharge all charges and liens on the 

Enterprise currently coming due and required to be paid out of the Gross Revenues during 

such calendar year. 

In the event that Gross Revenues collected during a calendar year are not sufficient to meet 

the requirements of the rate covenant set forth above in this Section, the Town shall, within 90 

days of the end of such calendar year, cause an independent firm of accountants or consulting 

engineers, to prepare a rate study for the purpose of recommending a schedule of rates, fees and 

charges for the use of the Enterprise that in the opinion of the firm conducting the study will be 

sufficient to provide Gross Revenues to be collected in the next succeeding calendar year that will 

provide compliance with said rate covenant.  The Town shall within 6 months of receipt of such 

study, adopt rates, fees and charges for the use of the Enterprise, based upon the recommendations 

contained in such study, which provide compliance with said rate covenant. 

Section 23. Tax Covenants and Rebate Account. 

(a) The Town covenants for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds that the 

Town will not take or direct any action or omit to take or direct any action with respect the 

Refunding, the Enterprise, the Series 2020A Bonds, the proceeds of the Series 2020A 

Bonds, or any other funds of the Town if such action or omission (i) would cause the 

interest on the Series 2020A Bonds to lose its exclusion from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code; (ii) would cause interest on the 

Series 2020A Bonds to lose its exclusion from alternative minimum taxable income as 

defined in Section 55(b)(2) of the Code except to the extent such interest is required to be 

included in the adjusted current earnings adjustment applicable to corporations under 

Section 56 of the Code in calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income; 

(iii) would subject the Town to any penalties under Section 148 of the Code; or (iv) would 

cause interest on the Series 2020A Bonds to lose its exclusion from Colorado taxable 

income or Colorado alternative minimum taxable income under present Colorado law.  The 

Town further covenants, represents and warrants that the procedures set forth in any 

certificate signed by an officer of the Town implementing the above covenant shall be 

complied with to the extent necessary to maintain the exemption of interest on the 

Series 2020A Bonds from federal income taxation or to avoid the application of any 

penalties under the Code (except to the extent noted in the foregoing provisions of this 

paragraph).  All of the covenants contained in this Section shall remain in full force and 

effect, notwithstanding the payment in full or other defeasance of any of the Series 2020A 

Bonds, until all obligations of the Town in fulfilling such covenants have been met. 

(b) All of the amounts on deposit in any fund or account created under this 

Ordinance, and all amounts pledged to the payment of the Series 2020A Bonds, shall be 

invested in compliance with the requirements of Section 23(a).  Amounts on deposit in the 

Rebate Account shall be treated as committed for Operating Expenses, and shall not be 

subject to the lien and pledge of this Ordinance, to the extent that such amounts are required 

to be paid to the United States Treasury. 

(c) The Town shall withdraw from the Water Revenue Fund for deposit into 

the Rebate Account, as Operating Expenses, amounts required to be deposited into the 

59

8.



 

 

19 
 

Rebate Account from time to time.  The Town shall cause amounts on deposit in the Rebate 

Account to be forwarded to the United States Treasury at the times and in the amounts and 

manner set forth in the certificate implementing the covenants of this Section.  Upon receipt 

of an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that the balance in the Rebate Account 

is in excess of the amount required by Section 23(a) to be included therein, such excess 

shall be transferred to the Bond Account. 

Section 24. Additional Covenants and Agreements.  The Town hereby further 

irrevocably covenants and agrees with each and every Owner that so long as any of the 

Series 2020A Bonds remain Outstanding: 

(a) The Town shall, in accordance with prudent water and sewer utility practice 

(i) at all times operate, manage and maintain the Enterprise and the properties thereof and 

any business in connection therewith in an efficient and economical manner; (ii) maintain 

the Enterprise in good repair, working order and operating condition; (iii) from time to time 

make all necessary and proper repairs, renewals, replacement, additions, betterments and 

improvements with respect to the Enterprise so that at all times the business carried on in 

connection therewith shall be properly and advantageously conducted; provided, however, 

that this covenant shall not be construed as requiring the Town to expend any funds that 

are derived from sources other than the operation of the Enterprise or from receipts of the 

Enterprise that are not pledged hereunder, and provided further that nothing in this 

Ordinance shall be construed as preventing the Town from doing so. 

(b) The rates, connection or other fees, or other tolls or charges for the services 

furnished by, or for the use of, the Enterprise or any part, products or facilities thereof, 

within or without the boundaries of the Town, shall be reasonable and just, taking into 

account and consideration the cost and value of the Enterprise, the proper and necessary 

allowances for depreciation and the amounts necessary to comply with Section 22 hereof, 

including the payment of debt service on the Series 2020A Bonds, Parity Obligations, 

Subordinate Obligations and Other Water and Sewer Obligations. 

(c) The Town shall not sell or alienate any of the property constituting any part 

or all of the Enterprise in any manner or to any extent that would materially adversely affect 

the security provided for the payment of the Series 2020A Bonds unless such property has 

been replaced by other similar property of at least equal value or has ceased to be necessary 

for the efficient operation of the Enterprise; provided, however, that the proceeds of any 

such sale of property shall be included in Gross Revenues and shall be deposited into the 

Water Revenue Fund.  Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to adversely affect 

security interests in properties of the Enterprise granted prior to delivery of the 

Series 2020A Bonds. 

(d) The Town shall promptly render bills for services furnished by, or the use 

of, the Enterprise or any part, products or facilities thereof, shall use all legal means to 

assure prompt payment thereof, shall take such action as may be necessary to make 

delinquent rates, connection or other fees, or other tolls or charges for the services 

furnished by, or the use of, the Enterprise or any part, products or facilities thereof, a lien 

upon the real property served, and to the extent permitted by law, shall discontinue service 

60

8.



 

 

20 
 

to any user who becomes delinquent in the payment of such charges until the delinquency 

and all interest, costs and expenses incident thereto have been paid in full. Subject to the 

requirements of the Town’s rate covenant in Section 22 hereof, this Ordinance shall not be 

construed to prohibit the Town from providing service without charge to Town-owned 

property open to use by the public, nor from negotiating reasonable settlements of 

delinquent accounts. 

(e) The Town shall keep accurate records and accounts for the Enterprise, 

separate and distinct from its other records and accounts, in such manner that the Gross 

Revenues and the Net Revenues may at all times be readily and accurately determined. 

Such records of the Enterprise shall be maintained in accordance with Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles and shall be audited annually by an independent accountant, which 

audit may be part of the annual audit of the general records and accounts of the Town. 

(f) The Town shall maintain or cause to be maintained in force insurance 

policies with responsible insurers or self-insurance programs providing against risk of 

direct physical loss, damage or destruction of the Enterprise, at least to the extent that 

similar insurance is usually carried by utilities constructing, operating and maintaining 

water and sewer system facilities of the nature of the Enterprise, including liability 

coverage, all to the extent available at reasonable cost. Nothing herein shall be deemed to 

preclude the Town from asserting against any party a defense that may be available to the 

Town, including, without limitation, a defense of sovereign immunity. 

Section 25. Additional Bonds.  Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to restrict 

or limit the issuance by the Town of any obligations not secured by a lien on any portion of the 

Net Revenues, including, without limitation, Other Water and Sewer Obligations.  The following 

covenants, restrictions and limitations shall apply with respect to the issuance of obligations 

secured by a lien on all or any portion of the Net Revenues. 

(a) The Town covenants that it will not issue any obligations having a lien on 

all or any portion of the Net Revenues that is superior to the lien of the Series 2020A Bonds. 

(b) The Town covenants that it will not issue any Parity Obligations or 

Subordinate Obligations unless: (i) no Event of Default shall have occurred and be 

continuing, and the Town is then in substantial compliance with the covenants of this 

Ordinance; and (ii) the Town is then current in the accumulation of all amounts required 

by this Ordinance to be credited to the Bond Account and the Rebate Account, and all 

amounts required to be credited to other funds and accounts for any Parity Obligations, 

Subordinate Obligations or Other Water and Sewer Obligations at the time Outstanding. 

(c) Subject to the provisions of Section 25(e) concerning refundings, the Town 

covenants that it will not issue any obligations having a lien on all or any portion of the 

Net Revenues which is on a parity with the lien of the Series 2020A Bonds (i.e. Parity 

Obligations) unless the Net Revenues for any 12 consecutive months out of the 18 months 

preceding the month in which such Parity Obligations are proposed to be issued is at least 

equal to the sum of (i) 110% of the debt service for the Maximum Debt Service Year of 

(A) the Outstanding Series 2020A Bonds and, to the extent Outstanding during such 

61

8.



 

 

21 
 

12-month period, all Parity Obligations; and (B) the Parity Obligations proposed to be 

issued; and (ii) 100% of the debt service for the Maximum Debt Service Year of all then 

Outstanding Subordinate Obligations and Other Water and Sewer Obligations, plus 100% 

of any costs at the time due and owing with respect to any surety bond or similar repayment 

obligations and other amounts at the time due and owing with respect to a reserve or 

insurance policy for any Parity Obligations. For purposes of Sections 25(c) and (d), Net 

Revenues may be adjusted to reflect any rate increases adopted prior to the issuance of 

such proposed Parity Obligations. 

(d) The Town covenants that it will not issue any obligations having a lien on 

all or any portion of the Net Revenues that is subordinate to the lien of the Series 2020A 

Bonds (i.e., Subordinate Obligations) unless the Net Revenues for any 12 consecutive 

months out of the 18 months preceding the month in which such Subordinate Obligations 

are proposed to be issued were at least equal to 100% of the debt service for the Maximum 

Debt Service Year of (i) the Series 2020A Bonds and, to the extent Outstanding during 

such 12-month period, all Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations, and Other Water 

and Sewer Obligations; and (ii) the Subordinate Obligations proposed to be issued; plus 

100% of any costs at the time due and owing with respect to any surety bond or similar 

repayment obligations and other amounts at the time due and owing with respect to a 

reserve or insurance policy for any Parity Obligations or Subordinate Obligations. 

(e) If at any time after the Series 2020A Bonds, or any part thereof, shall have 

been issued and remain Outstanding, the Town shall find it desirable to refund any of such 

Series 2020A Bonds or any Parity Obligations, nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed 

in such a manner as to prevent such refunding, and any parity refunding obligations so 

issued to refund Series 2020A Bonds or Parity Obligations shall enjoy complete equality 

of lien with the portion of any obligations of the same parity issue or issues that are not 

refunded; provided, however, that, so long as any Series 2020A Bonds are Outstanding, 

refunding obligations secured by a lien on all or any portion of the Net Revenues may be 

issued on a parity with any portion of the Series 2020A Bonds or Parity Obligations 

remaining unrefunded only if: 

(i) Prior Consent.  The Town first receives the consent of the Owners 

of the unrefunded bonds, and the consent of Owners of any unrefunded Parity 

Obligations (or bond insurer thereof if so provided); or 

(ii) Requirements Not Increased.  The debt service payments on such 

refunding obligations do not exceed the debt service payments on the Series 2020A 

Bonds or Parity Obligations being refunded on any interest payment date, and the 

lien of the refunding obligations on all or any portion of the Net Revenues is not 

raised to a higher priority than the lien thereon of any obligations thereby refunded; 

or 

(iii) Parity Test.  The refunding obligations are issued in compliance 

with all applicable requirements of Sections 25(b) and (c) hereof. 

62

8.



 

 

22 
 

(f) A written certificate of the Mayor that the applicable conditions set forth in 

this Section are met (including any adjustment of Net Revenues based on a rate increase as 

provided in paragraph (c) above) shall be conclusively presumed to be accurate in 

determining the right of the Town to authorize, issue, sell and deliver Parity Obligations or 

Subordinate Obligations. 

Section 26. Events of Default. An Event of Default shall exist if: 

(a) the Town fails to pay the principal, premium, if any, or interest on any 

Series 2020A Bond or on any Parity Obligation when due; 

(b) the Town defaults in the due and punctual performance of any of the 

representations, covenants, conditions, agreements and other provisions contained in the 

Bonds or in this Ordinance on its part to be performed (other than those provided in 

Section 26(a) and except as otherwise provided in Section 30 hereof), and if such default 

continues for 30 days after written notice, specifying such default and requiring the same 

to be remedied, is given to the Town by the Owners of at least 25% in aggregate principal 

amount of the Series 2020A Bonds then Outstanding; provided that if such default cannot 

be cured within such 30 days, and during that period corrective action has commenced to 

remedy such default and subsequently is diligently pursued to the completion of such 

performance, an Event of Default shall not be deemed to have occurred. 

(c) The Town commences voluntary proceedings under any applicable federal 

or State bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law. 

Section 27. Remedies.  Upon the happening and continuation of any Event of Default, 

as provided in Section 26 hereof, then the Owners of not less than 25% in aggregate principal 

amount of the Series 2020A Bonds then Outstanding, including without limitation, a trustee or 

trustees therefor, may proceed against the Town to protect and enforce the rights of any Owner of 

Series 2020A Bonds under this Ordinance by mandamus or by other suit, action or special 

proceedings in equity or at law, in any court of competent jurisdiction, either for the specific 

performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or for the appointment of a receiver 

of the Enterprise (consent to such an appointment being hereby granted), or for any proper legal 

or equitable remedy as such Owners, trustee or trustees may deem most effectual to protect and 

enforce such rights, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing that may be unlawful or in violation of 

any right of any Owner of any Series 2020A Bond, or to require the Town to act as if it were the 

trustee of an express trust, or any combination of such remedies, or as otherwise may be authorized 

by any applicable statute or other provision of law; provided, however, that there shall be no right 

to acceleration of payment as a remedy for any Event of Default.  All such proceedings at law or 

in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained for the ratable benefit of all Owners of the 

Series 2020A Bonds. 

The failure of any Owner of any Outstanding Series 2020A Bond to proceed in any manner 

herein provided shall not relieve the Town or any of its officers, agents or employees of any 

obligation to perform or carry out any duty, obligation or other commitment herein.  Each right or 

privilege of any Owner of any Series 2020A Bond (or trustee therefor) is in addition and 

cumulative to any other right or privilege, and the exercise of any right or privilege by or on behalf 

63

8.



 

 

23 
 

of any Owner of any Series 2020A Bond shall not be deemed a waiver of any other right or 

privilege of such Owner.  Upon the happening of any Event of Default as provided in Section 26 

hereof, the Town will do and perform all proper acts on behalf of and for the Owners of the 

Outstanding Series 2020A Bonds to protect and preserve the security created for the payment of 

the Series 2020A Bonds and to insure the payment of the Series 2020A Bonds promptly as the 

same become due. If any remedial action is discontinued, the Town and the Owners of the 

Series 2020A Bonds shall be restored to their positions prior to taking such action. 

To the extent that additional remedies not provided for in this Ordinance (including, 

without limitation, any acceleration remedy) are provided for in the future with respect to Parity 

Obligations, the proceedings under which such Parity Obligations are issued shall provide that 

such remedies must be exercised for the equal and ratable benefit of the Series 2020A Bonds as 

well as such Parity Obligations. 

Section 28. Amendments. 

(a) The Town may amend or modify any provision of this Ordinance without 

the consent of or notice to the Owners, as follows: 

(i) to grant to or confer upon the Owners any additional rights, 

remedies, powers, authority or security that may lawfully be granted or conferred; 

(ii) to cure any formal defect, omission or ambiguity in this Ordinance; 

(iii) to add to the covenants and agreements of the Town set forth in this 

Ordinance; 

(iv) to subject to this Ordinance additional Gross Revenues, properties 

or collateral; or 

(v) to maintain the then current rating or to obtain any higher rating of 

the Series 2020A Bonds by one or more national or regional rating agencies. 

The Town may also amend or modify any provision of this Ordinance without any consent 

of or notice to the Owners and to effect any other changes in this Ordinance that, in the opinion of 

an attorney or firm of attorneys whose experience in matters relating to the issuance of obligations 

of states and their political subdivisions is nationally recognized, do not materially and 

prejudicially affect the rights of the Owner of any Series 2020A Bond. 

(b) In addition, the Town may otherwise amend or modify any provision of this 

Ordinance with the written consent of the Owners of not less than 75% of the principal 

amount of the Series 2020A Bonds then Outstanding; provided, however, that the written 

consent of the Owners of 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2020A Bonds then 

Outstanding and materially adversely affected thereby is required: 

(i) to create a lien upon the Net Revenues ranking prior to the lien 

created by this Ordinance; 

64

8.



 

 

24 
 

(ii) to reduce the principal amount of the Series 2020A Bonds required 

for consent to any amendment or modification of this Ordinance; or 

(iii) to establish priorities between Series 2020A Bonds; 

and further provided, that the maturity of any Series 2020A Bond may be extended, or 

the principal amount or interest rate of any Series 2020A Bond may be reduced, if and 

only if the written consent of the Owners of all Series 2020A Bonds materially adversely 

affected thereby is obtained. 

Section 29. Defeasance.  When the principal of and interest on any Series 2020A Bonds 

have been duly paid, the pledge and lien and all obligations hereunder with respect to such 

Series 2020A Bonds shall be discharged, and such Series 2020A Bonds shall no longer be deemed 

to be Outstanding within the meaning of this Ordinance.  There shall be deemed to be such due 

payment of any Series 2020A Bonds when the Town has placed in escrow or in trust with a 

commercial bank, located within or without the State and exercising trust powers, an amount 

sufficient (including the known minimum yield from Federal Securities in which such amount 

wholly or in part may be initially invested) to meet all requirements of principal of and interest on 

such Series 2020A Bonds as the same become due to their final maturities (including any amounts 

due pursuant to any mandatory sinking fund redemption) or upon any optional redemption dates 

as of which the Town shall have exercised or shall have obligated itself to exercise its prior 

redemption option.  The Federal Securities shall become due at or prior to the respective times on 

which the proceeds thereof shall be needed, in accordance with a schedule established and agreed 

upon between the Town and such bank at the time of the creation of the escrow or trust, or the 

Federal Securities shall be subject to redemption at the option of the holders thereof to assure such 

schedule. In the event that there is a defeasance of only part of the Series 2020A Bonds of any 

maturity, the Registrar shall, if requested by the Town, institute a system to preserve the identity 

of the individual Series 2020A Bonds or portions thereof so defeased, regardless of changes in 

Series 2020A Bond numbers attributable to transfers and exchanges of Series 2020A Bonds; and 

the Registrar shall be entitled to reasonable compensation and reimbursement of expenses from 

the Town in connection with such system. 

Section 30. Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  The Mayor or other appropriate 

officer of the Town is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver a certificate, 

agreement or other instrument to evidence the Town’s continuing disclosure undertaking (the 

“Undertaking”), if and as required by Section (b)(5)(i) of Securities and Exchange Commission 

Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the Town hereby 

covenants to comply with such Undertaking.  Any failure by the Town to perform in accordance 

with the Undertaking shall not constitute an Event of Default under Section 26 of this Ordinance, 

and the rights and remedies provided by Section 27 of this Ordinance upon the occurrence of an 

Event of Default shall not apply to any such failure. Each Owner (including for this purpose the 

beneficial owners of the Series 2020A Bonds) shall be beneficiaries of the Undertaking and may 

enforce specific performance of the obligations contained in the Undertaking directly against the 

Town by any judicial proceeding available. 

Section 31. Registrar and Paying Agent.  U.S. Bank National Association in Denver, 

Colorado, and Saint Paul, Minnesota, shall serve as the initial Registrar and Paying Agent for the 

65

8.



 

 

25 
 

Series 2020A Bonds.  The initial Registrar and Paying Agent (or any successor, upon 30 days 

written notice to the Town) may resign as Registrar or Paying Agent, or both (provided that no 

such resignation shall be effective until a successor Registrar and Paying Agent is appointed), and 

the Town shall appoint a successor Registrar or Paying Agent, or both, which successor Registrar 

or Paying Agent shall be a bank or trust company located in and in good standing in the United 

States and having shareholders’ equity (e.g., capital stock, surplus and profits), however 

denominated, not less than $10,000,000.  It shall not be required that the same institution serve as 

both Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder, but the Town shall have the right to have the same 

institution serve as both Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder. 

Section 32. Contract with Owners.  After the Series 2020A Bonds have been issued, 

this Ordinance shall constitute an irrevocable contract between the Town and the Owners of the 

Series 2020A Bonds, and, except as otherwise provided herein, shall be and remain irrepealable 

until the Series 2020A Bonds and the interest thereon shall have been fully paid, satisfied and 

discharged.  No provisions of any constitution, statute, charter, ordinance, resolution or any order 

or measure enacted after the issuance of the Series 2020A Bonds shall in any manner be construed 

as limiting or impairing the obligation of the Town to keep and perform the covenants contained 

in this Ordinance. 

Section 33. Parties Interested Herein.  Except for the provisions of Section 31 hereof 

with respect to beneficial owners of the Series 2020A Bonds and except for provisions confirming 

rights with respect to Parity Obligations, nothing in this Ordinance expressed or implied is intended 

or shall be construed to confer upon or to give or grant to any person or entity, other than the Town, 

the Paying Agent, the Registrar, and the Owners from time to time of the Series 2020A Bonds, 

any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Ordinance or any covenant, condition or 

stipulation hereof, and all covenants, stipulations, promises and agreements herein contained by 

and on behalf of the Town shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Town, the Paying 

Agent, the Registrar and each Owner from time to time of the Series 2020A Bonds. 

Section 34. Severability.  If any section, subsection, paragraph, clause or provision of 

this Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 

unenforceability of such section, subsection, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of 

the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 35. Statutes Superseded; Inconsistent Enactments Suspended.  Pursuant to 

Article XX of the State Constitution, all statutes of the State that might otherwise apply in 

connection with the Series 2020A Bonds are hereby superseded to the extent inconsistent with this 

Ordinance.  Any ordinances or other enactments of the Town inconsistent with this Ordinance or 

the transactions contemplated hereby are hereby superseded to the extent of such inconsistency 

and shall to such extent be inapplicable to such transactions. 

Section 36. Publication and Effective Date.  Following passage of this Ordinance on 

second reading and final passage, this Ordinance shall be recorded in the Town book of ordinances 

kept for that purpose, shall be authenticated by the signatures of the Mayor and the Town Clerk, 

and shall be published in full in the Delta County Independent.  The Town Clerk is hereby 

authorized to include in such publications any additional information the Town Clerk may deem 

necessary or appropriate.  This Ordinance shall take effect on the 30th day after publication. 

66

8.



 

 

26 
 

INTRODUCED on February 11, 2020. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED on February 25, 2020. 

 

 

[TOWN SEAL] 

  

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

By   

Town Clerk 

 

67

8.



 

 

A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

SERIES 2020A BOND FORM 

TRANSFER OF THIS SERIES 2020A BOND OTHER THAN BY 

REGISTRATION IS NOT EFFECTIVE 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF COLORADO, COUNTY OF DELTA 

TOWN OF PAONIA 

WATER AND SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BOND 

SERIES 2020A 

No. R-__ $_______ 

Interest Rate Maturity Date Dated CUSIP 

    

 April 1, 20__ _________ __, 2020  

 

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:  DOLLARS 

The Town of Paonia, in the County of Delta, State of Colorado (the “Town”), for value received, 

hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner (named above), or registered assigns, but solely from the 

sources and in the manner hereinafter provided, the Principal Amount (stated above) on the Maturity Date 

(stated above) unless this Series 2020A Bond shall have been previously called for redemption, and solely 

from said sources and in the manner hereinafter provided to pay interest on said Principal Amount from the 

date hereof at the per annum Interest Rate (stated above) until the Principal Amount is paid.  Interest on 

this Series 2020A Bond, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months, is 

payable semiannually on April 1 and October 1 in each year (the “Interest Payment Dates”) commencing 

October 1, 2020. 

The principal hereof is payable at maturity or prior redemption and upon presentation and surrender 

hereof at the office of the paying agent for the Series 2020A Bonds (the “Paying Agent,” presently U.S. 

Bank National Association in Denver, Colorado, and Saint Paul, Minnesota) or at the office of any successor 

paying agent appointed by the Town.  If upon presentation and surrender at or after maturity payment of 

this Series 2020A Bond is not made as herein provided, interest shall continue hereon at the Interest Rate 

until the Principal Amount hereof is paid in full. 

Interest on this Series 2020A Bond shall be paid on each Interest Payment Date (or, if such Interest 

Payment Date is not a business day, on the next succeeding business day), by check or draft mailed to the 

Registered Owner of this Series 2020A Bond at such Registered Owner’s address as it appears on the 

registration records maintained by the registrar and transfer agent for the Series 2020A Bonds (the 

“Registrar,” presently U.S. Bank National Association in Denver, Colorado, and Saint Paul, Minnesota), as 

68

8.



 

 

A-2 
 

of the close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month next preceding each Interest Payment 

Date (whether or not a business day) (the “Record Date”), regardless of any transfer or exchange of this 

Series 2020A Bond between such Record Date and such Interest Payment Date.  Any such interest not so 

punctually paid shall cease to be payable to the Registered Owner as of such Record Date, and shall be 

payable to the Registered Owner as of a Special Record Date for the payment of such defaulted interest. 

Such Special Record Date shall be fixed by the Registrar whenever moneys become available for payment 

of such defaulted interest, and notice of the Special Record Date shall be given to the Registered Owners 

of the Series 2020A Bonds of the series of which this is one (the “Series 2020A Bonds”) not less than 

10 days prior to the Special Record Date by first-class mail to each such Registered Owner as shown on the 

Registrar’s registration records on a date selected by the Registrar, stating the date of the Special Record 

Date and the date fixed for payment of such defaulted interest. 

The principal of and interest on this Series 2020A Bond are payable in lawful money of the United 

States of America, without deduction for the services of the Paying Agent or the Registrar.  The principal 

of and interest on this Series 2020A Bond shall be paid, and this Series 2020A Bond is transferable, free 

from and without regard to any equities, setoffs or cross-claims between the Town and the original or any 

intermediate owner hereof. 

The Series 2020A Bonds maturing on and after April 1, 2028, are callable for redemption prior to 

their respective maturities, at the option of the Town, on and after April 1, 2027, in whole or in part at any 

time thereafter (if in part, in integral multiples of $5,000, from any maturity or maturities or portions thereof 

as selected by the Town and by lot within a maturity, giving proportionate weight to Series 2020A Bonds 

in denominations larger than $5,000, in such manner as the Registrar shall determine), at a redemption price 

equal to the principal amounts so redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, without 

redemption premium. 

In the case of Series 2020A Bonds of a denomination larger than $5,000, each $5,000 of principal 

shall be treated as a separate Series 2020A Bond for purposes of determining which Series 2020A Bonds 

of a particular maturity are to be redeemed on a particular optional or mandatory sinking fund redemption 

date.  If less than all of the principal amount of any Series 2020A Bond is redeemed, the Registrar shall, 

without charge to the Registered Owner of such Series 2020A Bond, authenticate and issue a replacement 

Series 2020A Bond or Series 2020A Bonds for the unredeemed portion thereof. Redemption shall be made 

upon not more than 60 days nor less than 30 days mailed notice to each Registered Owner of Series 2020A 

Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration records maintained by the Registrar, in the 

manner and upon the conditions provided in the Ordinance.  Failure to give such notice by mailing to the 

Registered Owner of any Series 2020A Bond (or certain other entities as provided in the Ordinance), or any 

defect therein, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any other Series 2020A 

Bonds.  Redemption procedures are subject to applicable procedures under the below-described book-entry 

system. 

The Series 2020A Bonds are issued under the authority of Part 4 of Article 35, Title 31, Colorado 

Revised Statutes (“C.R.S.”); Article 45.1 of Title 37, C.R.S.; Part 2 of Article 57 of Title 11, C.R.S.  

Pursuant to Section 31 35-413, such recital conclusively imparts full compliance with all provisions of such 

statutory authority and the Series 2020A Bonds containing this recital are incontestable for any cause 

whatsoever after their delivery for value.  Pursuant to Section 11 57 210, such recital is conclusive evidence 

of the validity and the regularity of the issuance of the Series 2020A Bonds after their delivery for value. 

The Series 2020A Bonds are authorized and issued for the purpose of refunding, paying and 

discharging the Town’s outstanding the Water Revenue Bond, Series 2006, originally issued by the Town 

pursuant to Ordinance 2006-06 to finance the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a wastewater 

treatment facility as part of the Enterprise, as further defined and described in the Ordinance, all under the 

69

8.



 

 

A-3 
 

authority of and in full conformity with applicable provisions of the Constitution and laws of the State of 

Colorado (the “State”) and ordinances of the Town. 

The Series 2020A Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Town payable solely from the Gross 

Revenues of the Enterprise after deduction of Operating Expenses of the Enterprise (as further defined and 

provided in the Ordinance, the “Net Revenues”) and from moneys in the Series 2020A Bond Account 

established by the Ordinance.  The Series 2020A Bonds constitute an irrevocable and first lien (but not 

necessarily an exclusively first lien) on the Net Revenues, on a parity with all other Parity Obligations.  

Subject to conditions set forth in the Ordinance, additional obligations may be issued in the future having 

a lien on Net Revenues on a parity with or subordinate to the lien of the Series 2020A Bonds. 

The Series 2020A Bonds do not constitute a debt or indebtedness of the Town, Delta County, the 

State or any political subdivision of the State within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision 

or limitation, and are not secured by the full faith and credit of the Town or by any taxing power of the 

Town or any other government; nor do the Series 2020A Bonds constitute a multiple-fiscal year direct or 

indirect debt or other financial obligation within the meaning of Article X, Section 20 of the State 

Constitution, nor shall the Series 2020A Bonds be considered or held to be general obligations of the Town.  

The owners of the Series 2020A Bonds may not look to any general fund of the Town for the payment of 

the debt service requirements of the Series 2020A Bonds, nor do they have the right to require or compel 

the exercise of the ad valorem property taxing power or any other taxing power of the Town or of any other 

taxing entity for payment of the Series 2020A Bonds. 

This Series 2020A Bond is subject to all terms and provisions of the Ordinance but contains only 

a summary of certain terms and provisions thereof. Reference is hereby made to the Ordinance, and to any 

and all modifications and amendments thereof, for the complete terms and provisions to which this 

Series 2020A Bond is subject, including, among others, terms and provisions with respect to the custody 

and application of proceeds of the Series 2020A Bonds, the receipt and disposition of Gross Revenues of 

the Enterprise, the nature and extent of the security, the terms and conditions under which additional 

obligations secured by a lien on the Net Revenues may be issued, the rights, duties, obligations and 

immunities of the Town and its officers, and the rights and remedies of the Registered Owners of the 

Series 2020A Bonds; and by the acceptance of this Series 2020A Bond the owner hereof assents to all 

provisions of the Ordinance. 

To the extent and in the manner provided by the Ordinance, the provisions of the Ordinance may 

be amended or modified by action of the Town.  The pledge of the Net Revenues and the other obligations 

and covenants of the Town under the Ordinance may be discharged at or prior to the final maturity of the 

Series 2020A Bonds upon the making of provision for payment of the Series 2020A Bonds on the terms 

and conditions set forth in the Ordinance. 

This Series 2020A Bond must be registered in the name of the owner as to both principal and 

interest on the registration records maintained by the Registrar in conformity with the provisions stated 

herein and endorsed hereon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Ordinance. 

No transfer of this Series 2020A Bond shall be valid unless made on the registration records 

maintained by the Registrar by the Registered Owner or such Registered Owner’s attorney duly authorized 

in writing.  This Series 2020A Bond may be transferred or exchanged by the Registered Owner hereof upon 

surrender of this Series 2020A Bond for transfer or exchange at the office of the Registrar or a successor 

transfer agent, duly endorsed or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer or authorization for 

exchange in form satisfactory to the Registrar and executed by the Registered Owner hereof or such 

Registered Owner’s attorney duly authorized in writing.  Thereupon a new fully registered Series 2020A 

Bond or Series 2020A Bonds of authorized denomination or denominations of the same aggregate principal 

70

8.



 

 

A-4 
 

amount and maturity and bearing interest at the same rate will be issued to the transferee, or, if exchanged, 

the Registered Owner, subject to the terms and conditions and on payment of such charges as may be 

imposed by the Registrar as provided in the Ordinance.  The Town, the Paying Agent and the Registrar may 

deem and treat the person in whose name this Series 2020A Bond is registered (whether or not this 

Series 2020A Bond shall be overdue) as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of making payment and 

for all other purposes (except to the extent otherwise provided hereinabove and in the Ordinance with 

respect to Record Dates and Special Record Dates for the payment of interest, and except as otherwise 

provided in the Ordinance with respect to certain continuing disclosure matters), and neither the Town, the 

Paying Agent nor the Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

The Registrar will not be required to transfer or exchange (a) all or any portion of any Series 2020A 

Bond subject to prior redemption during the period beginning at the opening of business fifteen days before 

the day of the mailing by the Registrar of notice calling any Series 2020A Bonds for prior redemption and 

ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing; or (b) all or any portion of a Series 2020A Bond 

after the mailing of notice calling such Series 2020A Bond or any portion thereof for prior redemption. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the ownership of the Series 2020A Bonds is maintained 

in book-entry form by Cede & Co. (“Cede”), as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), 

(a) this Series 2020A Bond may be transferred in whole but not in part only to DTC or a nominee thereof 

or to a successor securities depository or its nominee; (b) the Town and the Registrar may treat and consider 

DTC as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of payment, for the purpose of giving notices of 

redemption and other matters with respect to this Series 2020A Bond, for purposes of registering transfers 

hereof, and for all other purposes whatsoever (except as otherwise provided in the Ordinance with respect 

to certain continuing disclosure matters); and (c) the Registrar shall pay all principal of and interest hereon 

only to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and 

discharge the obligations with respect to payment hereon to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  

NEITHER THE TOWN, THE PAYING AGENT NOR THE REGISTRAR WILL HAVE ANY 

RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO DTC’S PARTICIPANTS OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, 

TO THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES, OR TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNERS 

OF THE SERIES 2020A BONDS, WITH RESPECT TO PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF 

NOTICE FOR DTC’S PARTICIPANTS OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THEIR NOMINEES OR 

THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE SERIES 2020A BONDS. 

It is hereby recited, certified and warranted that all the requirements of law have been fully 

complied with by the proper officers of the Town in the issuance of this Series 2020A Bond. 

This Series 2020A Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 

security or benefit under the Ordinance until the Registrar shall have manually signed the Certificate of 

Authentication hereon. 

  

71

8.



 

 

A-5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, Colorado, acting by and 

through its Water and Sewer Enterprise, has caused this Series 2020A Bond to be executed with the manual 

or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the Town and to be attested by the manual or facsimile signature of 

the Town Clerk under an impression of the seal of the Town or a facsimile thereof, all as of the date set 

forth above. 

 

[TOWN SEAL] 

  

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

By   

Town Clerk 

 

 

REGISTRAR’S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This is one of the Series 2020A Bonds described in the within-mentioned Ordinance, and this 

Series 2020A Bond has been duly registered on the registration records kept by the undersigned as Registrar 

for such Series 2020A Bonds. 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Registrar 

By   

Authorized Representative 

 

Date of Authentication and Registration:  

______________________, 2020 

 

  

72

8.



 

 

A-6 
 

PREPAYMENT PANEL 

The following installments of principal (or portions thereof) of this Series 2020A Bond have been 

prepaid in accordance with the terms of the Ordinance authorizing the issuance of this Series 2020A Bond. 

Date of 

Prepayment 

 Principal 

Prepaid 

 Signature of Authorized 

Representative of DTC 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 

  

73

8.



 

 

A-7 
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

________________________________________________________________ the within Series 2020A 

Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

______________________________________________________ attorney to transfer the within 

Series 2020A Bond on the records kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the 

premises. 

Dated:     

   

  Signature Guaranteed: 

   

    

    

  Signature must be guaranteed by a member of a Medallion 

Signature Program 

   

  Address of transferee: 

   

    

    

    

   

  Social Security or other tax identification number of 

transferee: 

   

   

    

  NOTE: The signature to this Assignment must correspond 

with the name as written on the face of the within 

Series 2020A Bond in every particular, without alteration or 

enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

   

 

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a 

New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Registrar for registration of transfer, exchange, or payment, and any 

certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an 

authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is 

requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE 

HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the 

Registered Owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 

 

74

8.



 

 

4830-5536-4787\3 

EXHIBIT B 

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION OF BOND ORDINANCE — __________ __, 2020 

 

 

 

 

75

8.



TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO

ORDINANCE NO. _______

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE BY THE TOWN OF
PAONIA, COLORADO, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS WATER AND
SEWER ENTERPRISE, OF ITS WATER AND SEWER REVENUE
REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2020A, IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $[1,800,000], FOR THE PURPOSE OF REFUNDING, PAYING AND
DISCHARGING ITS OUTSTANDING WATER REVENUE BOND, SERIES
2006, ISSUED PURSUANT TO ORDINANCE 2006-06; DELEGATING
CERTAIN AUTHORITY TO TOWN OFFICERS IN CONNECTION WITH
THE COMPETITIVE SALE OF THE SERIES 2020A BONDS; PLEDGING
CERTAIN NET REVENUES FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE SERIES 2020A
BONDS; AND PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND OTHER DETAILS OF SUCH
SERIES 2020A BONDS.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA,
COLORADO, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE:

Findings.  The Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, Colorado (theSection 1.
“Board” and the “Town,” respectively) acting by and through its Water and Sewer Enterprise (the
“Enterprise”) hereby finds and determines as follows:

The Town, through the Enterprise, owns, operates and maintains a(a)
municipal water and sewer system.  Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution
permits the refunding of outstanding bonds at a lower interest rate without an election.
Accordingly, no election is necessary under Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado
Constitution to issue the below-defined Series 2020A Bonds.

It is necessary and desirable, and in the best interests of the health, safety(b)
and welfare of the people of the Town, to refund, at a lower interest rate, the Water
Revenue Bond, Series 2006 (the “Series 2006 Bond”), originally issued by the Town
pursuant to Ordinance 2006-06 to finance the acquisition, construction, and equipping of
a wastewater treatment facility as part of the Enterprise (defined below).

For the purpose of effecting such refunding, it is necessary to authorize the(c)
issuance of not to exceed $[1,800,000] aggregate principal amount of Water and Sewer
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A (the “Series 2020A Bonds”) upon the terms
provided herein.

The Series 2020A Bonds shall be payable solely from and secured by a(d)
pledge of and an irrevocable lien on the Net Revenues (as defined below).  The Series
2020A Bonds shall not constitute a debt or indebtedness of the Town within the meaning
of any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation and are not secured by the full
faith and credit of the Town or by any taxing power of the Town or any other
government; nor shall the Series 2020A Bonds constitute a multiple-fiscal year direct or

76

8.



indirect debt or other financial obligation within the meaning of Article X, Section 20 of
the Colorado Constitution; nor shall the Series 2020A Bonds be considered or held to be
general obligations of the Town; rather, the Series 2020A Bonds shall be payable only
from the Net Revenues.

Other than the Series 2006 Bond, there are no other outstanding bonds,(e)
notes or other obligations of the Town that are secured by a pledge of or a lien on the Net
Revenues, except for the amounts due pursuant to the Loan Agreement dated as of
November 5, 2008, and the Loan Agreement dated as of May 1, 2014, each between the
Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority and the Town.

There are no ordinances, resolutions, contracts, agreements, or other(f)
enactments or commitments of the Town that would prevent the Town from issuing and
performing its obligations with respect to the Series 2020A Bonds.

Pursuant to § 18-8-308, Colorado Revised Statutes (“C.R.S.”), all known(g)
potential conflicting interests, if any, with respect to the Series 2020A Bonds and the
expenditure of proceeds thereof have been disclosed to the Board and to the Colorado
Secretary of State.  No member of the Board has a personal or private interest, as such
terms are used in § 24-18-109, C.R.S., in the Series 2020A Bonds, the Refunding, or any
other subject matter of this ordinance (the “Ordinance”), and no member of the Board has
any interest, as such term is used in § 24-18-201, C.R.S., in the Series 2020A Bonds, the
Refunding or any other contract made or to be made pursuant to this Ordinance.

Definitions.  The terms defined in this Section shall have the meaningsSection 2.
assigned in this Section for all purposes of this Ordinance, Exhibit A hereto and any amendatory
or supplemental ordinance, except where the context by clear implication requires otherwise.
Other terms are defined elsewhere in this Ordinance.

“Bond” or “Bonds” includes the Series 2020A Bonds and any other designated bonds or
similar obligations of the Town as the context requires.

“Bond Account” means the Series 2020A Bond Account created and designated as such
pursuant to Section 18 hereof.

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or a day on which banks
in Denver, Colorado, are required or authorized to be closed.

“Capital Improvements” means the acquisition of land, easements, water and sewer rights,
facilities, equipment and materials (other than ordinary repairs and replacements), and the
construction, reconstruction or other acquisition of improvements, betterments and extensions,
for use by or in connection with the Enterprise; including, without limitation, any of the
foregoing that are constructed, reconstructed, acquired or owned on a cooperative basis with any
other entities.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date of delivery of
the Bonds, and applicable regulations and rulings thereunder.

 277

8.



“Enterprise” means the Water and Sewer Enterprise of the Town, including the municipal
water and sewer system now owned or hereafter acquired, whether situated within or without the
Town boundaries, including all present or future improvements, extensions, enlargements,
betterments, replacements or additions thereof or thereto.

“Event of Default” means any one or more of the events set forth in Section 26 hereof.

“Federal Securities” means (a) direct obligations of the United States for which its full
faith and credit are pledged (or ownership interests in the same); or (b) obligations the principal
of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States (or ownership
interests in the same).  No Federal Securities may be callable prior to their scheduled maturities
by the issuer thereof.

“Final Terms Certificate” means the certificate to be executed by the Mayor, dated on or
before the date of delivery of the Series 2020A Bonds, setting forth the determinations pursuant
to Section 15 of this Ordinance of (a) the winning bid for the Series 2020A Bonds, as determined
pursuant to Section 15 hereof; (b) the rates of interest on the Series 2020A Bonds and the
premium, if any, to be paid therefor pursuant to such winning bid; (c) the date upon which
payments of interest and principal will commence; (d) the aggregate principal amount and
principal amount of each maturity of the Series 2020A Bonds, if reduced as provided in Section
5(a) hereof, and any related reduction in the premium bid for the Series 2020A Bonds; (e) the
Minimum Reserve amount to be deposited in the Reserve Account to be established in
connection with the Series 2020A Bonds; and (f) the optional redemption terms of the Series
2020A Bonds.  The Final Terms Certificate shall be construed as if it were a part of this
Ordinance, provided that all provisions of the Final Terms Certificate shall be subject to the
parameters and restrictions contained in this Ordinance.

“Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” means accounting principles, methods and
terminology followed and construed for utilities and enterprises of governmental units, as
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, as amended from time to time.

“Gross Revenues” means all income and Gross Revenues directly or indirectly derived by
the Enterprise from the operation and use of the Enterprise, or any part thereof, including,
without limitation, any rates, fees (including plant investment fees), and charges for the services
furnished by, or the use of, the Enterprise, and all income attributable to any past or future
dispositions of property or rights or related contracts, settlements, or judgments held or obtained
in connection with the Enterprise or its operations, including investment income accruing from
moneys held to the credit of the Town’s Bond Account and from moneys required to be paid into
any fund or account pledged to the payment of the Series 2020A Bonds or Parity Obligations or
Subordinate Obligations, except to the extent otherwise provided in their respective authorizing
proceedings; provided however, that there shall be excluded from Gross Revenues any moneys
borrowed and used for providing Capital Improvements; any moneys and securities, and
investment income therefrom, in any refunding fund, escrow account, or similar account pledged
to the payment of any refunded bonds or other legally defeased obligations; and any moneys
received as grants or appropriations the use of which is limited or restricted by the grantor or
donor to Capital Improvements or other purposes inconsistent with the inclusion of such moneys
as Gross Revenues.

 378

8.



“Letter of Representations” means the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations from the
Town to The Depository Trust Company, or any similar agreement with any successor to The
Depository Trust Company, together with schedules thereto and materials referred to therein.

“Maximum Debt Service Year” means the single calendar year during the term of the
Series 2020A Bonds in which there is the greatest amount of total combined debt service on the
Series 2020A Bonds, Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations, Other Water and Sewer
Obligations, and the Parity Obligations or Subordinate Obligations proposed to be issued.

“Minimum Reserve” means the amount, calculated as of the initial delivery of the Series
2020A Bonds, equal to the least of (a) 10% of the proceeds of the Series 2020A Bonds, (b) 100%
of the maximum annual principal and interest to come due on the Series 2020A Bonds in any
calendar year, or (c) 125% of the average annual principal and interest requirements on the Series
2020A Bonds; provided that such amount may be reduced to the maximum amount permitted to
be capitalized by the issuance of tax-exempt obligations under applicable provisions of federal
tax laws and regulations.

“Net Revenues” for any period means the Gross Revenues during such period, minus
Operating Expenses during such period.

“Operating Expenses” means, for any particular period, all reasonable and necessary
current expenses of the Town, paid or accrued, for operating, maintaining, and repairing the
Enterprise , but only if such charges are made in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.  Such Operating Expenses include, but are not limited to, expenses for ordinary
repairs, renewals and replacements of the Enterprise, salaries and wages, employees’ health,
hospitalization, pension and retirement expenses, fees for services, materials and supplies, rents,
administrative and general expenses, including legal and overhead expenses of the Town directly
related to the administration of the Enterprise, insurance expenses, legal, engineering,
accounting, trustee, paying agent and financial advisory fees and expenses and costs of other
consulting and technical services, taxes (except as set forth in the following sentence), payments
in lieu of taxes and other governmental charges, payments to the United States Treasury pursuant
to Section 148(f) of the Code or similar requirement to pay rebate, fuel costs, installment
payments to make up operations and maintenance reserve shortfalls that may be required in
connection with any other current expenses or obligations required to be paid by the Town by
law, all to the extent properly allocable to the Enterprise.  Operating Expenses do not include
depreciation or obsolescence charges or reserves, amortization of intangibles or other
bookkeeping entries of a similar nature, interest charges and charges for the payment of principal,
or amortization, of bonded or other indebtedness of the Town, costs, or charges made therefor,
for capital additions, replacements, betterments, extensions or improvements to or retirements
from the Enterprise that under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles are properly chargeable
to the capital account or the reserve for depreciation, and do not include losses from the sale,
abandonment, reclassification, revaluation or other disposition of any properties of the Enterprise
nor such property items, including taxes and fuel, which are capitalized pursuant to the then
existing accounting practice of the Town.

“Other Water and Sewer Obligations” means obligations (whether currently outstanding or
hereafter issued) that are not secured by a pledge of or a lien on all or any part of the Gross

 479

8.



Revenues, but the debt service on which is required to be taken into account in establishing water
and sewer rates.

“Outstanding” or “outstanding” when used with reference to the Series 2020A Bonds (or
any other designated bonds or similar obligations of the Town) and as of any particular date,
means all the Series 2020A Bonds (or such other bonds or similar obligations) theretofore duly
issued except:

any Series 2020A Bond (or such other bonds or similar obligations)(a)
canceled or delivered to be canceled by the Town, or on the Town’s behalf, at or before
such date;

any Series 2020A Bond (or such other bonds or similar obligations)(b)
deemed to have been paid within the meaning of Section 29 hereof (or of any
corresponding section of the ordinance or other enactment authorizing the issuance of
such other bond or obligation); and

any Series 2020A Bond (or such other bonds or similar obligations) in lieu(c)
of or in substitution for which another bond or obligation shall have been executed and
delivered pursuant to Section 9 hereof (or of any corresponding section of the ordinance
or other enactment authorizing the issuance of such other bond or obligation).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Bonds the principal of or interest on which have been paid by
a bond insurer or similar entity shall be considered Outstanding as further provided in Section 29
hereof.

“Owner” or “Registered Owner” or “Bondholder” means any person who is the registered
owner of any Bond as shown on the registration records kept by the Registrar. As further
provided in Section 8 hereof, the initial Owner of the Series 2020A Bonds will be Cede & Co. as
nominee of The Depository Trust Company, the initial securities depository for the Series 2020A
Bonds.

“Parity Obligations” means any additional bonds, notes, interim securities or other
obligations currently outstanding, including the amounts due pursuant to the Loan Agreement
dated as of November 5, 2008, and the Loan Agreement dated as of May 1, 2014, each between
the Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority and the Town, or hereafter
issued by the Town having a lien on all or any portion of the Net Revenues that is on a parity
with the lien of the Series 2020A Bonds. “Parity Obligations” does not include the Series 2020A
Bonds.

“Paying Agent” means [U.S. Bank National Association in Denver, Colorado, and Saint
Paul, Minnesota], acting in the capacity as the paying agent for the Series 2020A Bonds (or such
other entity as may be appointed as a successor Paying Agent as provided in Section 31 hereof).

“Permitted Investments” means deposits or investments that are at the time legal deposits
or investments for the Town under applicable law.

 580

8.



“Purchaser” means the manager of the original purchasing account for the Series 2020A
Bonds as determined pursuant to Section 15 hereof based upon competitive bids received at the
public sale of the Series 2020A Bonds as provided herein.

“Rebate Account” means the Series 2020A Rebate Account created and designated as
such pursuant to Section 18 hereof.

“Record Date” means the close of business on the fifteenth day (whether or not a Business
Day) of the calendar month next preceding an interest payment date.

“Refunded Bonds” means the Series 2006 Bond.

“Refunding” means the refunding, payment and discharge of the Refunded Bonds.

“Refunding Account” means the Town of Paonia, Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2020A, Refunding Account created and designated as such pursuant to Section 17
hereof.

“Registrar” means [U.S. Bank National Association in Denver, Colorado, and Saint Paul,
Minnesota], acting in the capacity as the registrar and transfer agent for the Bonds (or such other
entity as may be appointed as a successor Registrar as provided in Section 31 hereof).

“Reserve Account” means the Series 2020A Reserve Account created and designated as
such pursuant to Section 18 hereof.

“Series 2006 Bond” means the Water Revenue Bond, Series 2006, issued pursuant to
Ordinance 2006-06 of the Town.

“Series 2020A Bonds” means the Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2020A of the Town, acting by and through the Enterprise, authorized by this Ordinance.

“Special Record Date” means a special date fixed to determine the names and addresses
of Owners for purposes of paying interest on a special interest payment date for the payment of
defaulted interest.

“State” means the State of Colorado.

“Subordinate Obligations” means one or more additional bonds, notes, interim securities
or other obligations, or series of any such obligations, issued by the Town having a lien on all or
any portion of the Net Revenues that is subordinate or junior to the lien of the Series 2020A
Bonds.

“Water Revenue Fund” means the existing fund of the Enterprise designated as the “Water
Revenue Fund” into which all Gross Revenues are directed to be deposited, as provided in
Section 18 hereof.

Ratification.  All actions (not inconsistent with the provisions of thisSection 3.
Ordinance) heretofore taken by the Town and the officers, employees and agents of the Town

 681

8.



directed toward the Refunding or the sale and delivery of the Series 2020A Bonds are hereby
ratified, approved and confirmed.

Authorization.  The Board has determined and hereby declares that theSection 4.
District is authorized to issue the Series 2020A Bonds to refund the Refunded Bonds pursuant to
the provisions of Article 35 of Title 31, C.R.S. (the “Revenue Bond Act”); Article 45.1 of Title
37, C.R.S.; Part 2 of Article 57 of Title 11, C.R.S. (the “Supplemental Act”); and all other laws
thereunto enabling.  In accordance with those laws and Article XX of the Constitution of the
State, the Board, on behalf of the Town, acting by and through the Enterprise, hereby authorizes
the issuance of the Series 2020A Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed
$[1,800,000] for the purpose of providing funds to finance the Refunding, including payment of
costs of issuance of the Series 2020A Bonds as provided herein.

Section 11-57-204 of the Supplemental Act provides that a public entity, including the
District, may elect in an act of issuance to apply all or any of the provisions of the Supplemental
Act.  The Board hereby elects to apply all of the Supplemental Act to the Series 2020A Bonds.

The Series 2020A Bonds will be issued under the authority of the Revenue Bond Act and
the Supplemental Act and shall so recite as provided in Exhibit A hereto.  Pursuant to Section
31-35-413, such recital conclusively imparts full compliance with all the provisions of such
statutes and that Series 2020A Bonds issued containing such recital are incontestable for any
cause whatsoever after their delivery for value.  Pursuant to Section 11-57-210, such recital shall
be conclusive evidence of the validity and the regularity of the issuance of the Series 2020A
Bonds after their delivery for value.

Series 2020A Bond Details.Section 5.

The Series 2020A Bonds shall be issued only in fully registered form (i.e.,(a)
registered as to payment of both principal and interest) in denominations of $5,000 and
integral multiples thereof (and further provided that no Series 2020A Bond may be in a
denomination that exceeds the principal coming due on the same maturity date and no
individual Series 2020A Bond may be issued for more than one maturity).  The Series
2020A Bonds shall be dated their date of issuance.  The Series 2020A Bonds shall be
numbered in such manner as the Registrar shall determine.  The Series 2020A Bonds
shall bear interest at the rates set forth in the Final Terms Certificate (computed on the
basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) from their date to maturity or
prior redemption per annum (which shall be market rates determined upon competitive
bidding) at a net effective interest rate not to exceed [3.50]%, payable on JuneApril 1 and
DecemberOctober 1 in each year commencing on [DecemberOctober 1, 2020] (unless
otherwise provided in the Final Terms Certificate), except that Series 2020A Bonds that
are reissued upon transfer, exchange or other replacement shall bear interest at the interest
rates shown below from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been
paid, or if no interest has been paid, from the date of the Series 2020A Bonds.  The Series
2020A Bonds shall mature on DecemberApril 1 in the years set forth in the Final Terms
Certificate, with the final maturity thereof not later than DecemberApril 1, 20[__]2044
(unless otherwise set forth in the Final Terms Certificate).

 782

8.



The principal of any Series 2020A Bond shall be payable to the Owner(b)
thereof as shown on the registration records kept by the Registrar upon maturity thereof
or prior redemption and upon presentation and surrender at the office of the Paying
Agent. If the principal of any Series 2020A Bond shall not be paid upon such presentation
and surrender at or after maturity or prior redemption, interest thereon shall continue to
accrue at the interest rate borne by said Series 2020A Bond until the principal thereof is
paid in full. Payment of interest on any Series 2020A Bond shall be made to the Owner
thereof by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent, on or before each interest payment
date (or, if such interest payment date is not a Business Day, on or before the next
succeeding Business Day), to the Owner thereof at such Owner’s address as it last appears
on the registration records kept by the Registrar on the Record Date; but any such interest
not so timely paid shall cease to be payable to the person who is the Owner thereof at the
close of business on the Record Date and shall be payable to the person who is the Owner
thereof at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such
defaulted interest.  Such Special Record Date and the date fixed for the payment of the
defaulted interest shall be fixed by the Registrar whenever moneys become available for
payment of the defaulted interest, and notice shall be given to the Owners of the Series
2020A Bonds not less than 10 days prior to the Special Record Date by first-class mail to
each such Owner as shown on the Registrar’s registration records on a date selected by the
Registrar, stating the date of the Special Record Date and the date fixed for the payment
of such defaulted interest.  The Paying Agent may make payments of interest on any
Series 2020A Bond by such alternative means as may be mutually agreed to between the
Owner of such Series 2020A Bond and the Paying Agent (provided, however, that the
Town will not be required to make funds available to the Paying Agent prior to the
interest payment dates stated herein). All such payments shall be made in lawful money
of the United States of America without deduction for the services of the Paying Agent or
Registrar.

Prior Redemption.Section 6.

Optional Redemption of the Series 2020A Bonds.  Unless otherwise set(a)
forth in the Final Terms Certificate, the Series 2020A Bonds maturing on DecemberApril
1, 20[__]2028, shall be subject to redemption prior to their respective maturities, at the
option of the Town, on and after DecemberApril 1, 20[___]2027, in whole or in part at
any time thereafter (if in part, in integral multiples of $5,000, from any maturity or
maturities or portions thereof as selected by the Town and by lot within a maturity, giving
proportionate weight to Series 2020A Bonds in denominations larger than $5,000, in such
manner as the Registrar shall determine), at a redemption price equal to the principal
amount of each Series 2020A Bond or portion thereof so redeemed plus accrued interest
thereon to the redemption date, without redemption premium.

Redemption in Part.  In the case of Series 2020A Bonds of a denomination(b)
larger than $5,000, each $5,000 of principal shall be treated as a separate bond for
purposes of determining which bonds of a particular maturity are to be redeemed on a
particular redemption date. If less than all of the principal amount of any Series 2020A
Bond is redeemed, the Registrar shall, without charge to the Owner of such Series 2020A

 883

8.



Bond, authenticate and issue a replacement Series 2020A Bond or Bonds for the
unredeemed portion thereof.

Notice and Effect of Redemption. Notice of any prior redemption under(c)
paragraph (a) or (b) of this Section shall be given by the Registrar in the name of the
Town by sending a copy of such notice, by first-class, postage prepaid mail, not less than
30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date, to each Owner of any Series
2020A Bond all or a portion of which is called for prior redemption at such Owner’s
address as it last appears on the registration records kept by the Registrar. Failure to give
such notice to the Owner of any Series 2020A Bond shall not affect the validity of the
proceedings for the redemption of any other Bonds. Such notice shall specify the
maturities of the Series 2020A Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed (if less than all
are to be redeemed), and the date fixed for redemption, and shall further state that on such
redemption date the principal due in connection with such redemption will become due
and payable at the office of the Paying Agent, and that from and after such date interest
on the Series 2020A Bonds to be redeemed will cease to accrue. Accrued interest to the
redemption date will be paid by check or draft mailed to the Owner (or by alternative
means if so agreed to by the Paying Agent and the Owner). Notice having been given in
the manner provided in this paragraph, the Series 2020A Bonds so called for redemption
shall become due and payable on the redemption date so designated, and interest on such
Series 2020A Bonds shall cease to accrue; and upon presentation thereof at the Paying
Agent, the Town shall pay any Series 2020A Bond or Bonds so called for redemption. All
provisions of this Section as to notices, selection of Bonds or portions thereof to be
redeemed, and other procedural provisions of this Section shall be subject to applicable
procedures of the book-entry system provided for in Section 8 hereof.

Execution and Authentication.Section 7.

The Series 2020A Bonds shall be executed in the name of and on behalf of(a)
the Town and shall be signed by the Mayor of the Town, shall be sealed with a manual or
facsimile impression of the seal of the Town, and shall be attested by the Town Clerk.
The signatures of the Mayor and the Town Clerk on the Series 2020A Bonds may be
manual or by facsimile.  The Series 2020A Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile
signatures of the officers in office at the time of the signing thereof shall be the valid and
binding obligations of the Town (subject to the requirement of authentication by the
Registrar as hereinafter provided) notwithstanding that before the delivery thereof, or
before the issuance thereof upon transfer or exchange, any or all of the persons whose
manual or facsimile signatures appear thereon shall have ceased to fill their respective
offices.  The Mayor and the Town Clerk shall, by the execution of a certificate pertaining
to the Series 2020A Bonds, adopt as and for their respective signatures any facsimiles
thereof appearing on the Series 2020A Bonds.  At the time of the execution of such
certificate, the Mayor and the Town Clerk may each adopt as and for their respective
facsimile signatures the facsimile signature of their respective predecessors in office in
the event that such facsimile signature appears upon any of the Series 2020A Bonds.

No Series 2020A Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless(b)
the certificate of authentication, substantially in the form provided in Exhibit A hereto,

 984

8.



has been duly executed by the Registrar.  The Registrar’s certificate of authentication shall
be deemed to have been duly executed by it if manually signed by a duly authorized
representative of the Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same representative
sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds issued hereunder.  By
authenticating any Series 2020A Bonds pursuant to this Ordinance, the Registrar and the
Paying Agent shall be deemed to have assented to the provisions of, and to have agreed to
abide by and perform the duties assigned to them in, this Ordinance.

Book-Entry System.  Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, theSection 8.
Series 2020A Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate single certificated fully
registered Series 2020A Bond for each of the maturities set forth in the Final Terms Certificate.
Upon initial issuance the ownership of each Series 2020A Bond shall be registered in the
registration records kept by the Registrar in the name of Cede & Co. (“Cede”), as nominee of The
Depository Trust Company (including its successors and assigns, “DTC”), which is hereby
designated as the initial securities depository for the Series 2020A Bonds under the DTC
book-entry system, which book-entry system is hereby authorized and agreed to by the Town.
The execution and delivery of the Representation Letter from the Town to DTC, relating to such
book-entry system, is hereby authorized (or, if a previously executed and delivered
Representation Letter applies to the Series 2020A Bonds, such execution and delivery is hereby
ratified and confirmed).  Notwithstanding any other provision hereof to the contrary, so long as
any Series 2020A Bond is registered in the name of Cede, as nominee of DTC, all payments and
all notices with respect to such Series 2020A Bond shall be made and given, respectively, in the
manner provided in such Representation Letter.

Registration, Transfer and Exchange.  Subject to the provisions ofSection 9.
Sections 5 and 8 hereof:

Records for the registration and transfer of the Series 2020A Bonds shall(a)
be kept by the Registrar, which is hereby appointed by the Town as registrar (i.e., transfer
agent) for the Series 2020A Bonds.  Upon the surrender for transfer of any Bond at the
office of the Registrar, duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment or
written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Registrar and duly executed by
the Owner or the Owner’s attorney duly authorized in writing, the Registrar shall enter
such transfer on the registration records and shall authenticate and deliver in the name of
the transferee or transferees a new Series 2020A Bond or Bonds of a like aggregate
principal amount and of the same maturity, bearing a number or numbers not previously
assigned. Series 2020A Bonds may be exchanged at the office of the Registrar for an
equal aggregate principal amount of Series 2020A Bonds of the same maturity of other
authorized denominations.  The Registrar shall authenticate and deliver a Series 2020A
Bond or Bonds that the Owner making the exchange is entitled to receive, bearing a
number or numbers not previously assigned.  The Registrar may impose reasonable
charges in connection with such exchanges and transfers of Series 2020A Bonds, which
charges (as well as any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect
to such exchange or transfer) shall be paid by the Owner requesting such exchange or
transfer.

1085

8.



The Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange (i) all or any(b)
portion of any Series 2020A Bond subject to prior redemption during the period
beginning at the opening of business 15 days before the day of the mailing by the
Registrar of notice calling any Series 2020A Bonds for prior redemption as herein
provided and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing; or (ii) all or any
portion of a Series 2020A Bond after the mailing of notice calling such Series 2020A
Bond or any portion thereof for prior redemption.

Except as otherwise provided with respect to payment of interest pursuant(c)
to Section 5 hereof, and except as otherwise provided in Sections 31 and 33 hereof, the
person in whose name any Series 2020A Bond shall be registered on the registration
records kept by the Registrar shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof
for the purpose of making payment thereof and for all other purposes. Payment of or on
account of principal or interest on any Series 2020A Bond shall be made only to or upon
the written order of the Owner thereof or such Owner’s legal representative, but such
registration may be changed upon transfer of such Series 2020A Bond in the manner and
subject to the conditions and limitations provided herein.  All such payments shall be
valid and effectual to discharge the liability upon such Series 2020A Bond to the extent of
the sum or sums so paid.

If any Series 2020A Bond shall be lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated, the(d)
Registrar shall, upon receipt of such evidence, information or indemnity relating thereto
as it or the Town may reasonably require, authenticate and deliver a replacement Series
2020A Bond or Bonds of a like aggregate principal amount and of the same maturity,
bearing a number or numbers not previously assigned.  If such lost, stolen, destroyed or
mutilated Bond shall have matured or shall have been called for redemption, or is about
to mature or be called for redemption, the Registrar may direct that such Series 2020A
Bond be paid by the Paying Agent in lieu of replacement.  The Registrar and the Town
may require that the Owner of any such Bond pay their reasonable fees, charges and
expenses relating to their activities pursuant to this paragraph.

The officers of the Town are authorized to deliver to the Registrar fully(e)
executed but unauthenticated Series 2020A Bonds in such quantities as may be
convenient to be held in custody by the Registrar pending use as herein provided.

Whenever any Series 2020A Bond shall be surrendered to the Paying(f)
Agent upon payment thereof, or to the Registrar for transfer, exchange or replacement as
provided herein, such Series 2020A Bond shall be promptly canceled and destroyed by
the Paying Agent or Registrar, and a record of such cancellation shall be furnished by the
Paying Agent or Registrar to the Town.

Negotiability.  Subject to the registration provisions hereof, the SeriesSection 10.
2020A Bonds shall be fully negotiable and shall have all the qualities of negotiable paper, and
the Owners thereof shall possess all rights enjoyed by the holders of negotiable instruments under
the provisions of the Colorado Uniform Commercial Code.  The principal of and interest on the
Series 2020A Bonds shall be paid, and the Series 2020A Bonds shall be transferable, free from

1186

8.



and without regard to any equities between the Town and the original or any intermediate Owner
of any Series 2020A Bonds or any setoffs or cross-claims.

Form of Series 2020A Bonds.  The Series 2020A Bonds shall be inSection 11.
substantially the form set forth in Exhibit A hereto, with such omissions, insertions,
endorsements and variations as to any recitals of fact or other provisions as may be required by
the circumstances, be required or permitted by this Ordinance, or as may be necessary or
appropriate to carry out the purposes of this Ordinance or to conform to the rules and
requirements of any governmental authority, of DTC (or any substitute securities depository as
provided herein), or any applicable usage or requirement of law (including, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, such modifications and additions as may be necessary or appropriate
to conform to the provisions of any amendments to this Ordinance and the completed Exhibit A
hereto).

Series 2020A Bonds Equally Secured.  Except as otherwise expresslySection 12.
provided in or pursuant to this Ordinance, the covenants and agreements herein set forth to be
performed on behalf of the Town shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the
Owners of any and all of the Series 2020A Outstanding Bonds, all of which, regardless of the
time or times of their issuance or maturity, shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or
distinction.

Pledge of Net Revenues; Special Obligations.Section 13.

The Town hereby irrevocably pledges the Net Revenues and moneys in the(a)
Bond Account, on the terms provided herein, for the payment of the principal of and
interest on the Series 2020A Bonds. Such pledge shall create an irrevocable and first lien
(but not necessarily an exclusively first lien) on the Net Revenues, on a parity with the
lien of other Parity Obligations that may be issued in the future as provided in Section 25
hereof.  This pledge shall be valid and binding from and after the date of the first delivery
of the Series 2020A Bonds, and the Net Revenues, as received by the Town, shall
immediately be subject to the lien of this pledge without any physical delivery thereof or
any filing or further act.  Net Revenues in amounts sufficient to make all of the payments
to the Bond Account and the Rebate Account are hereby appropriated for said purposes,
and said amounts for each year shall be included in the annual budget and appropriation
ordinances or measures to be adopted or passed by the Board in each year respectively
until the Series 2020A Bonds have been paid in full or otherwise discharged as herein
provided.  If the Board elects, for any reason, not to appropriate sufficient Net Revenues
to continue paying the principal of and interest on the Series 2020A Bonds for the
following fiscal year, the Town will have no further obligation to make payments of the
principal of or interest on the Series 2020A Bonds under this Ordinance.

The Series 2020A Bonds shall be special, limited obligations of the Town,(b)
payable and collectible solely out of Net Revenues and moneys in the Bond Account as
provided herein. The Series 2020A Bonds shall not constitute a debt or an indebtedness
of the Town, Delta County, the State or any political subdivision of the State within the
meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation, and are not secured by
the full faith and credit of the Town or by any taxing power of the Town or any other

1287

8.



government; nor shall the Series 2020A Bonds constitute a multiple-fiscal year direct or
indirect debt or other financial obligation within the meaning of Article X, Section 20 of
the Colorado Constitution; nor shall such obligations be considered or held to be general
obligations of the Town; rather, such obligations shall be payable only from the Net
Revenues.  The Owners of the Series 2020A Bonds may not look to any general fund of
the Town for the payment of the Series 2020A Bonds, nor do the Owners of the Series
2020A Bonds have any right to require or compel the exercise of the ad valorem property
taxing power or any other taxing power of the Town or of any other taxing entity for
payment of the Series 2020A Bonds.

None of the covenants, agreements, representations and warranties(c)
contained herein or in the Series 2020A Bonds shall ever impose or be construed as
imposing any liability, obligation or charge against the Town (except to the extent of the
Net Revenues and the moneys in the Bond Account pledged pursuant to paragraph (a) of
this Section) or its general credit; nor shall the Series 2020A Bonds be payable out of any
general fund of the Town, or any funds derived from taxation, or any funds other than the
Net Revenues.  The payment of the Series 2020A Bonds is not secured by any
encumbrance, mortgage or other pledge of any property, except the Net Revenues and the
moneys in the Bond Account as provided herein.

Preliminary Official Statement; Official Statement.  The proposed form ofSection 14.
Preliminary Official Statement of the Town relating to the issuance and sale of the Series 2020A
Bonds has been presented to the meeting of the Board at which this Ordinance is approved, and
is on file in the office of the Town Clerk.  The Preliminary Official Statement, in substantially
the form so presented with such additional changes and additions as are made prior to final
passage of this Ordinance or approved by the Mayor of the Town, is hereby deemed by the Town
to be a “nearly final official statement” for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and
Exchange Commission.  The distribution and use by the Purchaser for the reoffering of the Series
2020A Bonds to the public of the final Official Statement (the “Official Statement”), in
substantially the form of the Preliminary Official Statement, but with such amendments,
additions and deletions as are consistent with the facts, as are not inconsistent herewith and as are
approved by the Mayor as evidenced by the Mayor’s execution of the Official Statement, is
hereby authorized and approved, and the Mayor is authorized to sign the final Official Statement
on behalf of the Town.

Sale; Delegated Duties.  The Board will meet on March 24, 2020, at [6:30Section 15.
p.m.], MST, to determine and accept the winning bid for the Series 2020A Bonds, and to
determine and approve the final aggregate principal amount, annual principal maturities,
mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions, interest rates, and purchase price (i.e., premium,
if any) of the Series 2020A Bonds, which determinations and approvals must be consistent with
the parameters and restrictions of this Ordinance.  The determinations and approvals set forth in
this Section will be documented in the Final Terms Certificate.

As provided in Section 11-57-205, C.R.S., as amended, the delegations of authority
provided in this Section 15 shall be effective for 1 year from the final adoption of this Ordinance,
and if the Series 2020A Bonds are not sold within such 1-year period, the Series 2020A Bonds
may not be sold without additional Board authorization (which authorization, together with other

1388

8.



provisions supplemental to this Ordinance, may be by resolution adopted by the Board).  The
delegations provided for in this Section 15 shall be in addition to the delegations to Town
officers provided for in other provisions of this Ordinance.

The officers, employees and agents of the Town are hereby authorized and directed to
take all action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this Ordinance, which may
include, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (i) the preparation and delivery of the
Series 2020A Bonds; (ii) such action as shall be necessary or desirable to maintain the
tax-exempt status of the Series 2020A Bonds; (iii) the entering into and execution of the
Undertaking (as defined in Section 31 hereof) and appropriate agreements relating thereto; (iv)
the entering into and execution of appropriate agreements as to the security for the Series 2020A
Bonds; (v) the entering into and execution of appropriate agreements as to the book-entry system
for the Series 2020A Bonds; and (vi) the execution of such certificates as may be required by the
Purchaser, including without limitation certificates related to the following:  the signing of the
Series 2020A Bonds, the tenure and identity of municipal officials, the delivery of the Series
2020A Bonds and receipt of the purchase price therefor, the tax exempt status of the Series
2020A Bonds, the accuracy and completeness of the Official Statement, and relevant pending or
threatened litigation or the absence thereof.

Any officer of the Town designated as “acting” may take any action authorized or directed
by this Ordinance (including, without limitation, execution or authentication of the Series 2020A
Bonds) under the title of such officer’s office, with or without notation of the “acting”
designation.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, in the absence, unavailability or
disability of any officer of the Town authorized or directed to take any action pursuant to this
Ordinance (including, without limitation, execution or authentication of the Series 2020A Bonds
or execution of any other document, instrument or certificate), such action may be taken by an
officer designated as “pro tem” or “acting” for such office, or by any deputy or assistant for such
office.

Delivery of Series 2020A Bonds.  When the Series 2020A Bonds haveSection 16.
been duly executed and authenticated, they shall be delivered to the Purchaser on receipt of the
agreed purchase price.  The funds realized from the sale of the Series 2020A Bonds shall be
applied solely for the purposes set forth in Section 17 hereof and for no other purposes
whatsoever.  Neither the Purchaser nor any subsequent Owner of any of the Series 2020A Bonds
shall be responsible for the application or disposal by the Town, or any of its officers or
employees, of any such funds.

Disposition of Series 2020A Bond Proceeds.  The proceeds derived fromSection 17.
the sale of the Bonds, upon the receipt thereof, shall immediately be deposited and accounted for
in the following order of priority:

The amount necessary to pay outstanding principal and interest to their(a)
date of redemption shall be deposited in a special account hereby created in the Water
Revenue Fund to be designated as the “Town of Paonia, Water and Sewer Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A, Refunding Account” (the “Refunding Account”), and
immediately applied to prepay and redeem the Series 2006 Bond; moneys in the

1489

8.



Refunding Account, and interest or investment income thereon, are not included within
the Gross Revenues and do not constitute security for the Series 2020A Bonds.

The amount (if any) set forth in the Final Terms Certificate shall be(b)
deposited to the Reserve Account, together with any available amounts from the reserve
account for the Refunded Bonds;

There shall be deposited into the Bond Account and applied to the(c)
payment of interest on the Series 2020A Bonds (a) all accrued interest on the Series
2020A Bonds, if any and (b) any premium paid on the purchase of the Series 2020A
Bonds, to the extent set forth in the Final Terms Certificate and not applied to the
purposes stated above;

The amount necessary to pay or reimburse costs of the Refunding and(d)
other costs of issuance of the Series 2020A Bonds and other incidental costs necessary or
appropriate in connection with the Series 2020A Bonds shall be applied thereto; and

The remaining proceeds of the Series 2020A Bonds shall be deposited, to(e)
the extent not needed for the above purposes, into the Bond Account and applied to the
payment of interest on the Series 2020A Bonds.

Flow of Funds.Section 18.

The Town hereby creates the following special accounts:(a)

the “Series 2020A Rebate Account” (the “Rebate Account”);(i)

the “Series 2020A Bond Account” (the “Bond Account”); and(ii)

the “Series 2020A Reserve Account” (the “Reserve Account”).(iii)

The Town shall credit to the Water Revenue Fund all Gross Revenues(b)
immediately upon receipt.  The Gross Revenues shall be applied, on or before the last day
of each month, first to the payment of Operating Expenses as they become due and
payable, including payments to the Rebate Account as required by Section 23 hereof.
After such payments, the Town shall apply the remaining moneys (i.e., the Net Revenues)
in the following order of priority:

FIRST, to the credit of the Bond Account in the amounts and at the times
required by Section 19 hereof; and concurrently, to the credit of any similar fund
or account (including any sinking fund) hereafter created for the payment of Parity
Obligations, in the amounts and at the times required in connection with such
Parity Obligations;

SECOND, to the replenishment of the Reserve Account, and concurrently,
to the credit of any reserve or similar fund or account created to secure other
Parity Obligations (or for repayment pursuant to any insurance policy, surety
bond, letter or line of credit, or similar credit facility utilized in lieu of such fund

1590

8.



or account), in the amounts and at the times required in connection with such
Parity Obligations;

THIRD, to the credit of any other funds or accounts hereafter established
for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on any
Subordinate Obligations, including any sinking fund, reserve fund or similar fund
or account established therefor, in the amounts and at the times required by the
ordinance or other enactment authorizing the issuance of such Subordinate
Obligations; and

FOURTH, to the credit of any other fund or account as may be designated
by the Town, to be used for any lawful purpose (which may include, without
limitation, the payment of debt service on any Other Water and Sewer
Obligations).

Bond Account.  The Town shall credit to the Bond Account from the NetSection 19.
Revenues, the following amounts at the following times:

monthly, commencing no later than the last day of the month immediately(a)
succeeding the delivery of the Series 2020A Bonds, an amount in equal monthly
installments necessary, together with any moneys therein and available therefor, to pay
the interest due and payable on the Outstanding Series 2020A Bonds on the next
succeeding interest payment date; and

monthly, commencing no later than the last day of the month immediately(b)
succeeding the delivery of the Series 2020A Bonds, an amount in equal monthly
installments necessary, together with any moneys therein and available therefor, to pay
the principal due and payable on the Outstanding Series 2020A Bonds on the next
succeeding principal payment date.

Net Revenues sufficient to make payments of principal and interest due on the Series 2020A
Bonds shall be deposited with the Paying Agent not later than the Business Day prior to the
payment date.

The Bond Account shall secure only the Series 2020A Bonds and not any Parity
Obligations or Subordinate Obligations.

Reserve Account.  The Reserve Account shall be maintained in an amountSection 20.
equal to the Minimum Reserve as a continuing reserve to be used to prevent deficiencies in the
payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2020A Bonds resulting from the failure to
credit to the Bond Account sufficient funds to pay such principal and interest as the same become
due.  The Reserve Account shall secure only the Series 2020A Bonds and not any Parity
Obligations or Subordinate Obligations.  In the event the amounts credited to the Bond Account
are insufficient to pay the principal of or interest on the Series 2020A Bonds when due, the Town
shall transfer from the Reserve Account to the Bond Account an amount which, when combined
with amounts in the Bond Account, will be sufficient to make such payments when due.

General Administration of Funds and Accounts.Section 21.

1691

8.



The Water Revenue Fund, the Bond Account, the Rebate Account, and the(a)
Refunding Account shall be held in the custody of the Town.  Each periodic payment
shall be credited to the proper fund or account not later than the date designated therefor,
except that when any such date shall be a day that is not a Business Day, then such
payment shall be made on or before the next succeeding Business Day.

Securities or obligations purchased as an investment of moneys in the(b)
Water Revenue Fund or in any account thereof created by this Ordinance shall be deemed
at all times to be a part of such fund or account, except to the extent otherwise provided
herein.  Moneys in the Water Revenue Fund, the Bond Account, the Rebate Account, and
the Refunding Account not immediately needed may be deposited or invested and
reinvested by the Town in deposits or investments that are at the time Permitted
Investments, subject to the provisions of this Section and Section 23 hereof.  Interest and
any profit realized or any loss resulting from investments in the Water Revenue Fund and
the Bond Account shall be credited or charged to each such fund or account, respectively
(provided that interest or profit realized from investments in the Bond Account shall be
deemed credited to the Water Revenue Fund for accounting purposes, subject to
immediate transfer back to the Bond Account).  Interest and profit realized and any loss
resulting from investments in the Rebate Account shall be credited or charged to such
account, except to the extent otherwise provided in Section 23 hereof.

No payment need be made into the Bond Account if the amounts in the(c)
Bond Account total a sum at least equal to the entire amount of the Outstanding Series
2020A Bonds, as to all debt service requirements (both accrued and unaccrued) to their
respective maturities or to any redemption date or redemption dates on which the Town
shall have exercised or shall have obligated itself to exercise its redemption option; in
which case moneys in the Bond Account in an amount at least equal to such debt service
requirements shall be used solely to pay such debt service requirements as the same
become due; and any moneys in excess thereof in the Bond Account may be withdrawn
and used for any lawful purpose, and thereafter nothing herein shall preclude the use of
any other moneys derived from the Net Revenues for any lawful purpose, as determined
by the Town.

Neither the Town nor any officer or employee of the Town shall be liable(d)
or responsible for any loss resulting from any investment or reinvestment made in
accordance with this Ordinance.

The moneys in any fund or account herein authorized shall consist of(e)
lawful money of the United States or Permitted Investments or both such money and such
Permitted Investments. Moneys deposited in a demand or time deposit account in or
evidenced by a certificate of deposit of a commercial bank, appropriately secured
according to the laws of the State, shall be deemed lawful money of the United States.

Nothing herein prevents the accumulation in any fund or account herein(f)
designated of any money at a faster rate than the rate or minimum rate, as the case may
be, provided therefor.

1792

8.



Rates and Charges.  The Town covenants that it shall establish and collectSection 22.
rates and charges for the use or the sale of the products and services of the Enterprise, which
together with other moneys available therefor (exclusive of any unappropriated fund balances),
are expected to produce Gross Revenues for each calendar year that will be at least sufficient for
such calendar year to pay the sum of:

all amounts estimated to be required to pay Operating Expenses during(a)
such calendar year;

a sum equal to 110% of (i) the debt service due on the Series 2020A(b)
Bonds for such calendar year and (ii) the debt service due during such calendar year on
any Parity Obligations, in each case computed as of the beginning of such calendar year;

a sum equal to the debt service on any Other Water and Sewer Obligations(c)
and any Subordinate Obligations for such calendar year computed as of the beginning of
such calendar year; and

amounts necessary to pay and discharge all charges and liens on the(d)
Enterprise currently coming due and required to be paid out of the Gross Revenues during
such calendar year.

In the event that Gross Revenues collected during a calendar year are not sufficient to
meet the requirements of the rate covenant set forth above in this Section, the Town shall, within
90 days of the end of such calendar year, cause an independent firm of accountants or consulting
engineers, to prepare a rate study for the purpose of recommending a schedule of rates, fees and
charges for the use of the Enterprise that in the opinion of the firm conducting the study will be
sufficient to provide Gross Revenues to be collected in the next succeeding calendar year that
will provide compliance with said rate covenant.  The Town shall within 6 months of receipt of
such study, adopt rates, fees and charges for the use of the Enterprise, based upon the
recommendations contained in such study, which provide compliance with said rate covenant.

Tax Covenants and Rebate Account.Section 23.

The Town covenants for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds that the(a)
Town will not take or direct any action or omit to take or direct any action with respect
the Refunding, the Enterprise, the Series 2020A Bonds, the proceeds of the Series 2020A
Bonds, or any other funds of the Town if such action or omission (i) would cause the
interest on the Series 2020A Bonds to lose its exclusion from gross income for federal
income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code; (ii) would cause interest on the
Series 2020A Bonds to lose its exclusion from alternative minimum taxable income as
defined in Section 55(b)(2) of the Code except to the extent such interest is required to be
included in the adjusted current earnings adjustment applicable to corporations under
Section 56 of the Code in calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income; (iii)
would subject the Town to any penalties under Section 148 of the Code; or (iv) would
cause interest on the Series 2020A Bonds to lose its exclusion from Colorado taxable
income or Colorado alternative minimum taxable income under present Colorado law.
The Town further covenants, represents and warrants that the procedures set forth in any

1893

8.



certificate signed by an officer of the Town implementing the above covenant shall be
complied with to the extent necessary to maintain the exemption of interest on the Series
2020A Bonds from federal income taxation or to avoid the application of any penalties
under the Code (except to the extent noted in the foregoing provisions of this paragraph).
All of the covenants contained in this Section shall remain in full force and effect,
notwithstanding the payment in full or other defeasance of any of the Series 2020A
Bonds, until all obligations of the Town in fulfilling such covenants have been met.

All of the amounts on deposit in any fund or account created under this(b)
Ordinance, and all amounts pledged to the payment of the Series 2020A Bonds, shall be
invested in compliance with the requirements of Section 23(a).  Amounts on deposit in
the Rebate Account shall be treated as committed for Operating Expenses, and shall not
be subject to the lien and pledge of this Ordinance, to the extent that such amounts are
required to be paid to the United States Treasury.

The Town shall withdraw from the Water Revenue Fund for deposit into(c)
the Rebate Account, as Operating Expenses, amounts required to be deposited into the
Rebate Account from time to time.  The Town shall cause amounts on deposit in the
Rebate Account to be forwarded to the United States Treasury at the times and in the
amounts and manner set forth in the certificate implementing the covenants of this
Section.  Upon receipt of an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that the
balance in the Rebate Account is in excess of the amount required by Section 23(a) to be
included therein, such excess shall be transferred to the Bond Account.

Additional Covenants and Agreements.  The Town hereby furtherSection 24.
irrevocably covenants and agrees with each and every Owner that so long as any of the Series
2020A Bonds remain Outstanding:

The Town shall, in accordance with prudent water and sewer utility(a)
practice (i) at all times operate, manage and maintain the Enterprise and the properties
thereof and any business in connection therewith in an efficient and economical manner;
(ii) maintain the Enterprise in good repair, working order and operating condition; (iii)
from time to time make all necessary and proper repairs, renewals, replacement,
additions, betterments and improvements with respect to the Enterprise so that at all times
the business carried on in connection therewith shall be properly and advantageously
conducted; provided, however, that this covenant shall not be construed as requiring the
Town to expend any funds that are derived from sources other than the operation of the
Enterprise or from receipts of the Enterprise that are not pledged hereunder, and provided
further that nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed as preventing the Town from
doing so.

The rates, connection or other fees, or other tolls or charges for the(b)
services furnished by, or for the use of, the Enterprise or any part, products or facilities
thereof, within or without the boundaries of the Town, shall be reasonable and just, taking
into account and consideration the cost and value of the Enterprise, the proper and
necessary allowances for depreciation and the amounts necessary to comply with Section

1994

8.



22 hereof, including the payment of debt service on the Series 2020A Bonds, Parity
Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and Other Water and Sewer Obligations.

The Town shall not sell or alienate any of the property constituting any(c)
part or all of the Enterprise in any manner or to any extent that would materially adversely
affect the security provided for the payment of the Series 2020A Bonds unless such
property has been replaced by other similar property of at least equal value or has ceased
to be necessary for the efficient operation of the Enterprise; provided, however, that the
proceeds of any such sale of property shall be included in Gross Revenues and shall be
deposited into the Water Revenue Fund.  Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to
adversely affect security interests in properties of the Enterprise granted prior to delivery
of the Series 2020A Bonds.

The Town shall promptly render bills for services furnished by, or the use(d)
of, the Enterprise or any part, products or facilities thereof, shall use all legal means to
assure prompt payment thereof, shall take such action as may be necessary to make
delinquent rates, connection or other fees, or other tolls or charges for the services
furnished by, or the use of, the Enterprise or any part, products or facilities thereof, a lien
upon the real property served, and to the extent permitted by law, shall discontinue
service to any user who becomes delinquent in the payment of such charges until the
delinquency and all interest, costs and expenses incident thereto have been paid in full.
Subject to the requirements of the Town’s rate covenant in Section 22 hereof, this
Ordinance shall not be construed to prohibit the Town from providing service without
charge to Town-owned property open to use by the public, nor from negotiating
reasonable settlements of delinquent accounts.

The Town shall keep accurate records and accounts for the Enterprise,(e)
separate and distinct from its other records and accounts, in such manner that the Gross
Revenues and the Net Revenues may at all times be readily and accurately determined.
Such records of the Enterprise shall be maintained in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and shall be audited annually by an independent
accountant, which audit may be part of the annual audit of the general records and
accounts of the Town.

The Town shall maintain or cause to be maintained in force insurance(f)
policies with responsible insurers or self-insurance programs providing against risk of
direct physical loss, damage or destruction of the Enterprise, at least to the extent that
similar insurance is usually carried by utilities constructing, operating and maintaining
water and sewer system facilities of the nature of the Enterprise, including liability
coverage, all to the extent available at reasonable cost. Nothing herein shall be deemed to
preclude the Town from asserting against any party a defense that may be available to the
Town, including, without limitation, a defense of sovereign immunity.

Additional Bonds.  Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to restrictSection 25.
or limit the issuance by the Town of any obligations not secured by a lien on any portion of the
Net Revenues, including, without limitation, Other Water and Sewer Obligations.  The following

2095

8.



covenants, restrictions and limitations shall apply with respect to the issuance of obligations
secured by a lien on all or any portion of the Net Revenues.

The Town covenants that it will not issue any obligations having a lien on(a)
all or any portion of the Net Revenues that is superior to the lien of the Series 2020A
Bonds.

The Town covenants that it will not issue any Parity Obligations or(b)
Subordinate Obligations unless: (i) no Event of Default shall have occurred and be
continuing, and the Town is then in substantial compliance with the covenants of this
Ordinance; and (ii) the Town is then current in the accumulation of all amounts required
by this Ordinance to be credited to the Bond Account and the Rebate Account, and all
amounts required to be credited to other funds and accounts for any Parity Obligations,
Subordinate Obligations or Other Water and Sewer Obligations at the time Outstanding.

Subject to the provisions of Section 25(e) concerning refundings, the(c)
Town covenants that it will not issue any obligations having a lien on all or any portion of
the Net Revenues which is on a parity with the lien of the Series 2020A Bonds (i.e. Parity
Obligations) unless the Net Revenues for any 12 consecutive months out of the 18
months preceding the month in which such Parity Obligations are proposed to be issued is
at least equal to the sum of (i) 110% of the debt service for the Maximum Debt Service
Year of (A) the Outstanding Series 2020A Bonds and, to the extent Outstanding during
such 12-month period, all Parity Obligations; and (B) the Parity Obligations proposed to
be issued; and (ii) 100% of the debt service for the Maximum Debt Service Year of all
then Outstanding Subordinate Obligations and Other Water and Sewer Obligations, plus
100% of any costs at the time due and owing with respect to any surety bond or similar
repayment obligations and other amounts at the time due and owing with respect to a
reserve or insurance policy for any Parity Obligations. For purposes of Sections 25(c) and
(d), Net Revenues may be adjusted to reflect any rate increases adopted prior to the
issuance of such proposed Parity Obligations.

The Town covenants that it will not issue any obligations having a lien on(d)
all or any portion of the Net Revenues that is subordinate to the lien of the Series 2020A
Bonds (i.e., Subordinate Obligations) unless the Net Revenues for any 12 consecutive
months out of the 18 months preceding the month in which such Subordinate Obligations
are proposed to be issued were at least equal to 100% of the debt service for the
Maximum Debt Service Year of (i) the Series 2020A Bonds and, to the extent
Outstanding during such 12-month period, all Parity Obligations, Subordinate
Obligations, and Other Water and Sewer Obligations; and (ii) the Subordinate
Obligations proposed to be issued; plus 100% of any costs at the time due and owing with
respect to any surety bond or similar repayment obligations and other amounts at the time
due and owing with respect to a reserve or insurance policy for any Parity Obligations or
Subordinate Obligations.

If at any time after the Series 2020A Bonds, or any part thereof, shall have(e)
been issued and remain Outstanding, the Town shall find it desirable to refund any of
such Series 2020A Bonds or any Parity Obligations, nothing in this Ordinance shall be

2196

8.



construed in such a manner as to prevent such refunding, and any parity refunding
obligations so issued to refund Series 2020A Bonds or Parity Obligations shall enjoy
complete equality of lien with the portion of any obligations of the same parity issue or
issues that are not refunded; provided, however, that, so long as any Series 2020A Bonds
are Outstanding, refunding obligations secured by a lien on all or any portion of the Net
Revenues may be issued on a parity with any portion of the Series 2020A Bonds or Parity
Obligations remaining unrefunded only if:

Prior Consent.  The Town first receives the consent of the Owners(i)
of the unrefunded bonds, and the consent of Owners of any unrefunded Parity
Obligations (or bond insurer thereof if so provided); or

Requirements Not Increased.  The debt service payments on such(ii)
refunding obligations do not exceed the debt service payments on the Series
2020A Bonds or Parity Obligations being refunded on any interest payment date,
and the lien of the refunding obligations on all or any portion of the Net Revenues
is not raised to a higher priority than the lien thereon of any obligations thereby
refunded; or

Parity Test.  The refunding obligations are issued in compliance(iii)
with all applicable requirements of Sections 25(b) and (c) hereof.

A written certificate of the Mayor that the applicable conditions set forth(f)
in this Section are met (including any adjustment of Net Revenues based on a rate
increase as provided in paragraph (c) above) shall be conclusively presumed to be
accurate in determining the right of the Town to authorize, issue, sell and deliver Parity
Obligations or Subordinate Obligations.

Events of Default. An Event of Default shall exist if:Section 26.

the Town fails to pay the principal, premium, if any, or interest on any(a)
Series 2020A Bond or on any Parity Obligation when due;

the Town defaults in the due and punctual performance of any of the(b)
representations, covenants, conditions, agreements and other provisions contained in the
Bonds or in this Ordinance on its part to be performed (other than those provided in
Section 26(a) and except as otherwise provided in Section 30 hereof), and if such default
continues for 30 days after written notice, specifying such default and requiring the same
to be remedied, is given to the Town by the Owners of at least 25% in aggregate principal
amount of the Series 2020A Bonds then Outstanding; provided that if such default cannot
be cured within such 30 days, and during that period corrective action has commenced to
remedy such default and subsequently is diligently pursued to the completion of such
performance, an Event of Default shall not be deemed to have occurred.

The Town commences voluntary proceedings under any applicable federal(c)
or State bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law.

2297

8.



Remedies.  Upon the happening and continuation of any Event of Default,Section 27.
as provided in Section 26 hereof, then the Owners of not less than 25% in aggregate principal
amount of the Series 2020A Bonds then Outstanding, including without limitation, a trustee or
trustees therefor, may proceed against the Town to protect and enforce the rights of any Owner of
Series 2020A Bonds under this Ordinance by mandamus or by other suit, action or special
proceedings in equity or at law, in any court of competent jurisdiction, either for the specific
performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or for the appointment of a receiver
of the Enterprise (consent to such an appointment being hereby granted), or for any proper legal
or equitable remedy as such Owners, trustee or trustees may deem most effectual to protect and
enforce such rights, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing that may be unlawful or in violation of
any right of any Owner of any Series 2020A Bond, or to require the Town to act as if it were the
trustee of an express trust, or any combination of such remedies, or as otherwise may be
authorized by any applicable statute or other provision of law; provided, however, that there shall
be no right to acceleration of payment as a remedy for any Event of Default.  All such
proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained for the ratable benefit of
all Owners of the Series 2020A Bonds.

The failure of any Owner of any Outstanding Series 2020A Bond to proceed in any
manner herein provided shall not relieve the Town or any of its officers, agents or employees of
any obligation to perform or carry out any duty, obligation or other commitment herein.  Each
right or privilege of any Owner of any Series 2020A Bond (or trustee therefor) is in addition and
cumulative to any other right or privilege, and the exercise of any right or privilege by or on
behalf of any Owner of any Series 2020A Bond shall not be deemed a waiver of any other right
or privilege of such Owner.  Upon the happening of any Event of Default as provided in Section
26 hereof, the Town will do and perform all proper acts on behalf of and for the Owners of the
Outstanding Series 2020A Bonds to protect and preserve the security created for the payment of
the Series 2020A Bonds and to insure the payment of the Series 2020A Bonds promptly as the
same become due. If any remedial action is discontinued, the Town and the Owners of the Series
2020A Bonds shall be restored to their positions prior to taking such action.

To the extent that additional remedies not provided for in this Ordinance (including,
without limitation, any acceleration remedy) are provided for in the future with respect to Parity
Obligations, the proceedings under which such Parity Obligations are issued shall provide that
such remedies must be exercised for the equal and ratable benefit of the Series 2020A Bonds as
well as such Parity Obligations.

Amendments.Section 28.

The Town may amend or modify any provision of this Ordinance without(a)
the consent of or notice to the Owners, as follows:

to grant to or confer upon the Owners any additional rights,(i)
remedies, powers, authority or security that may lawfully be granted or conferred;

to cure any formal defect, omission or ambiguity in this Ordinance;(ii)

2398

8.



to add to the covenants and agreements of the Town set forth in(iii)
this Ordinance;

to subject to this Ordinance additional Gross Revenues, properties(iv)
or collateral; or

to maintain the then current rating or to obtain any higher rating of(v)
the Series 2020A Bonds by one or more national or regional rating agencies.

The Town may also amend or modify any provision of this Ordinance without any
consent of or notice to the Owners and to effect any other changes in this Ordinance that, in the
opinion of an attorney or firm of attorneys whose experience in matters relating to the issuance of
obligations of states and their political subdivisions is nationally recognized, do not materially
and prejudicially affect the rights of the Owner of any Series 2020A Bond.

In addition, the Town may otherwise amend or modify any provision of(b)
this Ordinance with the written consent of the Owners of not less than 75% of the
principal amount of the Series 2020A Bonds then Outstanding; provided, however, that
the written consent of the Owners of 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2020A
Bonds then Outstanding and materially adversely affected thereby is required:

to create a lien upon the Net Revenues ranking prior to the lien(i)
created by this Ordinance;

to reduce the principal amount of the Series 2020A Bonds required(ii)
for consent to any amendment or modification of this Ordinance; or

to establish priorities between Series 2020A Bonds;(iii)

and further provided, that the maturity of any Series 2020A Bond may be extended, or the
principal amount or interest rate of any Series 2020A Bond may be reduced, if and only if
the written consent of the Owners of all Series 2020A Bonds materially adversely
affected thereby is obtained.

Defeasance.  When the principal of and interest on any Series 2020ASection 29.
Bonds have been duly paid, the pledge and lien and all obligations hereunder with respect to such
Series 2020A Bonds shall be discharged, and such Series 2020A Bonds shall no longer be
deemed to be Outstanding within the meaning of this Ordinance.  There shall be deemed to be
such due payment of any Series 2020A Bonds when the Town has placed in escrow or in trust
with a commercial bank, located within or without the State and exercising trust powers, an
amount sufficient (including the known minimum yield from Federal Securities in which such
amount wholly or in part may be initially invested) to meet all requirements of principal of and
interest on such Series 2020A Bonds as the same become due to their final maturities (including
any amounts due pursuant to any mandatory sinking fund redemption) or upon any optional
redemption dates as of which the Town shall have exercised or shall have obligated itself to
exercise its prior redemption option.  The Federal Securities shall become due at or prior to the
respective times on which the proceeds thereof shall be needed, in accordance with a schedule
established and agreed upon between the Town and such bank at the time of the creation of the

2499

8.



escrow or trust, or the Federal Securities shall be subject to redemption at the option of the
holders thereof to assure such schedule. In the event that there is a defeasance of only part of the
Series 2020A Bonds of any maturity, the Registrar shall, if requested by the Town, institute a
system to preserve the identity of the individual Series 2020A Bonds or portions thereof so
defeased, regardless of changes in Series 2020A Bond numbers attributable to transfers and
exchanges of Series 2020A Bonds; and the Registrar shall be entitled to reasonable compensation
and reimbursement of expenses from the Town in connection with such system.

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  The Mayor or other appropriateSection 30.
officer of the Town is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver a certificate,
agreement or other instrument to evidence the Town’s continuing disclosure undertaking (the
“Undertaking”), if and as required by Section (b)(5)(i) of Securities and Exchange Commission
Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the Town hereby
covenants to comply with such Undertaking.  Any failure by the Town to perform in accordance
with the Undertaking shall not constitute an Event of Default under Section 26 of this Ordinance,
and the rights and remedies provided by Section 27 of this Ordinance upon the occurrence of an
Event of Default shall not apply to any such failure. Each Owner (including for this purpose the
beneficial owners of the Series 2020A Bonds) shall be beneficiaries of the Undertaking and may
enforce specific performance of the obligations contained in the Undertaking directly against the
Town by any judicial proceeding available.

Registrar and Paying Agent. [U.S. Bank National Association in Denver,Section 31.
Colorado, and Saint Paul, Minnesota], shall serve as the initial Registrar and Paying Agent for
the Series 2020A Bonds.  The initial Registrar and Paying Agent (or any successor, upon 30 days
written notice to the Town) may resign as Registrar or Paying Agent, or both (provided that no
such resignation shall be effective until a successor Registrar and Paying Agent is appointed),
and the Town shall appoint a successor Registrar or Paying Agent, or both, which successor
Registrar or Paying Agent shall be a bank or trust company located in and in good standing in the
United States and having shareholders’ equity (e.g., capital stock, surplus and profits), however
denominated, not less than $10,000,000.  It shall not be required that the same institution serve as
both Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder, but the Town shall have the right to have the same
institution serve as both Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder.

Contract with Owners.  After the Series 2020A Bonds have been issued,Section 32.
this Ordinance shall constitute an irrevocable contract between the Town and the Owners of the
Series 2020A Bonds, and, except as otherwise provided herein, shall be and remain irrepealable
until the Series 2020A Bonds and the interest thereon shall have been fully paid, satisfied and
discharged.  No provisions of any constitution, statute, charter, ordinance, resolution or any order
or measure enacted after the issuance of the Series 2020A Bonds shall in any manner be
construed as limiting or impairing the obligation of the Town to keep and perform the covenants
contained in this Ordinance.

Parties Interested Herein.  Except for the provisions of Section 31 hereofSection 33.
with respect to beneficial owners of the Series 2020A Bonds and except for provisions
confirming rights with respect to Parity Obligations, nothing in this Ordinance expressed or
implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon or to give or grant to any person or
entity, other than the Town, the Paying Agent, the Registrar, and the Owners from time to time of

25100

8.



the Series 2020A Bonds, any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Ordinance or any
covenant, condition or stipulation hereof, and all covenants, stipulations, promises and
agreements herein contained by and on behalf of the Town shall be for the sole and exclusive
benefit of the Town, the Paying Agent, the Registrar and each Owner from time to time of the
Series 2020A Bonds.

Severability.  If any section, subsection, paragraph, clause or provision ofSection 34.
this Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, subsection, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of
the remaining provisions of this Ordinance.

Statutes Superseded; Inconsistent Enactments Suspended.  Pursuant toSection 35.
Article XX of the State Constitution, all statutes of the State that might otherwise apply in
connection with the Series 2020A Bonds are hereby superseded to the extent inconsistent with
this Ordinance.  Any ordinances or other enactments of the Town inconsistent with this
Ordinance or the transactions contemplated hereby are hereby superseded to the extent of such
inconsistency and shall to such extent be inapplicable to such transactions.

Publication and Effective Date.  Following passage of this Ordinance onSection 36.
second reading and final passage, this Ordinance shall be recorded in the Town book of
ordinances kept for that purpose, shall be authenticated by the signatures of the Mayor and the
Town Clerk, and shall be published in full in the Delta County Independent.  The Town Clerk is
hereby authorized to include in such publications any additional information the Town Clerk may
deem necessary or appropriate.  This Ordinance shall take effect on the 30th day after
publication.

INTRODUCED on February 11, 2020.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED on February 25, 2020.

[TOWN SEAL]

Mayor

Attest:

By 
Town Clerk

26101

8.



27102

8.



EXHIBIT A

SERIES 2020A BOND FORM

TRANSFER OF THIS SERIES 2020A BOND OTHER THAN BY
REGISTRATION IS NOT EFFECTIVE

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF COLORADO, COUNTY OF DELTA

TOWN OF PAONIA

WATER AND SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BOND
SERIES 2020A

No. R-__ $_______

Interest Rate Maturity Date Dated CUSIP

DecemberApril 1, 20__ _________ __, 2020

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO.

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS

The Town of Paonia, in the County of Delta, State of Colorado (the “Town”), for value received,
hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner (named above), or registered assigns, but solely from the
sources and in the manner hereinafter provided, the Principal Amount (stated above) on the Maturity
Date (stated above) unless this Series 2020A Bond shall have been previously called for redemption, and
solely from said sources and in the manner hereinafter provided to pay interest on said Principal Amount
from the date hereof at the per annum Interest Rate (stated above) until the Principal Amount is paid.
Interest on this Series 2020A Bond, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day
months, is payable semiannually on JuneApril 1 and DecemberOctober 1 in each year (the “Interest
Payment Dates”) commencing [DecemberOctober 1, 2020].

The principal hereof is payable at maturity or prior redemption and upon presentation and
surrender hereof at the office of the paying agent for the Series 2020A Bonds (the “Paying Agent,”
presently [U.S. Bank National Association in Denver, Colorado, and Saint Paul, Minnesota]) or at the
office of any successor paying agent appointed by the Town.  If upon presentation and surrender at or
after maturity payment of this Series 2020A Bond is not made as herein provided, interest shall continue
hereon at the Interest Rate until the Principal Amount hereof is paid in full.

Interest on this Series 2020A Bond shall be paid on each Interest Payment Date (or, if such
Interest Payment Date is not a business day, on the next succeeding business day), by check or draft
mailed to the Registered Owner of this Series 2020A Bond at such Registered Owner’s address as it
appears on the registration records maintained by the registrar and transfer agent for the Series 2020A
Bonds (the “Registrar,” presently [U.S. Bank National Association in Denver, Colorado, and Saint Paul,

A- 1
103

8.



Minnesota]), as of the close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month next preceding each
Interest Payment Date (whether or not a business day) (the “Record Date”), regardless of any transfer or
exchange of this Series 2020A Bond between such Record Date and such Interest Payment Date.  Any
such interest not so punctually paid shall cease to be payable to the Registered Owner as of such Record
Date, and shall be payable to the Registered Owner as of a Special Record Date for the payment of such
defaulted interest. Such Special Record Date shall be fixed by the Registrar whenever moneys become
available for payment of such defaulted interest, and notice of the Special Record Date shall be given to
the Registered Owners of the Series 2020A Bonds of the series of which this is one (the “Series 2020A
Bonds”) not less than 10 days prior to the Special Record Date by first-class mail to each such Registered
Owner as shown on the Registrar’s registration records on a date selected by the Registrar, stating the
date of the Special Record Date and the date fixed for payment of such defaulted interest.

The principal of and interest on this Series 2020A Bond are payable in lawful money of the
United States of America, without deduction for the services of the Paying Agent or the Registrar.  The
principal of and interest on this Series 2020A Bond shall be paid, and this Series 2020A Bond is
transferable, free from and without regard to any equities, setoffs or cross-claims between the Town and
the original or any intermediate owner hereof.

The Series 2020A Bonds maturing on and after DecemberApril 1, 20[__]2028, are callable for
redemption prior to their respective maturities, at the option of the Town, on and after DecemberApril 1,
20[__]2027, in whole or in part at any time thereafter (if in part, in integral multiples of $5,000, from any
maturity or maturities or portions thereof as selected by the Town and by lot within a maturity, giving
proportionate weight to Series 2020A Bonds in denominations larger than $5,000, in such manner as the
Registrar shall determine), at a redemption price equal to the principal amounts so redeemed plus accrued
interest thereon to the redemption date, without redemption premium.

In the case of Series 2020A Bonds of a denomination larger than $5,000, each $5,000 of
principal shall be treated as a separate Series 2020A Bond for purposes of determining which Series
2020A Bonds of a particular maturity are to be redeemed on a particular optional or mandatory sinking
fund redemption date.  If less than all of the principal amount of any Series 2020A Bond is redeemed, the
Registrar shall, without charge to the Registered Owner of such Series 2020A Bond, authenticate and
issue a replacement Series 2020A Bond or Series 2020A Bonds for the unredeemed portion thereof.
Redemption shall be made upon not more than 60 days nor less than 30 days mailed notice to each
Registered Owner of Series 2020A Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration
records maintained by the Registrar, in the manner and upon the conditions provided in the Ordinance.
Failure to give such notice by mailing to the Registered Owner of any Series 2020A Bond (or certain
other entities as provided in the Ordinance), or any defect therein, shall not affect the validity of the
proceedings for the redemption of any other Series 2020A Bonds.  Redemption procedures are subject to
applicable procedures under the below-described book-entry system.

The Series 2020A Bonds are issued under the authority of Part 4 of Article 35, Title 31,
Colorado Revised Statutes (“C.R.S.”); Article 45.1 of Title 37, C.R.S.; Part 2 of Article 57 of Title 11,
C.R.S.  Pursuant to Section 31 35-413, such recital conclusively imparts full compliance with all
provisions of such statutory authority and the Series 2020A Bonds containing this recital are
incontestable for any cause whatsoever after their delivery for value.  Pursuant to Section 11 57 210, such
recital is conclusive evidence of the validity and the regularity of the issuance of the Series 2020A Bonds
after their delivery for value.

The Series 2020A Bonds are authorized and issued for the purpose of refunding, paying and
discharging the Town’s outstanding the Water Revenue Bond, Series 2006, originally issued by the Town
pursuant to Ordinance 2006-06 to finance the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a wastewater

A- 2
104

8.



treatment facility as part of the Enterprise, as further defined and described in the Ordinance, all under
the authority of and in full conformity with applicable provisions of the Constitution and laws of the
State of Colorado (the “State”) and ordinances of the Town.

The Series 2020A Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Town payable solely from the
Gross Revenues of the Enterprise after deduction of Operating Expenses of the Enterprise (as further
defined and provided in the Ordinance, the “Net Revenues”) and from moneys in the Series 2020A Bond
Account established by the Ordinance.  The Series 2020A Bonds constitute an irrevocable and first lien
(but not necessarily an exclusively first lien) on the Net Revenues, on a parity with all other Parity
Obligations.  Subject to conditions set forth in the Ordinance, additional obligations may be issued in the
future having a lien on Net Revenues on a parity with or subordinate to the lien of the Series 2020A
Bonds.

The Series 2020A Bonds do not constitute a debt or indebtedness of the Town, Delta County, the
State or any political subdivision of the State within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory
provision or limitation, and are not secured by the full faith and credit of the Town or by any taxing
power of the Town or any other government; nor do the Series 2020A Bonds constitute a multiple-fiscal
year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation within the meaning of Article X, Section 20 of
the State Constitution, nor shall the Series 2020A Bonds be considered or held to be general obligations
of the Town.  The owners of the Series 2020A Bonds may not look to any general fund of the Town for
the payment of the debt service requirements of the Series 2020A Bonds, nor do they have the right to
require or compel the exercise of the ad valorem property taxing power or any other taxing power of the
Town or of any other taxing entity for payment of the Series 2020A Bonds.

This Series 2020A Bond is subject to all terms and provisions of the Ordinance but contains only
a summary of certain terms and provisions thereof. Reference is hereby made to the Ordinance, and to
any and all modifications and amendments thereof, for the complete terms and provisions to which this
Series 2020A Bond is subject, including, among others, terms and provisions with respect to the custody
and application of proceeds of the Series 2020A Bonds, the receipt and disposition of Gross Revenues of
the Enterprise, the nature and extent of the security, the terms and conditions under which additional
obligations secured by a lien on the Net Revenues may be issued, the rights, duties, obligations and
immunities of the Town and its officers, and the rights and remedies of the Registered Owners of the
Series 2020A Bonds; and by the acceptance of this Series 2020A Bond the owner hereof assents to all
provisions of the Ordinance.

To the extent and in the manner provided by the Ordinance, the provisions of the Ordinance may
be amended or modified by action of the Town.  The pledge of the Net Revenues and the other
obligations and covenants of the Town under the Ordinance may be discharged at or prior to the final
maturity of the Series 2020A Bonds upon the making of provision for payment of the Series 2020A
Bonds on the terms and conditions set forth in the Ordinance.

This Series 2020A Bond must be registered in the name of the owner as to both principal and
interest on the registration records maintained by the Registrar in conformity with the provisions stated
herein and endorsed hereon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Ordinance.

No transfer of this Series 2020A Bond shall be valid unless made on the registration records
maintained by the Registrar by the Registered Owner or such Registered Owner’s attorney duly
authorized in writing.  This Series 2020A Bond may be transferred or exchanged by the Registered
Owner hereof upon surrender of this Series 2020A Bond for transfer or exchange at the office of the
Registrar or a successor transfer agent, duly endorsed or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer
or authorization for exchange in form satisfactory to the Registrar and executed by the Registered Owner

A- 3
105

8.



hereof or such Registered Owner’s attorney duly authorized in writing.  Thereupon a new fully registered
Series 2020A Bond or Series 2020A Bonds of authorized denomination or denominations of the same
aggregate principal amount and maturity and bearing interest at the same rate will be issued to the
transferee, or, if exchanged, the Registered Owner, subject to the terms and conditions and on payment of
such charges as may be imposed by the Registrar as provided in the Ordinance.  The Town, the Paying
Agent and the Registrar may deem and treat the person in whose name this Series 2020A Bond is
registered (whether or not this Series 2020A Bond shall be overdue) as the absolute owner hereof for the
purpose of making payment and for all other purposes (except to the extent otherwise provided
hereinabove and in the Ordinance with respect to Record Dates and Special Record Dates for the
payment of interest, and except as otherwise provided in the Ordinance with respect to certain continuing
disclosure matters), and neither the Town, the Paying Agent nor the Registrar shall be affected by any
notice to the contrary.

The Registrar will not be required to transfer or exchange (a) all or any portion of any Series
2020A Bond subject to prior redemption during the period beginning at the opening of business fifteen
days before the day of the mailing by the Registrar of notice calling any Series 2020A Bonds for prior
redemption and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing; or (b) all or any portion of a
Series 2020A Bond after the mailing of notice calling such Series 2020A Bond or any portion thereof for
prior redemption.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the ownership of the Series 2020A Bonds is
maintained in book-entry form by Cede & Co. (“Cede”), as nominee of The Depository Trust Company
(“DTC”), (a) this Series 2020A Bond may be transferred in whole but not in part only to DTC or a
nominee thereof or to a successor securities depository or its nominee; (b) the Town and the Registrar
may treat and consider DTC as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of payment, for the purpose of
giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to this Series 2020A Bond, for purposes of
registering transfers hereof, and for all other purposes whatsoever (except as otherwise provided in the
Ordinance with respect to certain continuing disclosure matters); and (c) the Registrar shall pay all
principal of and interest hereon only to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments shall be valid
and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the obligations with respect to payment hereon to the extent of
the sum or sums so paid. NEITHER THE TOWN, THE PAYING AGENT NOR THE REGISTRAR
WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO DTC’S PARTICIPANTS OR
INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, TO THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES, OR TO
ANY BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE SERIES 2020A BONDS, WITH RESPECT TO PAYMENTS
TO OR THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE FOR DTC’S PARTICIPANTS OR INDIRECT
PARTICIPANTS OR THEIR NOMINEES OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE SERIES 2020A
BONDS.

It is hereby recited, certified and warranted that all the requirements of law have been fully
complied with by the proper officers of the Town in the issuance of this Series 2020A Bond.

This Series 2020A Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any
security or benefit under the Ordinance until the Registrar shall have manually signed the Certificate of
Authentication hereon.

A- 4
106

8.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, Colorado, acting by
and through its Water and Sewer Enterprise, has caused this Series 2020A Bond to be executed with the
manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the Town and to be attested by the manual or facsimile
signature of the Town Clerk under an impression of the seal of the Town or a facsimile thereof, all as of
the date set forth above.

[TOWN SEAL]

Mayor

Attest:

By 
Town Clerk

REGISTRAR’S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This is one of the Series 2020A Bonds described in the within-mentioned Ordinance, and this
Series 2020A Bond has been duly registered on the registration records kept by the undersigned as
Registrar for such Series 2020A Bonds.

[U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION], as
Registrar

By 
Authorized Representative

Date of Authentication and Registration:

______________________, 2020

A- 5
107

8.



PREPAYMENT PANEL

The following installments of principal (or portions thereof) of this Series 2020A Bond have
been prepaid in accordance with the terms of the Ordinance authorizing the issuance of this Series 2020A
Bond.

Date of
Prepayment

Principal
Prepaid

Signature of Authorized
Representative of DTC

A- 6
108

8.



FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto
________________________________________________________________ the within Series 2020A
Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
______________________________________________________ attorney to transfer the within Series
2020A Bond on the records kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated: 

Signature Guaranteed:

Signature must be guaranteed by a member of a Medallion
Signature Program

Address of transferee:

Social Security or other tax identification number of
transferee:

NOTE: The signature to this Assignment must correspond
with the name as written on the face of the within Series
2020A Bond in every particular, without alteration or
enlargement or any change whatsoever.

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a
New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Registrar for registration of transfer, exchange, or payment, and
any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an
authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is
requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE
HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the
Registered Owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

A- 7
109

8.



EXHIBIT B

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION OF BOND ORDINANCE — __________ __, 2020

4830-5536-4787\24830-5536-4787\3
110

8.



Document comparison by Workshare Compare on Monday, February 10, 2020
5:14:39 PM

Input:

Document 1 ID
C:\Users\andersen.daniel\My Documents\ndeloc\Paonia
CO 2020A - Ordinance - Water and Sewer Rev Rfdg
Bds(1).docx

Description
C:\Users\andersen.daniel\My Documents\ndeloc\Paonia
CO 2020A - Ordinance - Water and Sewer Rev Rfdg
Bds(1).docx

Document 2 ID
C:\Users\andersen.daniel\My Documents\ndeloc\Paonia
CO 2020A - Ordinance - Water and Sewer Rev Rfdg
Bds.docx

Description
C:\Users\andersen.daniel\My Documents\ndeloc\Paonia
CO 2020A - Ordinance - Water and Sewer Rev Rfdg
Bds.docx

Rendering set Standard

Legend:

Insertion 

Deletion 

Moved from 

Moved to 

Style change

Format change

Moved deletion 

Inserted cell

Deleted cell

Moved cell

Split/Merged cell

Padding cell

Statistics:

Count

Insertions 26

Deletions 47

Moved from 0

111

8.



Moved to 0

Style change 0

Format changed 0

Total changes 73

112

8.



New Issue/Book-Entry Only                                Bonds are Non-rated 

Preliminary Official Statement, Dated February 7, 2020 
 
In the opinion of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, Bond Counsel, based on existing law and assuming the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, (i) interest on the Bonds is 
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for federal alternative minimum tax purposes, and (ii) the Bonds and the income therefrom are 
exempt from State of Colorado taxation, except inheritance, estate, and transfer taxes.  The Bonds are “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code relating to the 
ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes a portion of the interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.  See “TAX 
CONSIDERATIONS” herein. 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
DELTA COUNTY, COLORADO 

ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE TOWN OF PAONIA WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE 
$1,665,000* Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A 

 
BONDS DATED:  DATED DATE   PRINCIPAL DUE:  APRIL 1, AS BELOW 
     INTEREST DUE:  APRIL 1 AND OCTOBER 1 
 

The Town of Paonia, Delta County, Colorado, acting by and through the Town of Paonia Water and Sewer Enterprise is issuing $1,665,000* Water and 
Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are special revenue obligations of the Town, acting by and through the Water 
and Sewer Enterprise, payable out of the Net Revenues derived from the Water and Sewer System, all as more particularly set forth herein and in the 
authorizing Bond Ordinance.  Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, together with other legally available money of the Town, will be used to (i) refund the 
Town’s outstanding USDA Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2006, (ii) fund the Debt Service Reserve Fund and (iii) pay the costs of issuance of the 
Bonds.  The Bonds constitute an irrevocable and first lien on Net Revenues and on all moneys on deposit in the Reserve Account; provided however, the 
first lien on Net Revenues is not exclusive if Parity Obligations are issued in the future.  The Bonds do not constitute a general obligation debt or 
indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or provision and are not payable in whole or in part from the proceeds 
of ad valorem property taxes. 
 
The Bonds will be issued as fully registered Bonds without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The 
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”). DTC will act as securities depository of the Bonds. Individual purchases may be made in book-entry form only, in the 
principal amount of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof.  Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. 
Principal will be payable annually on each April 1 of the years 2021 through 2044, and interest, payable semi-annually on each April 1 and October 1, 
commencing October 1, 2020, to DTC, which will in turn remit such principal and interest to its participants for subsequent dispersal to the beneficial 
owners of the Bonds as described herein. 
 

Maturity Schedule* 
(Principal payments due on April 1 of each year) 

 

Year Amount Year Amount Year Amount Year Amount Year Amount

2021 $50,000 2026 $55,000 2031 $65,000 2036 $75,000 2041 $90,000

2022 $50,000 2027 $60,000 2032 $65,000 2037 $80,000 2042 $90,000

2023 $50,000 2028 $60,000 2033 $70,000 2038 $80,000 2043 $95,000

2024 $55,000 2029 $60,000 2034 $70,000 2039 $85,000 2044 $80,000

2025 $55,000 2030 $65,000 2035 $75,000 2040 $85,000  
 

Bonds maturing in 2028* and thereafter shall be subject to redemption and prepayment, at the option of the Town, on April 1, 2027*, and any date 
thereafter, in any order of maturities and by lot within any maturity, at par plus accrued Interest.   

 

BANK QUALIFIED:   The Bonds are “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations” 

LEGAL OPINION:    Dorsey & Whitney LLP 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR:  U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota 
(THIS COVER PAGE CONTAINS CERTAIN INFORMATION FOR QUICK REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS NOT A SUMMARY OF THIS ISSUE. INVESTORS MUST READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO OBTAIN 
INFORMATION ESSENTIAL TO THE MAKING OF AN INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION.) 

This Preliminary Official Statement and the information contained in this Preliminary Official Statement are subject to completion or amendment. These securities may not 
be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted prior to the time the Official Statement is delivered in final form. Under no circumstances shall this Preliminary Official Statement 
constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of these securities in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would 
be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such jurisdiction. 

 

 

 

 
*Preliminary, Subject to Change 

 

113

8.



 
 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Name Position

Charles Stewart Mayor

Chelsea Bookout Mayor Pro Tem

William Bear Trustee

Karen Budinger Trustee

Dave Knutson Trustee

Mary Bachran Trustee

Michelle Pattison Trustee  
 
 

TOWN OFFICIALS 
Corinne Ferguson, Town Administrator 

Cindy Jones, Finance Officer 
 
 

TOWN ATTORNEY 
Bo Nerlin 

J. David Reed, P.C. 
Montrose, CO 

 

PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR 
U.S. Bank, National Association 

St. Paul, MN 
 
 

UNDERWRITER 
TBD 

 
 

BOND COUNSEL 
Dorsey & Whitney LLP 

Denver, CO and Minneapolis, MN 
 
 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 
AMKO Advisors, LLC 

Monument, CO and Fargo, ND 
 
 

114

8.



1 
 

Table of Contents 
 

VICINITY MAP ............................................................................. 3 

TOWN MAP .................................................................................. 4 

INTRODUCTION ............................................................................ 5 

INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS .................................................. 8 

Limited Obligations .............................................................. 9 
Factors That May Cause Insufficiency of Expected Revenues9 
Parity Obligations .............................................................. 10 
Secondary Market ............................................................. 10 
Bankruptcy and Foreclosure .............................................. 10 
Future Changes in Laws ..................................................... 11 
Legal Matters Relating to the Enterprise ........................... 11 
Limitations on Remedies Available to Owners of Bonds.... 11 

THE BONDS ................................................................................. 12 

Description ........................................................................ 12 
Prior Redemption of Bonds ............................................... 12 
Use of Bond Proceeds ........................................................ 13 
Sources and Uses of Funds ............................................... 13 
Security for the Bonds ....................................................... 13 
Debt Service Coverage ....................................................... 20 

THE ENTERPRISE ......................................................................... 21 

Establishment of Enterprises ............................................. 21 
General .............................................................................. 21 
Service Area ....................................................................... 21 
Water and Sewer System Customers ................................ 21 
Water and Sewer Rates ..................................................... 22 

ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL INFORMATION ..................................... 23 

Monthly Water and Sewer Revenue ................................. 23 
Historical and Budgeted Enterprise Financial Information 24 

GENERAL INFORMATION ............................................................ 27 

The Town of Paonia ........................................................... 27 
Governing Body ................................................................. 27 
Administration and Management ..................................... 27 
Town Services .................................................................... 28 
Capital Projects Plan .......................................................... 28 

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION ...................... 29 

Population ......................................................................... 29 
Personal Income ................................................................ 29 
Employers and Industry Distribution ................................. 30 
Labor Force Statistics ......................................................... 31 
Agriculture ......................................................................... 31 
Livestock ............................................................................ 32 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ................................................................ 33 

INDEBTEDNESS ........................................................................... 34 

Required Elections ............................................................. 34 
General Obligation Debt .................................................... 34 
Revenue and Other Financial Obligations .......................... 34 

Outstanding Revenue Debt ............................................... 35 
Overlapping General Obligation Debt ............................... 36 
Other Financial Obligations ............................................... 36 

TOWN FINANCIAL INFORMATION .............................................. 37 

Accounting Policies ............................................................ 37 
Historical General Fund Operations .................................. 37 
General Fund Budget Summary ......................................... 38 

PROPERTY VALUATIONS ............................................................. 40 

Current Property Valuations .............................................. 40 
History of Valuations ......................................................... 40 
Top 10 Taxpayers ............................................................... 41 

TAX RATES, LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS ....................................... 41 

Tax Levies and Collections ................................................. 41 
Mill Levies .......................................................................... 42 
Retirement and Pension Matters ...................................... 42 
Insurance Coverage ........................................................... 42 
Deposit and Investment of Town Funds ............................ 42 
Administration’s Discussion of Material Trends ................ 42 
Constitutional Amendment Limiting Taxes and Spending . 43 

LEGAL MATTERS ......................................................................... 44 

Sovereign Immunity........................................................... 44 
Pending and Threatened Litigation.................................... 44 
Legal Representation ......................................................... 44 

TAX CONSIDERATIONS ............................................................... 45 

Tax-Exempt Interest .......................................................... 45 
Original Issue Discount ...................................................... 46 
Market Discount ................................................................ 46 
Bond Premium ................................................................... 46 
Related Tax Considerations ............................................... 46 
Sale or Other Disposition ................................................... 47 
Information Reporting and Backup Withholding ............... 47 

MISCELLANEOUS ........................................................................ 48 

Underwriting ..................................................................... 48 
Registration of Bonds ........................................................ 48 
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking ................................... 48 
Interest of Certain Persons Named in this Official Statement48 
Independent Accountants ................................................. 48 
Additional Information ...................................................... 48 
Official Statement Certification ......................................... 49 

 

  

APPENDICES: 
Appendix A: Audited Financial Statements 
Appendix B: Form of Legal Opinion 
Appendix C: Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
Appendix D: Bond Ordinance 
Appendix E: Book Entry Only System 

115

8.



2 
 

No dealer, salesman, or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation, other than 
the information contained in this Official Statement, in connection with the offering of the bonds, and, if given or made, such 
information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Town or the Financial Advisor.  The 
information in this Official Statement is subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement 
nor any sale hereunder will, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs 
of the Town since the date hereof.   This Official Statement does not constitute an offer or solicitation in any jurisdiction in 
which such offer or solicitation is not authorized, or in which any person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to 
do so, or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.  The information set forth herein has been 
furnished by the Town and obtained from other sources which are believed to be reliable. 
 
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor the Securities Regulatory Authority of any state has approved or 
disapproved the Bonds or this Official Statement.  Any representation to the contrary is unlawful. 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
 

 

  

116

8.



3 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 
 

 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

 

117

8.



4 
 

TOWN MAP 
 

 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
  

118

8.



5 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This Official Statement is furnished to prospective purchasers of $1,665,000* Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2020A (the “Bonds”), issued by the Town of Paonia, in Delta County, Colorado (the “Town”), acting by and through the 
Town of Paonia Water and Sewer Enterprise (the “Enterprise”).  The offering of the Bonds is made only by way of this Official 
Statement, which supersedes any other information or materials used in connection with the offer or sale of the Bonds.  
Accordingly, prospective purchasers should read this entire Official Statement before making an investment decision.  This 
Official Statement speaks only as of the date set forth on the cover page hereof, and the information contained herein is 
subject to change.  Certain of the capitalized terms used herein are defined in APPENDIX D hereto. 
 
The following introductory material is only a brief description of, and is qualified by, the more complete information contained 
throughout this Official Statement.  A full review should be made of the entire Official Statement and the documents 
summarized or described herein. 
 

Issuer: The Town is a Statutory Town and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the 
“State”).  As a statutory municipality, the Town operates according to State statutes and 
Town ordinances adopted pursuant thereto.  The Town is located in Delta County (the 
“County”) in the western portion of the State.  The Town encompasses approximately 
0.86 square miles and has a current estimated population of 1,462.  See “THE TOWN” and 
the preceding “VICINITY MAP” and “TOWN MAP.” 
 

The Enterprise: The Town has historically provided and will continue to provide water and sewer services 
as an enterprise under State law.  Pursuant to the terms and provisions of Title 37, Article 
45.1, C.R.S. (the “Water Activity Law”), on March 24, 1998, the Town confirmed by 
Ordinance No. 1998-02 of the Town, the previously established “Town of Paonia Water 
and Sewer Enterprise” (the “Enterprise”) which is comprised of the businesses 
represented by all of the Town’s water and sewer facilities and properties, now owned or 
hereafter acquired whether situated within or without the Town boundaries, including all 
present or future improvements, extensions, enlargements, betterments, replacements, 
or additions thereof or thereto.  The Town intends and reasonably expects that the 
Enterprise will constitute an “enterprise” within the meaning of Article X, Section 20 of 
the State Constitution (“TABOR”) in the 2020 fiscal year. 
 

Purpose: Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, together with legally available moneys of the Town, 
will be used to (i) refund the Town’s outstanding Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 
2006 (the “Series 2006 Bonds” or “Refunded Bonds”); (ii) fund the debt service reserve 
(“the Reserve Fund”); and (iii) pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds.  See “THE BONDS—
Use of Bond Proceeds.” 
 

Security: The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Town, acting by and through its Water 
and Sewer Enterprise.  The principal of and interest on the Bonds is payable solely from 
the Net Revenues.  The Bond Ordinance (See Appendix D – “Bond Ordinance”) defines 
“Net Revenues” as the Revenues less Operating Expenses.  “Revenues” generally means 
all rates and fees, including but not limited to user fees and plant investment fees, 
charges and other revenues directly or indirectly derived by the Enterprise for the services 
furnished by, or use of, the Enterprise.  “Operating Expenses” generally means all 
reasonable and necessary current expenses of the Town, paid or accrued, for operating, 
maintaining, and repairing the Enterprise.  See “THE BONDS—Security for the Bonds” for 
the complete definition of said terms. 
 
Upon the issuance of the Bonds, the Town will maintain a Reserve Account in the amount 
of $100,750.00*.  The Town’s existing, fully-funded Reserve Account previously associated 
with the Series 2006 Bond being refunded will be applied to the Bonds as a transfer of 
reserve funds.  See “THE BONDS—Security for the Bonds.” 
 

*Preliminary, Subject to Change  

119

8.



6 
 

 The Bonds do not constitute a debt or an indebtedness of the Town within the meaning 
of any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation, nor will they be considered or 
held to be general obligations of the Town. 
 

Payment Provisions and the 
Record Date: 

The Bonds mature and bear interest at the rates (computed on the basis of a 360-day year 
of twelve 30-day months) as set forth on the cover page hereof.   Interest on the Bonds is 
payable semiannually on April 1 and October 1 each year, commencing on October 1, 
2020.   See “INDEBTEDNESS – Annual Maturity Schedule.” 
 
The record date with respect to each Interest Payment Date is the fifteenth day of the 
month immediately preceding the month (whether or not such day is a Business Day) in 
which such Interest Payment Date occurs (the “Record Date”). 
 

Authority for Issuance: The Bonds are issued in full conformity with the Constitution and the laws of the  State, 
including, in particular, the Water Activity Law; Article 56 of Title 11, Colorado Revised 
Statutes, as amended; Part 2 of Article 57 of Title 11, Colorado Revised Statutes, as 
amended (collectively, the “Acts”), and pursuant to an authorizing ordinance (the “Bond 
Ordinance”) adopted by the Town Board of Trustees (the “Board”), acting as the 
governing body of the Enterprise, on February 25, 2020.  See “THE BONDS—Use of Bond 
Proceeds.” 
 

Book-Entry-Only 
Registration: 

The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form and will be registered initially in the name 
of “Cede & Co.” as nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York 
(“DTC”), a securities depository. Beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds may be 
acquired in principal denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof through 
participants in the DTC system (the “Participants”).  Such beneficial ownership interests 
will be recorded in the records of the participants.  Persons for which Participants acquire 
interests in the Bonds (the “Beneficial Owners”) will not receive certificates evidencing 
their interests in the Bonds so long as DTC or a successor securities depository acts as the 
securities depository with respect to the Bonds.  So long as DTC or its nominee is the 
registered owner of the Bonds, payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on 
the Bonds, as well as notices and other communications made by or on behalf of the 
Town pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, will be made to DTC or its nominee only.   
Disbursement of such payments, notices, and other communications by DTC to 
Participants, and by Participants to the Beneficial Owners, is the responsibility of DTC and 
the Participants pursuant to rules and procedures established by such entities.   See 
“APPENDIX E — BOOK–ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM” for a discussion of the operating procedures 
of the DTC system with respect to payments, registration, transfers, notices, and other 
matters. 
 

Prior Redemption: The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity as described in “THE BONDS—Prior 
Redemption of Bonds.” 
 

Registration and 
Denominations: 

The Bonds are issued in fully registered form in denominations of $5,000 
each or integral multiples thereof. 
 

Exchange and Transfer: While the Bonds remain in book-entry-only form, transfer of ownership by Beneficial 
Owners (as defined by the rules of DTC) may be made as described in “APPENDIX E—
BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM.”   In the event that DTC ceases to act as securities depository 
for the Bonds, the Bond Ordinance provides for the transfer and exchange of Bonds at the 
principal office of the Paying Agent pursuant to specified terms and provisions. 
 

  

120

8.



7 
 

Tax Status: In the opinion of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, Bond Counsel, based on existing law and 
assuming the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, 
(i) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
and is not an item of tax preference for federal alternative minimum tax purposes, and (ii) 
the Bonds and the income therefrom are exempt from State of Colorado taxation, except 
inheritance, estate, and transfer taxes.  The Bonds are “qualified tax-exempt obligations” 
for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code relating to the ability of financial institutions 
to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes a portion of the interest expense 
that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.  See “TAX 
CONSIDERATIONS” herein. 
 

Financial Statements: Appended hereto, as Appendix A, are the audited basic financial statements of the Town 
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 through December 31, 2018, as the 
most recent three years’ audited financial statements available for the Town.  The Town’s 
2019 audit is not yet complete, but will be provided, via EMMA, as part of the Town’s 
Continuing Disclosure requirement by December 31, 2020. 
 

Delivery Information: The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued by the Town, acting by and through its 
Water and Sewer Enterprise, and accepted by the Underwriter (TBD), subject to prior sale, 
approval of legality and certain other matters by Bond Counsel and other conditions.  It is 
expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC on or 
about April 7, 2020. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
  

121

8.



8 
 

ALL OF THE SUMMARIES OF THE STATUTES, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, OPINIONS, CONTRACTS, AGREEMENTS AND 
DOCUMENTS DESCRIBED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT ARE SUBJECT TO THE ACTUAL PROVISIONS OF SUCH DOCUMENTS.  
The summaries do not purport to be complete statements of such provisions and reference is made to such documents, 
copies of which are either publicly available or available upon request and the payment of a reasonable copying, mailing, and 
handling charge from:  Town of Paonia, 214 Grand Ave., P.O. Box 460, Paonia, CO, 81428, Telephone: (970) 527-4101; or 
AMKO Advisors, 15798 Candle Creek Dr., Monument, CO 80202, Telephone: (719) 237-7144. 
 

INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS 
 

THE PURCHASE OF THE BONDS INVOLVES SPECIAL RISKS AND THE BONDS MAY NOT BE 

APPROPRIATE INVESTMENTS FOR ALL TYPES OF INVESTORS.   EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR IS 

ENCOURAGED TO READ THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IN ITS ENTIRETY AND TO GIVE PARTICULAR 

ATTENTION TO THE FACTORS DESCRIBED BELOW, WHICH, AMONG OTHER FACTORS DISCUSSED 

HEREIN, COULD AFFECT THE PAYMENT OF DEBT SERVICE ON THE BONDS AND COULD AFFECT 

THE MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS TO AN EXTENT THAT CANNOT BE DETERMINED AT THIS 

TIME.  THE FOLLOWING DOES NOT PURPORT TO BE AN EXHAUSTIVE LISTING OF RISKS AND 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS THAT MAY BE RELEVANT TO INVESTING IN THE BONDS.  IN 

ADDITION, THE ORDER IN WHICH THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS PRESENTED IS NOT 

INTENDED TO REFLECT THE RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SUCH RISKS. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
  

122

8.



9 
 

Limited Obligations 
 

The Bonds do not constitute a lien upon the physical properties of the Enterprise or any part thereof, but constitute a lien 
only on Net Revenues and all moneys on deposit in the Reserve Account.  Therefore, the security for the punctual 
payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds is dependent on the Town’s ability to generate such Net Revenues 
in an amount sufficient to meet the debt service requirements of the Bonds.  The Bonds and the interest thereon do not 
constitute a debt or indebtedness of the Town within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt provision or 
limitation, and do not give rise to a charge against the Town’s general credit or taxing power.  See “THE BONDS—Security 
for the Bonds.” 
 
In the event that the Town is unable to generate Net Revenues in amounts sufficient to pay debt service on the Bonds 
when due, for whatever reason, the Town is obligated, pursuant to its covenant in the Bond Ordinance, to increase its 
Enterprise rates and charges so as to generate amounts sufficient to meet said debt service and the additional amounts 
required by the Bond Ordinance.  See “THE BONDS—Security for the Bonds.” 
 
Factors That May Cause Insufficiency of Expected Revenues 
 
The generation of Net Revenues is dependent upon several factors outside the Town’s control, such as the economy, 
collections of water service charges and plant investment fees, continued growth (or lack thereof) and changes in law.  It is  
impossible to predict whether current economic conditions will continue or worsen or to predict how future conditions 
will affect the operation of the Enterprise or the Town’s finances in general.  The following factors, among others, may 
impact the generation of Net Revenues in the future. 

 
General.  Payment of the Bonds is dependent upon the generation of sufficient Net Revenues of the Enterprise.  If the 
Enterprise becomes inoperable due to damage, destruction, environmental restriction or for any other reason, if the Town 
should lack raw water or lack treatable water due to contamination, lack of  adequate  supply  to  serve  existing  customers,  
drought  or  for  any  other  reason,  if  the Town  has inadequate storage or transmission facilities, if the Town is unable to 
increase rates and charges for any reason or if the Town incurs unanticipated expenses or reduced revenues due to power 
rate increases or for any other reason, the Town may be unable to generate adequate revenues from the Enterprise to pay 
debt service on the Bonds. 

 
Water Quality and Environmental Requirements.  The Enterprise is subject to numerous federal and State regulatory 
requirements.  Those regulations are subject to change at any time.  Public drinking water systems like the Enterprise are 
regulated by the Environmental Protection Agency.  The Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (the “State 
Department of Health”) has the authority to enforce drinking water quality standards.  Water quality standards imposed by 
the federal government or the State may affect the water available to the Town.  Further, implementation of those standards 
or enforcement by the State Department of Health could result in increased costs associated with the Town’s storage or 
distribution operations or require significant capital expenditures.   In addition, failure to comply with regulatory changes, or 
the inability to comply with them in a timely manner could cause portions of the Enterprise to become unavailable.   Any 
disruption of service or increases in costs would reduce the amount of Net Revenues available to pay debt service on the 
Bonds, subject to the requirement that the Town must subsequently raise rates, if necessary, to satisfy the rate maintenance 
covenant in the Bond Ordinance.  See “THE BONDS—Security for the Bonds—Maintenance of Rates and Coverage.” 
 
In operating the Enterprise, the Town also is subject to various environmental regulations and may be subject to 
additional regulations in the future which could subject the Town to increased operating costs or capital expenditures.  
Such risks include the use of hazardous materials in the water treatment process and the disposal of such materials, the 
occurrence of upstream events that could cause contamination of the Town’s water sources, or other factors.   Such 
increased costs could reduce the amount of Net Revenues available to pay debt service on the Bonds. 
 
Drought.  The amount of available water depends on many factors, including water quality, economics, delivery system 
restrictions and maintenance of adequate carry-over storage for droughts.  As with all other water providers, the Town’s 
water supply is subject to environmental conditions resulting from the semi-arid climate of the State, and the water supply is 
impacted by drought from time to time.  In addition, the amount of water available for use under water rights owned by the 
Town may be limited by the operation of the State’s water rights administration system, also known as the prior 
appropriation doctrine, which allocates the use of water to users in accordance with the seniority of their water rights. 
Accordingly, in times of drought, the Town’s water rights could be curtailed, which could result in less water availability.  

123

8.



10 
 

Additionally, the State is a party to numerous Interstate Compacts and United States Supreme Court decrees that 
apportion water deliveries to the State’s neighboring states from the seven river basins of the State.  In times of drought, 
interstate delivery obligations could limit the amount of water available for use in Colorado. 
 
Delay in Collection of Unpaid Amounts.  The Town has the authority to enforce payment of its rates and charges through a 
number of means.  The Town may certify unpaid fees and charges to the County treasurer for collection in the same manner 
as taxes, and the Town itself may foreclosure upon liens on the real property of delinquent ratepayers.  Both methods of 
collection from delinquent ratepayers can result in delayed collection of unpaid amounts.  The statutory certification process 
for unpaid fees and charges is a simple process for the Town, but relies on the County treasurer collection process, which can 
be time-consuming.  Proceeds realized from either process, if any, may not be sufficient to cover the delinquent rates and 
charges.  Liens are used as a last resort as the Town is very aggressive in its collection of unpaid debt.   
 
Constitutional Limitations.  The Town, through the Enterprise, owns, operates and maintains a municipal water and sewer 
system as an “enterprise” within the meaning of Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution (“TABOR”).  The Board has 
determined that for the current 2020 fiscal year the Town intends and reasonably expects that the Enterprise will meet all 
requirements applicable to qualify as an enterprise under TABOR, including the receipt of under 10% of annual revenue in 
grants from all Colorado state and local governments combined.  If the Enterprise does not qualify as an enterprise under 
TABOR for any given year, the Enterprise will be subject to TABOR’s other limitations, including certain spending limits and 
other limitations, unless and until the Enterprise requalifies as an enterprise under TABOR in a future year.  See “TAX RATES, 
LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS—Constitutional Amendment Limiting Taxes and Spending.”  Regardless of the Enterprise’s 
qualification as an enterprise under TABOR, no election is necessary to issue the Series 2020A Bonds if the Refunded Bonds 
are refunded at a lower interest rate.  A lack of enterprise status under TABOR would thus not adversely affect the validity or 
enforceability of the Bonds but may affect the Town’s ability to collect Net Revenues in an amount sufficient to pay debt 
service. 
 
Parity Obligations 
 
The Bonds constitute an irrevocable and first lien on the Net Revenues and all moneys on deposit in the Reserve Account, but 
not necessarily an exclusive such lien.  The Town may in the future issue one or more series of additional bonds, notes, 
interim securities or other obligations with a pledge of and lien on the Net Revenues on parity with the lien of the Bonds 
(such Bonds referred to herein as “Parity Obligations”) or with a pledge of and lien on the Net Revenues that is subordinate 
or junior to the lien of the Bonds (such Bonds referred to herein as “Subordinate Obligations”).  The Bonds are parity 
obligations with two outstanding obligations held by the Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority 
(“CWRPDA”).   See “THE BONDS— Security for the Bonds—Additional Covenants and Agreements–Additional Obligations.” 
 
Secondary Market 
 
While the Underwriter expects, insofar as possible, that a secondary market for the Bonds will be maintained, no assurance 
can be given concerning the future existence of such a secondary market, and prospective purchasers of the Bonds should 
therefore be prepared, if necessary, to hold the Bonds to maturity or prior redemption. 
 
Bankruptcy and Foreclosure 
 
The ability and willingness of an owner or operator of property to remit water rates and charges in a timely manner may 
be adversely affected by the filing of a bankruptcy proceeding by the owner.  The ability to collect delinquent water service 
charges using foreclosure and sale for non-payment of taxes may be forestalled or delayed by bankruptcy, reorganization, 
insolvency, or other similar proceedings of the owner of a property.  The federal bankruptcy laws provide for an automatic 
stay of foreclosure and sale proceedings, thereby delaying such proceedings, perhaps for an extended period.  Delays in the 
exercise of remedies could result in the collection of Net Revenues in amounts that may be insufficient to pay debt service on 
the Bonds when due. 
 
  

124

8.



11 
 

Future Changes in Laws 
 
Various State laws and constitutional provisions apply to the imposition and collection of Town rates, fees, and charges, and 
the financing of Enterprise operations.  Other State and federal laws, constitutional provisions, and regulations apply to the 
obligations created by the issuance of the Bonds.  There is no assurance that there will not be any change in, interpretation 
of, or addition to the applicable laws, provisions, and regulations which would have a material effect, directly or indirectly, 
on the affairs of the Town and the imposition, collection, and expenditure of Net Revenues. 
 
Legal Matters Relating to the Enterprise 
 
The Town is also subject to extensive State and federal regulation of its water facilities.  While the Town intends to comply 
with all valid laws and regulations affecting such operations, there can be no assurance  that  actions  of  and  standards  
imposed  by State  and  federal  authorities  will  not  result  in increases in the Town’s future costs of operations, impairment 
of its ability to serve its present or future customers, or both. 

 
Limitations on Remedies Available to Owners of Bonds 
 
No Acceleration.  There is no provision for acceleration of maturity of the principal of the Bonds in the event of a default in 
the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds.   Consequently, remedies available to the owners of the Bonds may 
have to be enforced from year to year. 

 
Bankruptcy, Federal Lien Power and Police Power.  The  enforceability  of  the  rights  and remedies of the owners of the 
Bonds and the obligations incurred by the Town in issuing the Bonds are subject to the   federal   bankruptcy   code   and   
applicable   bankruptcy,   insolvency,   reorganization, moratorium, or similar laws relating to or affecting the enforcement of 
creditors’ rights generally, now or hereafter in effect; usual equity principles which may limit the specific enforcement under 
State law of certain remedies; the exercise by the United States of America of the powers delegated to it by the federal 
Constitution; the power of the federal government to impose liens in certain situations, which could result in a federal lien on 
the Net Revenues which is superior to the lien thereon of the Bonds; and the reasonable and necessary exercise, in certain 
exceptional situations, of the police power inherent in the sovereignty of the State and its governmental bodies in the 
interest of serving a significant and legitimate public purpose.  Bankruptcy proceedings or the exercise of powers by the 
federal or State government, if initiated, could subject the owners of the Bonds to judicial discretion and interpretation of 
their rights in bankruptcy or otherwise, and consequently may entail risks of delay, limitation or modification of their rights. 

 
No Trustee.  There is no bond trustee or similar person or entity to monitor or enforce the provisions of the applicable Bond 
Ordinance on behalf of the owners of the Bonds, and therefore the owners should be prepared to enforce such provisions 
themselves if the need to do so ever arises. 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
  

125

8.



12 
 

THE BONDS  
 
Description 
 
The Bonds are revenue obligations of the Town, acting by and through its Water and Sewer Enterprise.  The maturities and 
interest rates for the Bonds are set forth on the cover page hereof.  Certain matters relating to the Bonds are described in 
detail under the caption “INTRODUCTION” and are not restated under this caption.  These include provisions regarding 
registration and denominations of the Bonds, payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, a description of the 
authority for issuance of the Bonds, and information regarding delivery of the Bonds.  For a complete statement of the 
details of the Bonds, reference is made to the authorizing Bond Ordinance, copies of which are available from the Financial 
Advisor prior to delivery of the Bonds. 

 
Prior Redemption of Bonds 
 
Optional Redemption of Bonds.  The Bonds maturing on and after April 1, 2028* are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity at the option of the Town, in whole or in part in integral multiples of $5,000, and if in part in such order of 
maturities as the Town will determine, and by lot within a maturity, on April 1, 2027* and on any date thereafter, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof (without redemption premium), plus accrued interest to the 
redemption date. 
 
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Bonds.  The purchaser may consolidate consecutive maturities of the Bonds into 
one or more term bonds having a stated maturity on the last maturity so consolidated and such term bonds shall be 
redeemed on the dates and the amounts shown on the cover for the maturities so consolidated. 
 
The following principal payments* will be due on April 1 followed by its corresponding year: 
 

Year Amount Year Amount Year Amount Year Amount Year Amount

2021 $50,000 2026 $55,000 2031 $65,000 2036 $75,000 2041 $90,000

2022 $50,000 2027 $60,000 2032 $65,000 2037 $80,000 2042 $90,000

2023 $50,000 2028 $60,000 2033 $70,000 2038 $80,000 2043 $95,000

2024 $55,000 2029 $60,000 2034 $70,000 2039 $85,000 2044 $80,000

2025 $55,000 2030 $65,000 2035 $75,000 2040 $85,000  
 
Redemption Procedures.  Notice of any redemption of Bonds will be given by the Registrar in the name of the Town by sending 
a copy of such notice by first class, postage prepaid mail, not less than 30 days, nor more than 60 days, prior to the redemption 
date, to the owner of each Bond being redeemed.  Such notice will specify the Bonds, or portions thereof, to be redeemed (if 
redemption will be in part), the redemption date, that on such redemption date the principal in connection with such 
redemption will become due and payable at the office of the Paying Agent, and that from and after such date, interest on the 
Bonds to be redeemed will cease to accrue.   If any Bond will have been duly called for redemption in accordance with the 
Bond Ordinance, then such Bond will become due and payable at such redemption date, and from and after such date interest 
will cease to accrue thereon.  Failure to deliver any redemption notice or any defect in any redemption notice will not affect 
the validity of the proceeding for the redemption of Bonds with respect to which such failure or defect did not occur.   Any 
Bond redeemed prior to its maturity by prior redemption or otherwise will not be reissued and will be cancelled. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Preliminary, Subject to Change  

126

8.



13 
 

Use of Bond Proceeds 
 
The Refunding Plan.   A portion of the Bond proceeds will be used to currently refund the Town’s Water and Sewer 
Revenue Bond, Series 2006, currently held by the Rural Development Division of the United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA).  The Refunded Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity in whole, at a redemption price equal 
to the principal amount of the Refunded Bonds, plus accrued interest to the redemption date (without any premium), on any 
date.  The Refunded Bonds will be paid and cancelled on the date of issuance of the Bonds. 
 
Sources and Uses of Funds 
 
The estimated sources and uses of funds relating to the Bonds are set forth below. 
 

Sources of Funds*

Par Amount of Bonds 1,665,000.00$   

Series 2006 Debt Service Reserve Transfer 100,000.00         

Total Sources of Funds 1,765,000.00$   

Uses of Funds*

Deposit to Refunding Account 1,612,120.00$   

Series 2020A Debt Service Reserve Fund 100,750.00         

Estimated Costs of Issuance** 52,130.00           

Total Uses of Funds 1,765,000.00$    
 
*Preliminary, Subject to Change 
**Includes paying agent fee, various attorneys’ fees, Advising fees, Underwriters fees, and other miscellaneous fees and 
expenses related to the Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A 
 
Security for the Bonds 
 
Special Revenue Obligations.  The Town pledges for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds and grants a 
first lien for such purpose on Net Revenues and on all moneys on deposit in the Reserve Account; provided however, the first 
lien on Net Revenues is not exclusive if Parity Obligations are issued, all as more particularly set forth in the Bond Ordinance. 
 
Subject to express conditions, obligations in addition to the Bonds may be issued and made payable from Net Revenues 
which are subordinate and junior to the lien of the Bonds (the “Subordinate Obligations”) or having a lien on Net Revenues 
which is on a parity with the lien of the Bonds (the “Parity Obligations”), in accordance with the provisions of the Bond 
Ordinance.  No bonds or other obligations of the Town may be issued or entered into having a lien on Net Revenues which is 
superior to the lien of the Bonds. 
 
The Bonds do not constitute a debt or an indebtedness of the Town within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory 
provision or limitation; nor will they be considered or held to be general obligations of the Town. 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

127

8.



14 
 

Net Revenues.  Net Revenues is defined in the Bond Ordinance as, for any period, the Revenues during such period minus 
Operating Expenses during such period. 
 
The Bond Ordinance defines “Revenues” to mean all income and revenues directly or indirectly derived by the Enterprise 
from the operation and use of the Enterprise, or any part thereof, including, without limitation, any rates, fees (including 
plant investment fees), and charges for the services furnished by, or the use of, the Enterprise, and all income attributable to 
any past or future dispositions of property or rights or related contracts, settlements, or judgments held or obtained in 
connection with the Enterprise or its operations, including investment income accruing from moneys held to the credit of the 
Town’s Bond Account and from moneys required to be paid into any fund or account pledged to the payment of the Series 
2020A Bonds or Parity or Subordinate Obligations except to the extent otherwise provided in their respective authorizing 
proceedings; provided however, that there will be excluded from Revenues any moneys borrowed and used for providing 
capital improvements; any moneys and securities, and investment income therefrom, in any escrow or similar account 
pledged to the payment of any refunded bonds or other legally defeased obligations; and any moneys received as grants or 
appropriations the use of which is limited or restricted by the grantor or donor to capital improvements or other purposes 
inconsistent with the inclusion of such moneys as Revenues. 
 
The Bond Ordinance defines “Operating Expenses” to mean, for any particular period, all reasonable and necessary current 
expenses of the Town, paid or accrued, for operating, maintaining, and repairing the Enterprise, but only if such charges are 
made in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.  Such Operating Expenses include, but are not limited to, 
expenses for ordinary repairs, renewals and replacements of the Enterprise, salaries and wages, employees’ health, 
hospitalization, pension and retirement expenses, fees for services, materials and supplies, rents, administrative and general 
expenses, including legal and overhead expenses of the Town directly related to the administration of the Enterprise, 
insurance expenses, legal, engineering, accounting, trustee, paying agent and financial advisory fees and expenses and costs 
of other consulting and technical services, taxes (except as set forth in the following sentence), payments in lieu of taxes and 
other governmental charges, payments to the United States Treasury pursuant to Section 148(f) of the Code or similar 
requirement to pay rebate, fuel costs, installment payments to make up operations and maintenance reserve shortfalls which 
may be required in connection with any other current expenses or obligations required to be paid by the Town by law, all to 
the extent properly allocable to the Enterprise.  Operating Expenses do not include depreciation or obsolescence charges or 
reserves, amortization of intangibles or other bookkeeping entries of a similar nature, interest charges and charges for the 
payment of principal, or amortization, of bonded or other indebtedness of the Town, costs, or charges made therefor, for 
capital additions, replacements, betterments, extensions or improvements to or retirements from the Enterprise which under 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles are properly chargeable to the capital account or the reserve for depreciation, and 
do not include losses from the sale, abandonment, reclassification, revaluation or other disposition of any properties of the 
Enterprise nor such property items, including taxes and fuel, which are capitalized pursuant to the then existing accounting 
practice of the Town. 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
  

128

8.



15 
 

Flow of Funds.  The financial activities of the Water and Sewer Enterprise are accounted for in the Water and Sewer Fund of 
the Town.  Pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, the Town covenants to deposit to the Water and Sewer Fund all Revenue 
immediately upon receipt.  The Town pays from the Water and Sewer Fund all Operating Expenses as they become due and 
payable.  After such payments, the Town is to apply the Net Revenues in the following order of priority: 
 

FIRST, to the credit of the Bond Account, the amounts described below under “Bond Account”, and concurrently to 
the credit of any similar fund or account established for the payment of the principal of, premium if any, and interest 
on Parity Obligations, in the amounts and at the times required by the instruments authorizing or controlling the 
payment of such Parity Obligations; 
 
SECOND, to the replenishment of the Reserve Account, the amounts described below under “Reserve Account” and 
any similar reserve account established to prevent a default in the timely payment of Parity obligations (or for 
repayment pursuant to any insurance policy, surety bond, letter or line of credit, or similar credit facility utilized in 
lieu of such fund or account),as required by the instruments authorizing or controlling the payment of such Parity 
obligations; 
 
THIRD, to the credit of any other fund or account hereafter established for the payment of the principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on Subordinate Obligations, including any sinking fund, reserve fund, or similar fund or 
account established therefor, in the amounts, and at the times, required by the ordinance or other enactment 
authorizing issuance of the Subordinate Obligations; and 
 
FOURTH, to the credit of any other fund or account as may be designated by the Town, to be used for any lawful 
purpose, any moneys remaining in the Water and Sewer Fund after the payments and accumulations set forth in 
First through Third above. 
 

 
Bond Account.  Moneys deposited in the Bond Account are to be used solely for the purpose of paying the principal of and 
interest on the Bonds.  The Bond Ordinance provides that on or before the last day of each month, commencing in the 
month next succeeding the date of issuance of the Bonds, the Town is to deposit to the Bond Account from the Net 
Revenues substantially equal monthly amounts for the payment of the interest and principal to come due on the Bonds on 
the next succeeding interest payment date and principal payment date, respectively.  All deposits to the Bond Account are 
to first be allocated to the payment of interest to come due on the Bonds. 

 
Reserve Account.  Moneys in the Reserve Account are to be used, if necessary, only to prevent a default in the payment of 
the Bonds.  In the event the amounts credited to the Bond Account are insufficient to pay the principal of or interest on 
Bonds when due, the Town has covenanted to transfer from the Reserve Account to the Bond Account an amount which, 
when combined with moneys therein, will be sufficient to make such payments when due.   The Reserve Account is to be 
maintained in the amount of $100,750.00* (the “Required Reserve”).  If at any time the amount of the Reserve Account is 
less than the Required Reserve, the Town is required to replenish the Reserve Account to the Required Reserve as described 
above in “Flow of Funds.” 
 
Maintenance of Rates and Coverage.  The Town covenants in the Bond Ordinance that it will establish and collect rates and 
charges for the use or the sale of the products and services of the Enterprise that, together with other moneys available 
therefor (exclusive of any unappropriated fund balances), are expected to create Revenues for each calendar year sufficient 
to pay:   a) all amounts estimated to be required to pay Operating Expenses during such calendar year; b) a sum equal to 
110% of (i) the debt service due on the Series 2020A Bonds for such calendar year and (ii) the debt service due during such 
calendar year on any Parity obligations, in each case computed as of the beginning of such calendar year; c) a sum equal to 
the debt service on any Other Water and Sewer Obligations and any Subordinate Obligations for such calendar year 
computed as of the beginning of such calendar year; and d) amounts necessary to pay and discharge all charges and liens on 
the Enterprise currently coming due and required to be paid out of the Revenues during such calendar year. 
 
  

129

8.



16 
 

In the event that Revenues collected during a calendar year are not sufficient to meet the requirements of the rate covenant 
described above, the Town will, within 90 days of the end of such calendar year, cause an independent firm of accountants or 
consulting engineers, to prepare a rate study for the purpose of recommending a schedule of rates, fees and charges for the 
use of the Enterprise which in the opinion of the firm conducting the study will be sufficient to provide Revenues to be 
collected in the next succeeding calendar year which will provide compliance with said rate covenant.  The Town will within 
six months of receipt of such study, adopt rates, fees and charges for the use of the Enterprise, based upon the 
recommendations contained in such study, which provide compliance with said rate covenant. 
 
Additional Covenants and Agreements.  The Town irrevocably covenants and agrees in the Bond Ordinance, among other 
things, that: 
 

Efficient Operations.  The Town will continue to operate and manage the Enterprise in an efficient and economical 
manner, and in good repair, working order and operating condition, in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and 
regulations, and keep and maintain separate accounts of the receipts and expenses thereof in such manner that 
the Net Revenues may, at all times, be readily and accurately determined. 

 
Sale or Alienation of Property. The Town will not sell or alienate any of the property constituting any part or all of 
the Enterprise in any manner or to any extent as might adversely affect the security provided for the payment of the 
Bonds, but the Town may sell any portion of such property which will have been replaced by other similar property 
of at least equal value, or which will cease to be necessary for the efficient operations; provided however, that the 
proceeds of any such sale of Enterprise property must be included in Revenues and deposited into the Sewer Fund. 
 
Billing and Enforcement.  The Town will promptly render bills for services furnished by or the use of the Enterprise 
or any part, products or facilities thereof, will use all legal means to assure prompt payment thereof, will take such 
action as may be necessary to make delinquent rates, fees, and charges of the Enterprise a lien upon the real 
property served, and to the extent permitted by law, will discontinue service to any user who becomes delinquent in 
the payment of such charges until the delinquency and all interest, costs, and expenses incident thereto have been 
paid in full. 
 
Audits.  At least once a year in the time and manner provided by law, the Town will cause an audit to be performed 
of the records relating to the revenues and expenditures of the Enterprise.  Such audit may be made part of and 
included within the general audit of the Town and made at the same time as the general audit.   
 
Insurance.  The Town will maintain or cause to be maintained in force insurance policies with responsible insurers or 
self-insurance programs providing against risk of direct physical loss, damage or destruction of the Enterprise, at 
least to the extent that similar insurance is usually carried by utilities constructing, operating and maintaining water 
and sewer system facilities of the nature of the Enterprise, including liability coverage, all to the extent available at 
reasonable cost. Nothing in the Bond Ordinance will be deemed to preclude the Town from asserting against any 
party a defense which may be available to the Town, including, without limitation, a defense of sovereign immunity. 
 
Additional Obligations.  The Bond Ordinance provides that no bonds, notes, interim securities, or other obligations 
will be issued payable from Net Revenues and having a lien thereon which is superior to the lien of the Bonds. 

 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

130

8.



17 
 

Parity Obligations.  The Bond Ordinance provides that the Town will not issue any additional Parity obligations with 
a lien on the Net Revenues and payable from the Net Revenues which are on a parity with the lien of the Bonds, 
unless no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Town is then in substantial compliance with the 
covenants of this Ordinance; and the Town is current in the accumulation of all amounts required to be then 
accumulated in the Bond Account and the Rebate Account as required by the Bond Ordinance and all amounts 
required to be credited to other funds and accounts for any then-outstanding Parity obligations, Subordinate 
Obligations, or other obligations that are not secured by a lien on Revenues but that the debt service on which is 
taken into account when establishing water and sewer rates (“Other Water and Sewer Obligations”), and that either: 

 
(i) The proceeds of the proposed Parity Bonds will be used to refund the Bonds or other Parity Bonds and 

either (a) the debt service payments on such refunding obligations do not exceed the debt service 
payments on the Series 2020A Bonds or Parity obligations being refunded on any interest payment date, 
and the lien of the refunding obligations on all or any portion of the Net Revenues is not raised to a higher 
priority than the lien thereon of any obligations thereby refunded; or (b) the Town has received the consent 
of the owners of any unrefunded Bonds and Parity obligations being refunded; or 

 
(ii)   The Net Revenues for any 12 consecutive months in the 18 months immediately preceding the month in 

which such Parity obligations are proposed to be issued (referred to in this clause as the “test period”) is at 
least equal to (A) 110% of the sum of the combined maximum annual principal and interest requirements 
on (a) the Bonds and any outstanding Parity obligations to the extent outstanding during the test period 
and (b) the proposed Parity obligations during each calendar year following the date of issuance of the 
proposed Parity obligations and (B) 100% of the combined maximum annual principal and interest 
requirements on all then-outstanding Subordinate Obligations and Other Water and Sewer Obligations, plus 
100% of any amounts at the time due and owing with respect to any surety bond or similar repayment 
obligations and other amounts at the time due and owing with respect to a reserve or insurance policy for 
any Parity obligations, provided that in calculating the Net Revenues during the test period, the Town may 
add an amount by which the Town reasonably estimates the Net Revenues would have been increased 
during the test period from any increase in rates, fees, and charges for services furnished by or the use of 
the Enterprise during or since said test period, the effect of which is to estimate a sum which would have 
been realized had the increase been in effect during the entire test period. 

 
Subordinate Obligations.  The Bond Ordinance does not prohibit the Town from issuing Subordinate Obligations 
and pledging or creating a lien on the revenues and moneys pledged for payment of the Bonds that is subordinate to 
the pledge thereof or lien thereon described above; provided that no Event of Default will have occurred and be 
continuing and unless the Net Revenues for any 12 consecutive months in the 18 months immediately preceding the 
month in which such Subordinate Obligations are proposed to be issued were at least equal to 100% of the 
combined maximum annual principal and interest requirements for (a) the Bonds, (b) to the extent outstanding 
during such 12-month period, all  Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and Other Water and Sewer 
Obligations, and (c) the Subordinate Obligations proposed to be issued; plus 100% of any costs or accounts, 
respectively, at the time due and owing with respect to any surety bond or similar repayment obligations and with 
respect to a reserve or insurance policy for any Parity Obligations or Subordinate Obligations. 

 
Events of Default.  The Bond Ordinance provides that each of the following events constitutes an Event of Default: 
 

Nonpayment of Principal or Interest.  The failure to make any payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest 
on the Bonds or any Parity Obligations when due. 
 
Material Covenant Breach.  The failure to timely perform any representations, covenants, conditions, agreements 
and other provisions contained in the Bonds or the Bond Ordinance and continuation of such breach or failure for a 
period of 30 days (or longer if a corrective action has commenced but such default cannot be cured within that 30 
day period) after written notice thereof is given to the Town by the owners of at least 25% in principal amount of the 
outstanding Bonds. 
 
Bankruptcy.   The commencement by the Town of voluntary proceedings under any applicable federal or State 
bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law. 
 

  131

8.



18 
 

Remedies.  Upon the happening and continuation of any Event of Default, as provided in the Bond Ordinance, then the 
owners of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Series 2020A Bonds then outstanding, including without 
limitation, a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed against the Town to protect and enforce the rights of any owner of 
Series 2020A Bonds under the Bond Ordinance by mandamus or by other suit, action or special proceedings in equity or at 
law, in any court of competent jurisdiction, either for the specific performance of any covenant or agreement contained 
herein, or for the appointment of a receiver of the Enterprise (consent to such an appointment being hereby granted), or for 
any proper legal or equitable remedy as such owners, trustee or trustees may deem most effectual to protect and enforce 
such rights, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing which may be unlawful or in violation of any right of any owner of any Series 
2020A Bond, or to require the Town to act as if it were the trustee of an express trust, or any combination of such remedies, 
or as otherwise may be authorized by any applicable statute or other provision of law; provided, however, that there will be 
no right to acceleration of payment as a remedy for any Event of Default.  All such proceedings at law or in equity will be 
instituted, had and maintained for the ratable benefit of all owners of the Series 2020A Bonds. 
 
The failure of any owner of any Outstanding Series 2020A Bond to proceed in any manner herein provided will not relieve the 
Town or any of its officers, agents or employees of any obligation to perform or carry out any duty, obligation or other 
commitment in the Bond Ordinance.  Each right or privilege of any owner of any Series 2020A Bond (or trustee therefor) is in 
addition and cumulative to any other right or privilege, and the exercise of any right or privilege by or on behalf of any owner 
of any Series 2020A Bond will not be deemed a waiver of any other right or privilege of such owner.  Upon the happening of 
any Event of Default as provided in the Bond Ordinance, the Town will do and perform all proper acts on behalf of and for the 
owners of the outstanding Series 2020A Bonds to protect and preserve the security created for the payment of the Series 
2020A Bonds and to insure the payment of the Series 2020A Bonds promptly as the same become due. If any remedial action 
is discontinued, the Town and the owners of the Series 2020A Bonds will be restored to their positions prior to taking such 
action. 
 
To the extent that additional remedies not provided for in the Bond Ordinance (including, without limitation, any acceleration 
remedy) are provided for in the future with respect to Parity Obligations, the proceedings under which such Parity 
Obligations are issued will provide that such remedies must be exercised for the equal and ratable benefit of the Series 2020A 
Bonds as well as such Parity Obligations. 
 
Amendments to Bond Ordinance.  The Bond Ordinance provides that the Town may amend or modify any provision of the 
Bond Ordinance without the consent of or notice to the owners, as follows: 
 

i. To grant to or confer upon the owners any additional rights, remedies, powers, authority or security which may 
lawfully be granted or conferred; 

ii. To cure any formal defect, omission or ambiguity in the Bond Ordinance; 
iii. To add to the covenants and agreements of the Town set forth in the Bond Ordinance; 
iv. To subject to the Bond Ordinance additional revenues, properties or collateral; or 
v. To maintain the then current rating or to obtain any higher rating of the Series 2020A Bonds by one or more 

national or regional rating agencies. 
 
The Town may also amend or modify any provision of the Bond Ordinance without any consent of or notice to the owners 
and to effect any other changes in the Bond Ordinance which, in the opinion of an attorney or firm of attorneys whose 
experience in matters relating to the issuance of obligations of states and their political subdivisions is nationally recognized, 
do not materially and prejudicially affect the rights of the owner of any Series 2020A Bond. 
 

 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

132

8.



19 
 

In addition, the Town may otherwise amend or modify any provision of the Bond Ordinance with the written consent of the 
owners of not less than 75% of the principal amount of the Series 2020A Bonds then Outstanding; provided, however, that 
the written consent of the owners of 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2020A Bonds then Outstanding and 
materially adversely affected thereby is required: 
 

i. To create a lien upon the Net Revenues ranking prior to the lien created by the Bond Ordinance; 
ii. To reduce the principal amount of the Series 2020A Bonds required for consent to any amendment or 

modification of the Bond Ordinance; or 
iii. To establish priorities between Series 2020A Bonds; 

 
and further provided, that the maturity of any Series 2020A Bond may be extended, or the principal amount or interest rate 
of any Series 2020A Bond may be reduced, if and only if the written consent of the owners of all Series 2020A Bonds 
materially adversely affected thereby is obtained. 
 
Bond Ordinance Irrepealable.   The Bond Ordinance provides that after any of the Bonds are issued, the Bond Ordinance will 
be, and remain, irrepealable, but amendable, until the Bonds and the interest accruing thereon will have been fully paid, 
satisfied, and discharged. 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
  

133

8.



20 
 

Debt Service Coverage 
 
The following table sets forth the coverage factor which would have been provided by the Net Revenues for the years 2016 
through 2019.  The table utilizes the Maximum Annual Debt Service coverage for the Bonds ($100,750.00). 
 

2019(1) 2018 2017 2016

Projected Annual Debt Service(2)

Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A (3) 100,750$         100,750$         100,750$         100,750$         

CO Water Resources and Power Development Authority Loan 2014 177,123            177,123            177,123            177,123            

CO Water Resources and Power Development Authority Loan 2008 23,343              23,343              23,343              23,343              

  Total Projected Annual Debt Service 301,216$         301,216$         301,216$         301,216$         

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund Revenue

Total Operating Revenue 1,664,688$      1,584,441$      1,642,181$      1,420,289$      

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund Expenses (4) 1,825,912$      1,164,994$      1,280,427        1,287,324        

Less:  Depreciation -                    400,041            351,000            355,339            

Less:  Debt Service and Capital Outlays (5)
629,952            -                    -                    -                    

  Total Water and Sewer Fund Expenses 1,195,960$      764,953$         929,427$         931,985$         

Net Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund Revenue 468,728$         819,488$         712,754$         488,304$         

Proforma Revenue Cushion (Deficit) 167,512$         518,272$         411,538$         187,088$         

Proforma Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.56                  2.72                  2.37                  1.62                  

(1) 2019 Financials are UNAUDITED, as the Town's audit is not yet complete.  Source:  Paonia's Finance Officer:  P&L, dated February 3, 2020
(2) The value used for Annual Debt Service is the largest annual payment from the Bonds' scales
(3) Denotes this issue and is preliminary, subject to change
(4) Expenses were adjusted (decreased) for 2018 by $619,508.43 due to a one-time expense to replace the Enterprise's 1 MG tank liner due to its failure.
(5) Debt Service payments and Capital Outlays are included in Operating Expenses in the Town's year-end 2019 Profit and Loss Statement, but not in the 2016 - 2018 audits

Debt Service Coverage Ratio Proforma - Series 2020A Bonds

Based on the Town's Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund (2016 - 2019)

 
 

 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
 

134

8.



21 
 

THE ENTERPRISE 
 
Establishment of Enterprises 
 
Pursuant to an authorizing ordinance duly adopted by the Town, the Water and Sewer Enterprise of the Town has all of the 
authority, powers, rights, obligations, and duties as may be provided or permitted by Water Activity Law, and as may be 
further prescribed by ordinance or resolution of the Town.   
 
General 
 
The Town’s Water and Sewer Enterprise was created in 1998 through the acquisition and development of certain water and 
sanitary sewer properties and facilities for the treatment, transmission, distribution, storage and provision of water and for 
the collection, treatment, transmission and disposition of sewage, which are combined, operated and maintained as a single 
public utility and income-producing project. 
 
With respect to the water, sewer and trash departments, generally, the staff are responsible for maintenance and repair of 
the potable distribution, sanitary and trash collection systems.  Staff are responsible for delivering potable drinking water to 
Town residents and businesses while adhering to local, state and federal regulations.   Staff conduct monthly water meter 
reads for utility billing, as well as water shut-offs for non-payment.  Staff also inspect, diagnose, repair and/or replace 
defective water meters/meter pits.  The Enterprise is maintained by a State of Colorado certified Water System Operator and 
Certified Water Professional (CWP).   
 
Service Area 
 
The Town currently provides water and sewer services to only customers located inside and on the outside edges of the 
boundaries of the Town (the “Service Area”), which is an area of approximately 0.86 square miles.   
 
Water and Sewer System Customers 
 
As of the date of this Official Statement, the Enterprise serves 1,115 water customers, of which 923 are residential, 131 are 
commercial and 61 are standby.  The Enterprise serves 874 sewer customers, of which 709 are residential, 125 are 
commercial and 40 are stand-by.  The following tables provide historical views of the Town’s Water and Sewer System 
customers. 
 

Water System Customers 
 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Residential In Town 717          710          704          701          710          710          

Residential Out of Town 196          200          199          202          202          202          

Commercial In Town 101          116          120          121          121          121          

Commercial Out of Town 7              9              9              9              10            10            

No Bill 5              7              7              9              11            11            

Standby 62            59            59            62            61            61            

  Total Water System Customers 1,088      1,101      1,098      1,104      1,115      1,115       
 

Sewer System Customers 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Residential In Town 682          682          671          675          679          681          

Residential Out of Town 27            27            27            26            25            30            

Commercial In Town 122          122          123          117          114          104          

Commercial Out of Town 3              3              3              2              1              3              

Standby 40            40            39            34            -           -           

  Total Sewer System Customers 874          874          863          854          819          818           
 
Source:  Paonia Finance Officer  135

8.



22 
 

The Town has no major contracts, which if lost, would materially affect the Net Revenues used to pay the principal and 
interest on the Bonds.   
 
The table below details the Top 10 customers of the Enterprise and the associated Water and Sewer revenues for 2019. 
 

Top 10 Customers 

Customer Name Water Revenue Sewer Revenue Total Revenue

Hidden Valley HOA 31,982$           37,365$             69,347$         

North Fork Trailer Park 13,629             21,624                35,253            

Paonia Care & Rehab 11,393             2,856                  14,249            

CCM - Creek Vista Paonia, LLC 10,368             7,828                  18,196            

Church of Jesus Christ of LDS 9,889               408                     10,297            

German Mesa Waterline 3,605               68                       3,673              

Don's Market 3,326               663                     3,989              

DC School District #50 2,689               612                     3,301              

Poplar Apartments 2,549               2,856                  5,405              

Elderberry's 2,315               1,034                  3,349              

  Total Top 10 Customers 91,745$           75,314$             167,059$        
 
Water and Sewer Rates 
 
The Town reviews its Enterprise rates at least annually.  The last rate changes occurred in 2019, effective January 1, 2020.  
The following table shows the Town’s 2020 monthly Service fees compared to those effective for 2019.   
 

Monthly Water Rates 

2020 2019 $ Change % Change

Residential In Town $30.00 $27.55 $2.45 8.9%

Residential Out Of Town $40.00 $35.70 $4.30 12.0%

Commercial In Town $30.00 $35.70 ($5.70) (15.97%)

Commercial Out Of Town $55.00 $52.00 $3.00 5.8%

Standby $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $0.00 0.0%

Standby Res In Town $30.00 $27.55 $2.45 8.9%

Standby Res Out Of Town $40.00 $35.70 $4.30 12.0%

Standby Comm In Town $40.00 $35.70 $4.30 12.0%

Standby Comm Out Of Town $55.00 $52.00 $3.00 5.8%  
 

Monthly Sewer Rates* 

2020 2019 $ Change % Change

In Town $38.00 $31.00 $7.00 22.6%

Out of Town $57.00 $50.00 $7.00 14.0%

Standby $30.00 $25.00 $5.00 20.0%  
 
*All Sewer rates apply to both residential and commercial customers. 
 
Source:  Town of Paonia Finance Officer 
 
 
 
 
  

136

8.



23 
 

ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
The Bonds are secured by and payable solely from the Net Revenues.  See “THE BONDS — Security for the Bonds.”  Set forth 
hereafter is a description of key Enterprise monthly revenue information, along with historical and budgeted financial 
statements for the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund. 
 
Monthly Water and Sewer Revenue 
 
The following table shows the Water and Sewer System’s average monthly revenue from 2015 through 2020.  The data for 
2019 is unaudited and 2020 is budgeted. 
 

Average Monthly Water Revenue 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Residential In Town 16,527$    21,357$    21,572$    21,517$    21,737$    23,670$    

Residential Out of Town 16,227       21,245       21,491       21,634       21,634       24,240       

Commercial In Town 3,121         4,606         5,016         5,105         5,052         4,245         

Commercial Out of Town 440            612            624            624            676            715            

Standby 2,971         3,523         3,713         3,768         3,878         4,234         

  Total Water System Revenue 39,286$    51,343$    52,416$    52,648$    52,977$    57,104$     
 

Average Monthly Sewer Revenue 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Residential In Town 19,344$    23,033$    25,058$    24,922$    25,296$    28,272$    

Residential Out of Town 5,588         6,250         6,678         6,307         6,360         6,840         

Commercial In Town 3,874         5,053         5,746         6,052         5,950         6,650         

Commercial Out of Town 154            100            212            689            689            741            

Standby -             -             1,275         1,400         1,550         1,860         

  Total Sewer System Customers 28,960$    34,436$    38,969$    39,370$    39,845$    44,363$     
 

Average Combined Monthly Water and Sewer Revenue 

Water Revenue 39,286$    51,343$    52,416$    52,648$    52,977$    57,104$    

Sewer Revenue 28,960       34,436       38,969       39,370       39,845       44,363       

  Total Water and Sewer Revenue 68,246$    85,779$    91,385$    92,018$    92,822$    101,467$   
 

 
 
Source:  Paonia Finance Officer  137

8.



24 
 

Historical and Budgeted Enterprise Financial Information 
 
The Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for service charges and expenses of the Enterprise, in addition to any capital 
investment fees and capital project expenditures related to improve the infrastructure of the utility.  Set forth below is a 
comparative schedule of the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund for fiscal years ended December 31, 2016 through 2018.  The 
Town’s 2019 audit is not yet complete. 
 

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

(2016 – 2018) 
 

2018 2017 2016

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services 1,584,441$   1,642,181$   1,420,289$   

Total Operating Revenues 1,584,441     1,642,181     1,420,289     

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Expenses 549,028         549,912         522,574         

Contractual Expenses 33,624           84,459           70,903           

Professional Fees 112,461         -                 -                 

Utilities 65,361           61,678           72,013           

Repairs and Maintenance 483,911         74,212           102,882         

Other Supplies and Expense 109,966         122,017         135,453         

Insurance Claims and Expense 30,110           37,149           28,160           

Depreciation 400,041         351,000         355,339         

Total Operating Expenses 1,784,502     1,280,427     1,287,324     

NET INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS (200,061)       361,754         132,965         

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Grants 64,703           -                 -                 

Interest Income 12,776           -                 2                     

Interest Expense (121,417)       (124,264)       (131,663)       

Miscellaneous Revenue -                 6,292             5,225             

Gain on Sale of Asset -                 502,516         -                 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (43,938)          384,544         (126,436)       

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

AND TRANSFERS (243,999)       746,298         6,529             

Capital Contributions - Tap Fees 15,000           -                 -                 

Capital Contributions -                 1,795,351     -                 

Transfers In (Out) (45,810)          (1,518,714)    98,470           

Change in Net Position (274,809)       1,022,935     104,999         

Net Position - Beginning 10,160,689   9,137,754     9,032,755     

Net Position - Ending 9,885,880$   10,160,689$ 9,137,754$   

 
 
 

  

138

8.



25 
 

The following table shows the 2019 year-end revenues and expenses for the Enterprise, which are unaudited. 
 

2019

OPERATING REVENUES

Water Fund 876,927$    

Sewer Fund 570,035       

Trash Fund 217,726       

Total Revenues 1,664,688   

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Water Fund 616,058       

Sewer Fund 392,417       

Trash Fund 187,485       

Total Expenditures 1,195,960   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

Expenditures 468,728       

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)

Water Fund (187,669)     

Sewer Fund (275,823)     
Trash Fund (166,460)     

Total Non-Operating Income (Expense) (629,952)     

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (161,224)     

 
 

Source:  Town of Paonia, Finance Officer 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

139

8.



26 
 

Set forth hereafter is a comparison of the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund Budgets for 2019 and 2020. 
 

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund 
Adopted Budgets 
(2019 and 2020) 

 

TOTAL ENTERPRISE BEGINNING BALANCE  $    681,812  $ 4,889,431 

WATER FUND BALANCE

Beginning Water Fund Reserve 105,507       850,371       

Water Income 901,312       841,000       

Water Expense (901,312)      (841,000)      

Ending Water Fund Reserve 105,507       850,371       

SEWER FUND BALANCE

Beginning Sewer Fund Reserve 459,245       3,805,344    

Sewer Income 563,406       495,400       

Sewer Expense (563,406)      (495,400)      

Ending Sewer Fund Reserve 459,245       3,805,344    

TRASH FUND BALANCE

Beginning Trash Fund Reserve 117,060       233,716       

Sewer Income 243,780       210,700       

Sewer Expense (243,780)      (210,700)      

Ending Trash Fund Reserve 117,060       233,716       

TOTAL ENTERPRISE ENDING BALANCE 681,812$     4,889,431$  

2020 Adopted 2019 Adopted

 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
 
  

140

8.



27 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

The Town of Paonia 
 
The Town, settled in 1880 and incorporated on September 3, 1902, is a municipal corporation and a political subdivision of 
the State.  As a statutory municipality, the Town operates according to State statutes and Town ordinances adopted pursuant 
thereto.  The Town encompasses approximately 0.86 square miles and is in Delta County, which is in the western region of 
the State of Colorado.  It is situated on the North Fork Gunnison River, near the head of the North Fork Valley.  The town is 
approximately 150 miles southwest of Denver by air. 
 
Governing Body 
 
The legislative and corporate authority of the Town is vested in the Board which consists of the Mayor and six trustees.  The 
Mayor and the trustees are elected at large and serve four year overlapping terms of office.  Board meetings, held the second 
Monday of each month, are presided over by the Mayor, who participates as a voting member of the Board only to break ties 
or to ensure a quorum.  Vacancies on the Board must be filled by appointment or election within 60 days or an election will 
be ordered by the Board.  Vacancies are filled until the next regular election.  The present trustees and their terms’ expiration 
years are detailed in the table below.   
 

Board of Trustees 

 
Name Position Expiration Date

Charles Stewart Mayor 2020

Chelsea Bookout Mayor Pro Tem 2022

William Bear Trustee 2020

Karen Budinger Trustee 2020

Dave Knutson Trustee 2022

Mary Bachran Trustee 2022

Michelle Pattison Trustee 2020*

*Appointed through 2020.  Term of position expires in 2022  
 

Town Administrator/Clerk:  Corinne Ferguson, Appointed 
Finance Officer:  Cindy Jones, Appointed 

 
The Board effects its decisions through the passage of ordinances, resolutions, motions and orders.   Passage or adoption of 
all ordinances and all resolutions and orders for the appropriation of money require the concurrence of a majority of all 
members of the Board.  Unless otherwise specifically provided by statute or ordinance, all other actions of the Board require 
a majority vote of the members present if a quorum exists.  A quorum consists of four members of the Board, including the 
Mayor, as necessary. 
 
State statutes and constitutional provisions reserve the right of the Town’s electors to subject ordinances, other than 
emergency ordinances, to a referendum vote or to propose ordinances by way of an initiative procedure. 
 
Administration and Management 
 
Responsibility for day to day Town operations is vested in the Town Administrator, who is appointed by the Board and serves 
for an indefinite term at the pleasure of the Board.  Additional Town officers and employees function through the Town’s 
various departments which are under the direction of the Town Administrator and the Mayor.   

 
Town Attorney.  Bo Nerlin of J. David Reed, P.C., Montrose, CO, is the appointed Town Attorney.  Mr. Nerlin and the firm’s 
duties with the Town include, but are not limited to, providing legal advice, assisting in policy decision making, conducting 
legal research, drafting documents and rendering legal opinions for the Board, Town Administrator, Police Department, 
Planning and Zoning, Building Department and elected officials.   

 
  141

8.



28 
 

Town Services 
 
The Town provides a broad range of municipal services to the community, including police and fire protection; water and 
sanitary sewer; parks and recreation; public improvements; education; healthcare; grocery and general administrative 
services.  Utilities and services not provided by the Town are provided by various public and private entities.  

 
Capital Projects Plan 
 
As of the date of this Official Statement, the Town does not prepare a formal Capital Improvement Plan.  Town officials have 
hired a firm to perform a complete asset inventory review, including a formal Capital Improvement Plan, contingent on 
funding approval to be presented to the Town Board in March 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
  

142

8.



29 
 

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 
 
Population 
 
Population statistics for the Town of Paonia and Delta County are shown in the following table. 
 

Year Town of Paonia Delta County

2018* 1,462 30,953

2010 1,451 30,952

2000 1,497 27,834

1990 1,403 20,980

1980 1,425 21,225

1970 1,161 15,286

Population

 
 
*Estimated by U.S. Census Bureau 
Source:  U.S. Census Bureau 
 
Personal Income 
 
Total Personal and Per Capita Income 
 
The following table outlines the personal and per capita income statistics for Delta County and the State of Colorado for the 
years 2013 – 2017.   
 

Delta State of Delta State of

Year County Colorado County Colorado

2017 1,145,549$ 300,006,049$  37,475$       53,504$       

2016 983,836$    288,103,337$  32,318$       51,999$       

2015 949,893$    282,665,204$  31,685$       51,876$       

2014 930,658$    267,225,467$  31,069$       49,952$       

2013 917,447$    246,648,165$  30,264$       46,824$       

Total Personal Income (000's) Per Capita Income

Personal and Per Capita Income

 
 
Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce 
 
Average Wages 
 
The table below shows the average employment and average wage statistics for Delta County and the State of Colorado for 
Q2 2019. 
 

Total Average Average Average Average

Area Name Employment Hourly Wage Weekly Wage Annual Wage

Delta County 8,568 $16.53 $661 $34,372

Colorado 2,732,783 $28.20 $1,180 $58,656

Average Wages

 
 
 
Source:  Colorado Department of Labor and Employment (Labor Market Information, Quarterly Census of Employment 
 
  

143

8.



30 
 

Employers and Industry Distribution 
 
The Top 10 employers, by number of employees, in Delta County are as follows: 
 

# of

Employer Employees

Delta County Memorial Hospital 500 - 999

Walmart Supercenter 250 - 499

Delta City Office 100 - 249

Adult Home Care Services 100 - 249

Horizons Health Care & Rehab 100 - 249

Delta Correctional Center 100 - 249

Weatherport Shelter Systems 100 - 249

Cedaredge High School 50 - 99

U.S. Forestry Department 50 - 99

Paonia Care & Rehabilitation 50 - 99  
 
Source:  Colorado Department of Labor and Employment 
 
The table below shows the distribution of the Top 10 industries in Delta County for the 2nd Quarter of 2019 (summarized and 
not seasonally adjusted):   
 

Number of Number of

Industry Sector Firms Employees

Health Care and Social Assistance 81 1,880

Retail Trade 107 1,220

Public Administration 26 775

Accommodation and Food Services 77 763

Manufacturing 59 516

Construction 109 481

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting 62 358

Real Estate, Rental and Leasing 36 231

Finance and Insurance 44 216

Other Services (Ex. Public Administration) 69 215  
 
Source:  Colorado Department of Labor and Employment (Labor Market Information, Quarterly Census of Employment and 
Wages Program) 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
 
  

144

8.



31 
 

Labor Force Statistics 
 
The following table presents annualized average labor force and unemployment rates for Delta County, the State of Colorado 
and the United States for the past six years.  Information set forth in this table has not been seasonally adjusted. 
 

State of

Colorado United States

Unemployment Unemployment Unemployment

Year Labor Force Rate Rate Rate

2019 14,993 2.90% 2.50% 3.60%

2018 14,851 3.90% 3.30% 3.90%

2017 14,294 3.70% 2.70% 4.40%

2016 13,969 4.80% 3.20% 4.90%

2015 13,456 5.70% 3.90% 5.30%

2014 13,601 7.00% 5.00% 6.20%

Montrose County

Labor Force and Unemployment Statistics

 
 
Source:  Colorado Department of Labor and Employment, Office of Labor Market Information 
 
Agriculture 
 
The following table shows Delta County’s agriculture production for the years 2016 – 2018. 
 

Year Commodity Acres Harvested

2018 Hay - Alfalfa 22,700 48,500 tons

2017 Hay - Alfalfa 25,000 76,700 tons

Hay - Alfalfa 24,000 62,000 tons

Production

Crop Production

2016

 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

145

8.



32 
 

Livestock 
 
The area lends itself to raising livestock, in particular cattle.  The Unites States Department of Agriculture reports statistics for 
Delta County as follows for the 2016 – 2019: 

Year Commodity Head

Cattle - Beef Not Specified

Cattle - Milk Not Specified

Cattle & Calves 41,000

Cattle - Beef Not Specified

Cattle - Milk Not Specified

Cattle & Calves 41,000

Cattle - Beef 19,200

Cattle - Milk 1,900

Cattle & Calves 36,000

Cattle - Beef 18,500

Cattle - Milk 1,700

Cattle & Calves 34,000

2018

2017

2016

Livestock Population

2019

 
 
Source:  United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

146

8.



33 
 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 

2019/20 Actual Value (100%): 63,957,392$         

2019/20 Assessed Value: 15,989,348$         

Direct Debt

General Obligation Debt: -$                 

Special Assessment Debt: -$                 
Other G.O. Debt: -$                 

    Total Direct Debt: -$                       

Revenue Bonds (Including this issue)

This Issue (Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A)*: 1,665,000$     

Other Revenue Debt: 2,537,768$     

    Total Revenue Bonds (Including this issue): 4,202,768$           

Other Loans -$                       

Overlapping General Obligation Debt: 421,817$              

Population 2018 Est. Census: 1,462                     

Area: 0.86 Square Miles

Debt Ratios

Total

Debt Per Capita 

(1,462)

% of Actual 

Value

Direct Debt -$                -$                      0.00%

Revenue Debt 4,202,768       2,875                    6.57%

Other Loans -                  -                        0.00%

Overlapping Debt 421,817          289                        0.66%

  Total 4,624,585$    3,163$                  7.23%

 
    

This table is currently a placeholder until data is received from the Delta County Assessor. 
 
*Preliminary, Subject to Change 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
 
  

147

8.



34 
 

INDEBTEDNESS 
 
The following is a discussion of the Town’s authority to incur general obligation indebtedness and other financial obligations 
and the amount of such obligations presently outstanding. 
 
Required Elections 
 
Various State constitutional and statutory provisions require voter approval prior to the incurrence of general obligation 
indebtedness by the Town.  Among such provisions, TABOR (defined above) requires that, except for refinancing bonded debt 
at a lower interest rate or bonds issued by a qualifying enterprise, the Town must have voter approval in advance for the 
creation of any multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect Town debt or other financial obligation whatsoever without adequate 
present cash reserves pledged irrevocably and held for payments in all future fiscal years.   
 
General Obligation Debt 
 
Statutory Debt Limit.  Pursuant to Section 31-15-302 C.R.S., the total outstanding indebtedness of the Town may not exceed 
3% of the statutory “actual” value of taxable property within the Town.  The following table shows the Town’s debt limit 
calculations. 
 

Actual Value (2019/20) 15,989,348$       

Limit Percentage 3.00%

Authorized Debt Limit 479,680$            

Debt Subject to Limit -                       0.00%

Debt Margin 479,680$            100.00%

Debt Limit Computation

 
This table is currently a placeholder until data is received from Delta County Assessor 
 
Outstanding and Authorized but Unissued Debt.  “Debt” or “Indebtedness” as used in this section means, generally, 
obligations backed by the Town’s full faith and credit and secured by the unlimited power of the Town to levy ad valorem 
property taxes for the payment of bonds and the interest thereon.  Debt only refers to principal amounts and not to the 
interest to become due thereon.  Any general obligation indebtedness of the Town is subject to the election requirements 
described herein.   
 
As of the date of this Official Statement, the Town has no outstanding general obligation bonds.  Furthermore, the Town has 
no authorized but unissued general obligation indebtedness.    

 
Revenue and Other Financial Obligations 
 
The Town has the power to issue revenue bonds, subject to the election requirements described above in “INDEBTEDNESS—
Required Elections” or the establishment of enterprises, payable from the revenues derived from the operation of facilities to 
be acquired, constructed or improved with the proceeds of the bonds, or payable in whole or part from available proceeds of 
sales and use taxes. The following tables set forth the outstanding revenue obligations of the Town as of the date of this 
Official Statement. 

148

8.



35 
 

Outstanding Revenue Debt 
 
The following tables outline the Town’s outstanding revenue debt, all of which are secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues 
of the Water and Sewer Enterprise.  The Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority loans dated 
November 5, 2008 and May 29, 2014 are on parity with the Series 2020A Refunding Bonds. 
 

Original Interest Rate Final Maturity Outstanding

Date Issue Amount Range Date Principal

4/7/2020 Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A* 1,665,000$  TBD 4/1/2044 1,665,000$  

5/29/2014 CO Water Resources and Power Development Authority Loan 2014 2,996,494    1.750% 8/1/2035 2,334,277$  

11/5/2008 CO Water Resources and Power Development Authority Loan 20008 448,200        1.750% 5/1/2029 203,491        

Total Revenue Bonds 5,109,694$  4,202,768$   
 
 

Maturity Schedules 

Year Principal Interest Payment % Paid Year Principal Interest Payment % Paid

2020 148,707$          21,525$       170,232$        6.8% 2020 -$                  TBD TBD -            

2021 129,870            17,000          146,870          12.6% 2021 50,000              TBD TBD 3.00%

2022 130,901            15,950          146,851          18.4% 2022 50,000              TBD TBD 6.01%

2023 132,275            14,900          147,175          24.3% 2023 50,000              TBD TBD 9.01%

2024 133,650            13,850          147,500          30.1% 2024 55,000              TBD TBD 12.31%

2025 135,025            12,800          147,825          36.0% 2025 55,000              TBD TBD 15.62%

2026 137,088            11,750          148,838          41.9% 2026 55,000              TBD TBD 18.92%

2027 138,806            10,700          149,506          47.9% 2027 60,000              TBD TBD 22.52%

2028 140,869            9,650            150,519          53.8% 2028 60,000              TBD TBD 26.13%

2029 150,386            8,600            158,986          60.2% 2029 60,000              TBD TBD 29.73%

2030 152,105            7,400            159,505          66.5% 2030 65,000              TBD TBD 33.63%

2031 154,167            6,200            160,367          72.9% 2031 65,000              TBD TBD 37.54%

2032 159,324            5,000            164,324          79.4% 2032 65,000              TBD TBD 41.44%

2033 164,823            3,800            168,623          86.1% 2033 70,000              TBD TBD 45.65%

2034 170,323            2,550            172,873          93.0% 2034 70,000              TBD TBD 49.85%

2035 175,823            1,300            177,123          100.0% 2035 75,000              TBD TBD 54.35%

2036 -                    -                -                   2036 75,000              TBD TBD 58.86%

2037 -                    -                -                   2037 80,000              TBD TBD 63.66%

2038 -                    -                -                   2038 80,000              TBD TBD 68.47%

2039 -                    -                -                   2039 85,000              TBD TBD 73.57%

2040 -                    -                -                   2040 85,000              TBD TBD 78.68%

2041 -                    -                -                   2041 90,000              TBD TBD 84.08%

2042 -                    -                -                   2042 90,000              TBD TBD 89.49%

2043 -                    -                -                   2043 95,000              TBD TBD 95.20%

2044 -                    -                -                   2044 80,000              TBD TBD 100.00%

Totals 2,354,146$      162,975$     2,517,121$     Totals 1,665,000$      

Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A*Combined CWRPD (2008 and 2014) Loans

 
 
 

*Denotes this issue, which is Preliminary and Subject to Change 
 

  

149

8.



36 
 

Overlapping General Obligation Debt 
 
There are seven taxing districts, which overlap the Town, only one of which is currently carrying general obligation debt.  The 
overlapping districts and associated general obligation debt are shown in the table below. 
 

Overlapping Jurisdiction

2019 Assessed 

Value

G.O. Debt 

Outstanding

% of Debt Allocable 

to the Town of 

Paonia

Portion 

Allocable to 

Town of Paonia

Delta County 329,706,845$     -$                     4.85% -$                  

Paonia Cemetary District 50,201,148         -                       31.85% -                    

Delta County School District 329,706,845       8,698,041           4.85% 421,817            

North Fork Water Conservation District 94,239,307         -                       16.97% -                    

-                       0.00% -                    

  Total 8,698,041$         421,817$         

Table is currently a placeholder until data is received from the County Assessor.  
 
Source:  Delta County Assessor 
 
Other Financial Obligations 
 
The Board also has the authority to enter into installment or lease option contracts, subject to annual appropriation, for the 
purchase of property or capital equipment without prior electoral approval as described herein.   The term of any such 
contract may not extend over a period greater than the estimated useful life of the property or equipment.  As of the date of 
this Official Statement, the Town has no Other Financial Obligations outstanding. 

 
 
 

 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

150

8.



37 
 

TOWN FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Accounting Policies 
 
The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds and account groups.  Such funds are segregated for the 
purpose of accounting for the operation of specific activities or attaining certain objectives. 
 
Financial operations are accounted for by the Town’s finance department.   In accordance with State law, an annual audit is 
required to be made of the Town’s financial statements at the end of each fiscal year.  The audited financial statements must 
be filed with the Board within six months after the end of the fiscal year and with the State auditor seven months after the 
end of the fiscal year. 
 
Historical General Fund Operations 
 
Set forth hereafter is a three-year comparative statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the 
Town’s General Fund.  The following information should be read together with the Town’s financial statements and 
accompanying notes appended hereto as APPENDIX A.   Preceding years’ financial statements may be obtained from the 
sources noted in “MISCELLANEOUS—Additional Information.” 
 

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
General Fund 

(2016 through 2018, Ending December 31) 
 

2018 2017 2016

REVENUES

Taxes 503,337$    425,135$    410,521$    

Fees and Fines 23,283         16,923         18,632         

Licenses and Permits 39,280         50,420         22,199         

Intergovernmental 91,295         77,261         96,702         

Interest Income 16,331         -               -               

Miscellaneous 79,433         86,341         86,866         

Total Revenues 752,959       656,080       634,920       

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General Government 213,351       212,285       173,553       

Public Safety 277,875       241,694       232,819       

Public Works 76,913         56,901         56,579         

Culture and Recreation 61,375         71,674         66,030         

Payment of Principal on Capital Lease -               20,106         18,105         

Capital Outlay 7,498           29,345         -               

Total Expenditures 637,012       632,005       547,086       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

Expenditures 115,947       24,075         87,834         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In -               -               -               

Operating Transfers Out -               -               (3,948)          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -               -               (3,948)          

Net Change in Fund Balances 115,947       24,075         83,887         

Fund Balances - Beginning 202,764       178,689       94,900         

Prior Period Adjustment 17,573         -               -               

Fund Balance Restated 220,337       178,689       94,900         

Fund Balances - Ending 336,284$    202,764$    178,787$    

151

8.



38 
 

General Fund Budget Summary 
 
Budget and Appropriation Procedure.  The Town’s budget is prepared on a calendar year basis as required by Article 1 of Title 
29 of the Colorado Revised Statutes. The budget must present a complete financial plan for the Town, setting forth all 
estimated expenditures, revenues, and other financing sources for the ensuing budget year, together with the corresponding 
figures for the previous fiscal year. 
 
On or before October 15 of each year, the Town’s Finance/Accounting Manager must submit a proposed budget to the Board 
for the next fiscal year. Thereupon notice must be published stating, among other things, that the proposed budget is open 
for inspection by the public and that interested electors may file or register any objection to the budget. 
 
Before the beginning of the fiscal year, the Board must enact an appropriation resolution which corresponds with the budget.  
The income of the Town must be allocated in the amounts and according to the funds specified in the budget for the purpose 
of meeting the expenditures authorized by the appropriation resolution.   Town expenditures may not exceed the amounts 
appropriated, except in the case of an emergency or a contingency which was not reasonably foreseeable.  Under such 
circumstances, the Board may authorize the expenditure of funds in excess of the budget by a resolution adopted by a 
majority vote of the Board following proper notice.   If the Town receives revenues which were unanticipated or unassured at 
the time of adoption of the budget, the Board may authorize the expenditure thereof by adopting a supplemental budget and 
appropriation resolution after proper notice and a hearing thereon.  The transfer of budgeted and appropriated moneys 
within a fund or between funds may be accomplished only in accordance with State law. 
 
The Board adopted the Town’s 2020 budget and appropriation resolution pursuant to the above described procedure and 
timely filed such budget. 
 
Set forth hereafter is a summary of the Town’s adopted 2019 and 2020 General Fund budgets.  State law applicable to the 
preparation of the Town’s annual budgets differ in some respects from generally accepted accounting principles applicable to 
the preparation of the Town’s audited financial statements, and therefore the following budget summaries are not directly 
comparable to such financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

152

8.



39 
 

General Fund Budgets 
(2019 and 2020, Adopted) 

 

GENERAL BEGINNING RESERVE  $    291,015  $    367,159 

INCOME

Administration Department 187,293           197,347       

Building Permits 47,900             56,925         

Public Safety Department 378,969           324,400       

Parks Department 159,197           85,006         

Street Department 168,416           133,379       

Street Capital 132,867           64,975         

Bridges 50,300             300,000       

Sidewalks 35,800             35,400         

Total Income 1,160,742    1,197,432    

EXPENSES

Administration Department 187,293           197,347       

Building Department 47,900             56,925         

Public Safety Department 378,969           324,400       

Parks Department 159,197           85,006         

Street Department 168,416           133,379       

Street Capital 132,867           64,975         

Bridges 50,300             300,000       

Sidewalks 35,800             35,400         

Total Expense 1,160,742    1,197,432    

GENERAL ENDING RESERVE 291,015$     367,159$     

2019 Adopted2020 Adopted

 
 
Further information relating to the General Fund as well as certain other funds of the Town may be found in the financial 
statements,  attached hereto as Appendix A. 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

153

8.



40 
 

PROPERTY VALUATIONS 
 
Current Property Valuations 
 
The County Assessors’ office establishes an estimated market value on all properties. The assessed value is then computed in 
the following manner:  on residential property the taxable value is 7.20% of the assessed value and on all other property, the 
taxable value is 29.0% of the assessed value.  The tables below show the market and assessed values of taxable property in 
the Town for assessment year 2019/collection year 2020, along with the historical trend in assessed valuations over the 
previous six years. 
 

Property Type Actual Value Assessment % Assessed Value

Vacant 29.00%

Residential 7.20%

Commercial 29.00%

Industrial 29.00%

Agricultural 29.00%

Natural Resources 29.00%

State Assessed* 29.00%

Totals -$                  -$                    

*State Assessed contains Railroad, Utilities & Private Carlines

Table is currently a placeholder until data is received from County Assessor

Town of Paonia

(Assessment 2019/Collection 2020)

 
 
History of Valuations 
 

Year Actual Value Assessed Value

2018/19

2017/18

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

Table is currently a placeholder until data is received from County Assessor  
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

154

8.



41 
 

Top 10 Taxpayers 
 
The following table shows the Top 10 taxpayers in the Town. 
 

Taxpayer Assessed Value % of Paonia Total

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

  Total Top Ten Taxpayers -$                  0.00%

Table is currently a placeholder until data is received from County Assessor  
 

TAX RATES, LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
 
Tax Levies and Collections 
 
Taxes to be assessed are calculated using the mill levy system.  A mill levy is a unit of value representing dollars per thousand. 
For example: 50 mills mean $50 per $1,000 of the assessed value of your property.  
 
Each taxing district determines what it needs to operate each year through its budget process, which includes public hearings. 
You may attend these public hearings and provide input and comments.  Taxes are collected by the County in two installments 
(generally February and June of the collection year), and the receipts are distributed by the County to the local government 
entities.  
 
The following table shows the taxes levied and collected for tax years 2013 – 2019. 
 

Tax Year

Amount of 

Levy

Amount 

Collected* % Collected

2019/20 0.00%

2018/19 0.00%

2017/18 0.00%

2016/17 0.00%

2015/16 0.00%

2014/15 0.00%

2013/14 0.00%

*Collections are as of ____________________, 2019

Table is currently a placeholder until data is received from County Treasurer

 
 
  

155

8.



42 
 

Mill Levies 
 
The table below outlines the tax rates for the levy years 2014 - 2019 for all taxing entities in the Town. 
 

Tax Authority 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Delta County

General City

School District

Library

Fire Department

Cemetary

Water

  Total -          -          -          -          -          -          

Table is currently a placeholder until data is received from County Assessor

MILLS

 
 
Source:  The source of all property valuations, taxable valuations, tax collections and mill levies is the Delta County Auditor 
 
Retirement and Pension Matters 
 
See Notes 6 and 7 to the Town’s audited financial statements appended hereto for a discussion of the Town’s pension plans. 
 
Insurance Coverage 
 
The Board acts to protect the Town against loss and liability by maintaining certain insurance coverages.  The Town is insured 
as a member of Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (“CIRSA”), a property and liability insurance pool 
established for State municipalities.  CIRSA provides liability coverage, including errors and omissions; property coverage; and 
specific catastrophe coverage, which is renewable annually on January 1st.  The Town believes its present insurance coverage 
to be adequate.  However, there can be no assurance that the Town will continue to maintain this level of coverage. 
 
Deposit and Investment of Town Funds 
 
State statutes set forth requirements for the deposit of Town funds in eligible depositaries and for the collateralization of 
such deposited funds.  See also Note 2 to the Town’s Audited Financial Statements appended hereto. The Town also may 
invest available funds in accordance with applicable State statutes. 
 
Administration’s Discussion of Material Trends 
 
For a general discussion of material trends relating to the Town, please see the Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
included in the Town’s December 31, 2017 Audited Financial Statements attached hereto as APPENDIX A. 
 
  

156

8.



43 
 

Constitutional Amendment Limiting Taxes and Spending 
 
On November 3, 1992, Colorado voters approved an amendment to the Colorado Constitution, which is commonly referred 
to as the Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights, or TABOR, and now constitutes Section 20 of Article X of the Colorado Constitution.  TABOR 
imposes various limits and requirements on the State and all State local governments which do not qualify as “enterprises” 
under TABOR (each of which is referred to in this section as a “governmental unit”).  Any of the following actions, for 
example, now requires voter approval in advance: (a) any increase in a governmental unit’s spending from one year to the 
next in excess of the rate of inflation plus a “growth factor” based on (i) for the State, the percentage change in State 
population, (ii) for a school district, the percentage change in student enrollment, and (iii) for any other local government, the 
net percentage change in actual value of all real property from construction of taxable real property improvements, minus 
destruction of similar improvements, and additions to, minus deletions from, taxable real property; (b) any increase in the 
real property tax revenues of a local governmental unit (not including the State) from one year to the next in excess of 
inflation plus the appropriate “growth factor” referred to in (a) above; (c) any new tax, tax rate increase, mill levy above that 
for the prior year, valuation for assessment ratio increase for a property class, extension of an expiring tax or a tax policy 
change directly causing a net tax revenue gain; and (d) except for refinancing bonded indebtedness at a lower interest rate or 
adding new employees to existing pension plans, creation of any multiple fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial 
obligation whatsoever without adequate present cash reserves pledged irrevocably and held for payments in all future fiscal 
years.  Elections on such matters may only be held on the same day as a State general election, at the governmental unit’s 
regular biennial election or on the first Tuesday in November of odd numbered years and must be conducted in accordance 
with procedures described in TABOR. 
 
Revenue collected, kept or spent in violation of the provisions of TABOR must be refunded, with interest.  TABOR requires a 
governmental unit to create an emergency reserve of 3% of its fiscal year spending in 1995 and subsequent years.  TABOR 
provides that “[w]hen [a governmental unit’s] annual. revenue is less than annual payments on general obligation bonds, 
pensions, and final court judgments, the [voter approval requirement for mill levy and other tax increases referred to in 
clause (c) of the preceding paragraph and the voter approval requirement for spending and real property tax revenue 
increases referred to in clauses (a) and (b) of the preceding paragraph] will be suspended to provide for the deficiency.”  The 
preferred interpretation of TABOR will, by its terms, be the one that reasonably restrains most the growth of government. 
 
Enterprise Exemption.  A governmental entity that qualifies as an “enterprise” is exempt from the provisions of TABOR.  
TABOR defines the term “enterprise” as a government owned business authorized to issue its own revenue bonds and 
receiving under 10% of annual revenue in grants from all Colorado State and local governments combined.  Qualification as 
an enterprise is determined annually.  If an activity that qualified as an enterprise in one year no longer qualifies in a 
subsequent year, the revenue and spending of the activity will be subject to TABOR’s fiscal year spending limits in the 
subsequent year (the limit will be adjusted for the revenue and spending of the Town during the previous year). 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

157

8.



44 
 

LEGAL MATTERS 
 
Sovereign Immunity 
 
The Governmental Immunity Act, Title 24, Article 10, Part 1, C.R.S., as amended (the “Governmental Immunity Act”), provides 
that, with certain specified exceptions, sovereign immunity acts as a bar to any action against a public entity, like the Town, 
for injuries which lie in tort or could lie in tort.  In such instances, the public entity may be liable for injuries arising from an 
act or omission of the public entity, or an act or omission of its public employees, which is not willful and wanton, and which 
occurs during the performance of a public employee’s duties and within the scope of a public employee’s employment.  
There are certain instances in which sovereign immunity is waived, which include when a school district or its employee is 
negligent by failing to protect others from a reasonably foreseeable incident of school violence. 
 
The Governmental Immunity Act provides that sovereign immunity does not apply to injuries occurring as a result of certain 
specified actions or conditions.  In general, public entities will not be held liable for willful and wanton acts or omissions or 
willful and wanton acts or omissions of its public employees which occurred during the performance of their duties and 
within the scope of their employment.  However, if a plaintiff can meet the burden of proof required to show that any one 
of the exceptions specified in the Governmental Immunity Act applies, the public entity may be liable for injuries 
arising from an act or omission of the public entity, or an act or omission of its public employees, which was not willful and 
wanton, and which occur during the performance of their duties and within the scope of their employment.   The current 
maximum amounts that may be recovered under the Governmental Immunity Act, whether from one or more public entities 
and public employees, are as follows: (a) for any injury to one person in any single occurrence, the sum of $387,000; and (b) 
for an injury to two or more persons in any single occurrence, the sum of $1,093,000, except in such instance, no person 
may recover in excess of $387,000.  Suits against both the Town and a public employee do not increase such maximum 
amounts which may be recovered.   The Town may not be held liable either directly or by indemnification for punitive or 
exemplary damages.  In the event that the Town is required to levy an ad valorem property tax to discharge a settlement or 
judgment, such tax may not exceed a total of ten mills per annum for all outstanding settlements or judgments. 
 
The Town may be subject to civil liability and may not be able to claim sovereign immunity for actions founded upon various 
federal laws.  Examples of such civil liability include, but are not limited to, suits filed pursuant to 42 U.S.C.  Section 1983 
alleging the deprivation of federal constitutional or statutory rights of an individual.   In addition, the Town may be enjoined 
from engaging in anti- competitive practices which violate the antitrust laws.  However, the Governmental Immunity Act 
provides that it applies to any action brought against a public entity or a public employee in any Colorado State court having 
jurisdiction over any claim brought pursuant to any federal law, if such action lies in tort or could lie in tort. 

 
Pending and Threatened Litigation 
 
In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the Town Attorney will certify that, as of the date of issuance of the Bonds, to 
the best of his knowledge, there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity before or by any 
court, public board or body pending or threatened against the Town, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding 
would have a material adverse effect upon the Town’s ability to comply with its obligations under the Bond Ordinance. 
 
Legal Representation 
 
Legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds are subject to approval by Dorsey & Whitney LLP, 
Denver, Colorado and Minneapolis, Minnesota, Bond Counsel.  Except as to the information under the caption “TAX 
CONSIDERATIONS,” Bond Counsel has not been requested to, and has not undertaken to, verify the accuracy of the 
information contained in this Official Statement and expresses no opinion with respect thereto.  Certain legal matters will be 
passed upon for the Town by Bo Nerlin of J. David Reed, P.C., Montrose, CO, as Town Attorney. 
 
The legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the professional judgment of the 
attorneys rendering the opinions as to legal issues expressly addressed therein.  By rendering a legal opinion, the opinion 
giver does not become an insurer or guarantor of the result indicated by that expression of professional judgment, or of the 
transaction on which the opinion is rendered, or of the future performance of parties to the transaction.  Nor does the 
rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the transaction 
  

158

8.



45 
 

TAX CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The following is a summary of certain U.S. federal income tax and State of Colorado tax considerations relating to the 
purchase, ownership, and disposition of the Bonds. This summary is based on the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the 
“Code”) and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder, judicial decisions, and published rulings and administrative 
pronouncements of the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”), all as of the date hereof and all of which are subject to change, 
possibly with retroactive effect.  Any such change could adversely affect the matters discussed below, including the tax 
exemption of interest on the Bonds.  The Town has not sought and will not seek any rulings from the IRS regarding the 
matters discussed below, and there can be no assurance the IRS or a court will not take a contrary position regarding these 
matters.  
 
Prospective purchasers of Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to applicable federal, state, and local 
tax rules, and any pending or proposed legislation or regulatory or administrative actions, relating to the Bonds based on 
their own particular circumstances. 
 
This summary is for general information only and is not intended to constitute a complete analysis of all tax considerations 
relating to the purchase, ownership, and disposition of Bonds.  It does not address the U.S. federal estate and gift tax or any 
state, local, or non-U.S. tax consequences except with respect to State of Colorado taxation to the extent expressly specified 
herein.  This summary is limited to consequences to U.S. holders that purchase the Bonds for cash at original issue and hold 
the Bonds as “capital assets” (generally, property held for investment).   
 
This discussion does not address all aspects of U.S. federal income or state taxation that may be relevant to particular holders 
of Bonds in light of their specific circumstances or the tax considerations applicable to holders that may be subject to special 
income tax rules, such as: holders subject to special tax accounting rules under Section 451(b) of the Code; insurance 
companies; brokers, dealers, or traders in stocks, securities, or currencies or notional principal contracts; foreign corporations 
subject to the branch profits tax; holders receiving payments in respect of the Bonds through foreign entities; and S 
corporations, partnerships, or other pass-through entities or investors therein. 
  
For purposes of this discussion, the “issue price” of a maturity of Bonds is the first price at which a substantial amount of 
Bonds of that maturity is sold for cash to persons other than bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting 
in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents, or wholesalers.  
 
Tax-Exempt Interest 
 
In the opinion of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, Bond Counsel, based on existing law and assuming the accuracy of certain 
representations and compliance with certain covenants, (i) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for federal alternative minimum tax purposes, and (ii) the Bonds 
and the income therefrom are exempt from State of Colorado taxation, except inheritance, estate, and transfer taxes. 
 
The Code establishes certain requirements that must be met after the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest on the 
Bonds be excluded from federal gross income.  These requirements include, but are not limited to, provisions regarding the 
use of Bond proceeds and the facilities financed or refinanced with such proceeds and restrictions on the investment of Bond 
proceeds and other amounts.  The Town has made certain representations and has covenanted to comply with certain 
restrictions, conditions, and requirements designed to ensure interest on the Bonds will not be included in federal gross 
income.  Inaccuracy of these representations or noncompliance with these covenants may cause interest on the Bonds to be 
included in federal gross income retroactively to their date of issue.  Bond Counsel has not independently verified the 
accuracy of these representations and will not verify the continuing compliance with these covenants.  No provision has been 
made for redemption of or for an increase in the interest rate on the Bonds in the event that interest on the Bonds is 
included in federal gross income. 
 
  

159

8.



46 
 

Original Issue Discount 
 
Bonds may be issued at a discount from their principal amount (any such Bonds being “Discount Bonds”). The excess of the 
principal amount payable on Bonds of a given maturity over their issue price constitutes “original issue discount” (“OID”).  
OID that accrues to a holder of a Discount Bond is excluded from federal gross income to the same extent that stated interest 
on such Discount Bond would be so excluded.  The amount of OID that accrues on a Discount Bond is added to the holder’s 
federal tax basis. 
 
OID on a Discount Bond generally accrues pursuant to a constant-yield method that reflects semiannual compounding on 
dates that are determined by reference to the maturity date of the Discount Bond. The amount of OID that accrues for any 
particular semiannual accrual period generally is equal to the excess of (1) the product of (a) one-half of the yield on such 
Discount Bonds (adjusted as necessary for an initial short period) and (b) the adjusted issue price of such Discount Bonds, 
over (2) the amount of stated interest actually payable. For this purpose, the adjusted issue price is determined by adding to 
the issue price for such Discount Bonds the OID that is treated as having accrued during all prior accrual periods. If a Discount 
Bond is sold or otherwise disposed of between compounding dates, then the original issue discount that would have accrued 
for that accrual period for federal income tax purposes is allocated ratably to the days in that accrual period. 
 
If a Discount Bond is purchased for a cost that exceeds the sum of the issue price plus accrued interest and accrued OID, the 
amount of OID that is deemed to accrue thereafter to the purchaser is reduced by an amount that reflects amortization of 
such excess over the remaining term of the Discount Bond.  If the excess is greater than the amount of remaining OID, the 
basis reduction rules for amortizable bond premium may result in taxable gain upon sale or other disposition of the Bonds, 
even if the Bonds are sold, redeemed, or retired for an amount equal to or less than their cost. 
  
It is possible under certain state and local income tax laws that original issue discount on a Discount Bond may be taxable in 
the year of accrual and may be deemed to accrue differently than under federal law. 
 
Market Discount 
 
If a Bond is purchased for a cost that is less than the Bond’s issue price (plus accrued original issue discount, if any), the 
purchaser will be treated as having purchased the Bond with market discount (unless a statutory de minimis rule applies).  
Market discount is treated as ordinary income and generally is recognized on the maturity or earlier disposition of the Bond 
(to the extent that the gain realized does not exceed the accrued market discount on the Bond). 
 
Bond Premium 
 
A holder that acquires a Bond for an amount in excess of its principal amount generally must, from time to time, reduce the 
holder’s federal tax basis for the Bond.  Premium generally is amortized for federal income tax purposes on the basis of a 
bondholder’s constant yield to maturity or to certain call dates with semiannual compounding.  Accordingly, holders who 
acquire Bonds at a premium might recognize taxable gain upon sale of the Bonds, even if such Bonds are sold for an amount 
equal to or less than their original cost.  Amortized premium is not deductible for federal income tax purposes.  
 
Related Tax Considerations 
 
Section 86 of the Code requires recipients of certain social security and railroad retirement benefits to take interest on the 
Bonds into account in determining the taxability of such benefits. 
 
Section 265(a) of the Code denies a deduction for interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry the 
Bonds.  In the case of a financial institution, no deduction is allowed under section 265(b) the Code for that portion of the 
holder’s interest expense that is allocable to interest on tax-exempt obligations, such as the Bonds, unless the obligations are 
“qualified tax-exempt obligations.”  Indebtedness may be allocated to the Bonds for this purpose even though not directly 
traceable to the purchase of the Bonds.   
 
The Bonds are “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.   Accordingly, although 
interest expense allocable to the Bonds is not subject to the disallowance under Section 265(b) of the Code, the deduction for 
interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry the Bonds may be subject to reduction under Section 
291 of the Code. 
 160

8.



47 
 

The ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of amounts treated as interest on, the Bonds may affect a holder’s  
federal, state, or local tax liability in some additional circumstances.  The nature and extent of these other tax consequences 
depends upon the particular tax status of the holder and the holder’s other items of income or deduction.  
 
Sale or Other Disposition 
 
A holder will generally recognize gain or loss on the sale, exchange, redemption, retirement, or other disposition of a Bond 
equal to the difference between (i) the amount realized less amounts attributable to any accrued but unpaid stated interest 
and (ii) the holder’s adjusted tax basis in the Bond.  The amount realized includes the cash and the fair market value of any 
property received by the holder in exchange for the Bond.  A holder’s adjusted tax basis in a Bond generally will be equal to 
the amount that the holder paid for the Bond, increased by any accrued original issue discount with respect to the Bond and 
reduced by the amount of any amortized bond premium on the Bond.  Except to the extent attributable to market discount 
(which will be taxable as ordinary income to the extent not previously included in income), any gain or loss will be capital gain 
or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the holder held the Bond for more than one year. Long-term capital gains 
recognized by certain non-corporate persons, including individuals, generally are taxable at a reduced rate. The deductibility 
of capital losses is subject to significant limitations. 
 
Information Reporting and Backup Withholding 
 
Payments of interest on the Bonds (including any allocable bond premium or accrued original issue discount) and proceeds 
from the sale or other disposition of the Bonds are expected to be reported to the IRS as required under applicable Treasury 
Regulations.  Backup withholding will apply to these payments if the holder fails to provide an accurate taxpayer 
identification number and certification that it is not subject to backup withholding (generally on an IRS Form W-9) or 
otherwise fails to comply with the applicable backup withholding requirements. Backup withholding is not an additional tax.  
Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules may be allowed as a refund or a credit against the holder’s U.S. 
federal income tax liability, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS. Certain holders are exempt 
from information reporting.  Potential holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding qualification for an exemption 
and the procedures for obtaining such an exemption. 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

161

8.



48 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Underwriting 
 
The Bonds are being sold by the Town to the Underwriter at an underwriting discount (Underwriter and amount TBD) 
pursuant to a bond purchase agreement entered into between the Underwriter and the Town.  Expenses associated with the 
issuance of the Bonds are being paid by the Town from proceeds of the Bonds.  The right of the Underwriter to receive 
compensation in connection with the Bonds is contingent upon the actual sale and delivery of the Bonds.  The Underwriter 
has initially offered the Bonds to the public at the prices or yields set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement, plus 
accrued interest from the date of the Bonds.  Such prices or yields may subsequently change without any requirement of 
prior notice.  The Underwriter reserves the right to join with dealers and other investment banking firms in offering the 
Bonds to the public. 
 
Registration of Bonds 
 
Registration or qualification of the offer and sale of the Bonds (as distinguished from registration of the ownership of the 
Bonds) is not required under the federal Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Colorado Securities Act, as amended.   
THE TOWN ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR QUALIFICATION OR REGISTRATION OF THE BONDS FOR SALE UNDER THE 
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY JURISDICTION IN WHICH THE BONDS MAY BE SOLD, ASSIGNED, PLEDGED, HYPOTHECATED OR 
OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED. 
 
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 (17 CFR Part 240, §240.15c2-12) 
(“Rule 15c2-12”), the Town has covenanted, for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds, to provide certain financial 
information and other operating data and notices of material events after the Bonds are issued.  The form of the Town’s 
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking is attached as APPENDIX C to this Official Statement. 
 
The Town has not entered into continuing disclosure undertakings in connection with the issuance of bonds in the past. 
 
A failure by the Town to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 will not constitute an Event of Default under the 
authorizing ordinance (although Bond owners will have any available remedy at law or in equity).  Nevertheless, such a failure 
must be reported in accordance with Rule 15c2-12 and must be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities 
dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market.  Consequently, such a failure may 
adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price. 
 
Interest of Certain Persons Named in this Official Statement 
 
Bond Counsel, Underwriting and Advising fees are contingent upon the sale and delivery of the Bonds. 
 
Independent Accountants 
 
The general-purpose financial statements of the Town as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 through 2018, are 
appended to this Official Statement.  The statements for 2018 were audited by Chadwick, Steinkirchner, Davis & Co., P.C. a 
professional corporation of Certified Public Accountants, Grand Junction, Colorado, as stated in their reports appearing 
therein.  The Town’s statements for 2016 and 2017 were audited by RubinBrown, LLP, Denver, Colorado.  The audited 
financial statements and the opinions thereon have been included herein without prior review or approval of the auditor.  
The Town’s 2019 audit is expected to be complete by August 31, 2020. 
 
Additional Information 
 
Copies of statutes, resolutions, ordinances, opinions, contracts, agreements, financial and statistical data, and other related 
reports and documents described in this Official Statement are either publicly available or available upon request and the 
payment of a reasonable copying, mailing, and handling charge from the sources provided under the caption 
“INTRODUCTION” above. 
 
 

162

8.



49 
 

Official Statement Certification 
 
The preparation of this Official Statement and its distribution has been authorized by the Board, acting as the governing body 
of the Town of Paonia’s Water and Sewer Enterprise.  This Official Statement is hereby duly approved by the Board, acting as 
the governing body of the Water and Sewer Enterprise, as of the date on the cover page hereof.  This Official Statement is not 
to be construed as an agreement or contract between the Town, acting by and through its Water and Sewer Enterprise, and 
the purchasers or the holders of any Bond. 
 
 

TOWN OF PAONIA, acting by and through its 
Water and Sewer Enterprise 

 
 
 
        ___________________________________________ 

By /s/ Charles Stewart, Mayor 
 
 
 

163

8.



APPENDIX A – AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Town of Paonia 
Delta County, Colorado 

Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A 
 

164

8.



APPENDIX B – FORM of BOND LEGAL OPINION 
 

Town of Paonia 
Delta County, Colorado 

Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A 
 

165

8.



APPENDIX C – FORM of CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
CERTIFICATE 

 
Town of Paonia 

Delta County, Colorado 
Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A 

 

166

8.



APPENDIX D – BOND ORDINANCE 
 

Town of Paonia 
Delta County, Colorado 

Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A 
 

167

8.



APPENDIX E – BOOK ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 
 

Town of Paonia 
Delta County, Colorado 

Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A 
 

168

8.



Book-Entry Only System 

 
The information contained in the following paragraphs of this subsection “Book-Entry Only System” has been 
extracted from a schedule prepared by Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) entitled “SAMPLE OFFERING DOCUMENT 
LANGUAGE DESCRIBING BOOK-ENTRY ONLY ISSUANCE.” The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s 
book-entry system has been obtained from sources that the Town believes to be reliable, but the Town takes no 
responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 
 

1. The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The 

Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership 

nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-

registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity specified on the cover page in the aggregate 

principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. 

 
2. DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking 

Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal 

Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and 

a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate 

and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 85 countries that DTC’s participants 

(“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct 

Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized 

book entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical 

movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. Bond brokers and 

dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of 

Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government 

Securities Clearing Corporation, MBS Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, 

(NSCC, GSCC, MBSCC, and EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., 

the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC 

system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 

companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct 

Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AA+. 

The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More 

information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

 
3. Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive 

a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond 

(“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial 

Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, 

expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements 

of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the 

transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the 

books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not 

receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-

entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

  

169

8.



4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the 

name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized 

representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such 

other DTC nominee do not affect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual 

Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records will reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose 

accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect 

Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

 
5. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 

Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed 

by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from 

time to time.  

 
6. Redemption notices shall be sent to Cede & Co. If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being 

redeemed, DTC’s practice is determined by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such 

maturity to be redeemed. 

 
7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds unless 

authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC will 

mail an Omnibus Proxy to the Town as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede 

& Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on 

the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

 
8. Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such 

other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct 

Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Town or 

Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments 

by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is 

the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and 

will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC Paying Agent, or the Town, subject to any statutory 

or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, 

distributions, and dividend payment to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an 

authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Town or Paying Agent, disbursement of such 

payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the 

Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

 
9. DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by 

giving reasonable notice to the Town. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities 

depository is not obtained, Bonds certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

 
10. The Town may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a 

successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

 
11. The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry-only system has been obtained from 

sources that the Town believes to be reliable, but the Town takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.  

170

8.



 
NEITHER THE TOWN NOR THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO DIRECT PARTICIPANTS, 
TO INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER WITH RESPECT TO (I) THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS 
MAINTAINED BY DTC, ANY DIRECT PARTICIPANT, OR ANY INDIRECT PARTICIPANT; (II) ANY NOTICE THAT IS 
PERMITTED OR REQUIRED TO BE GIVEN TO THE OWNERS OF THE BONDS UNDER THE RESOLUTION; (III) THE 
SELECTION BY DTC OR BY ANY DIRECT PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY PERSON TO RECEIVE 
PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF A PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS OF A SERIES; (IV) THE PAYMENT BY DTC OR ANY 
DIRECT PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY AMOUNT WITH RESPECT TO THE PRINCIPAL OR 
REDEMPTION PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST DUE WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS; (V) ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR 
OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS THE OWNER OF BONDS; OR (VI) ANY OTHER MATTER. 

 

171

8.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Pickin In The Park – Rob Miller 

Summary: This item typically is part of the consent agenda.  Mr. Miller is modifying the 

standard request for Trustee approval for a large event park use, as well as the administratively 

approved road closure and banner permit fees be waived in exchange for recognition as a 

sponsor.   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

172

9.



173

9.



174

9.



175

9.



176

9.



177

9.



178

9.



179

9.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Western Slope Conservation Center – 2020 Riverpark Project Updates 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

180

10.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Space to Create – Request for Board of Trustees Commit a Town Owned 

Parcel for Housing  

Summary:  

The S2C committee requests the Board of Trustees commit a parcel of Town property for the 

housing component of the Space to Create project. No permanent designation nor financial 

commitment is requested at this time. 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

181

11.



 

February 6, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Discussion Regarding Dogs at Large 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

182

12.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Discussion Regarding the Creation of a Municipal Water Committee 

Summary:   

Board approved request to discuss the creation of a water board/committee. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

183

13.



 

February 6, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Discussion of Proposed Language Amending Municipal Code Chapter 18 

– Temporary Signs – As provided by Trustee Pattison 

Summary: The draft is submitted to the Board for review by Trustee Pattison.  Should the 

Board want to move forward the ordinance will be formatted and brought back for a second 

read and approval. 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

184

14.



_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-xx  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, AMENDING 

CHAPTER 18 TO THE TOWN OF PAONIA MUNICIPAL CODE  

 

RECITALS:  

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia (the “Town”), in the County of Delta and State of Colorado, is a municipal 

corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article I II, Section 1 - 3 -70 of the Town Municipal Code (“Code”) the Board of Trustees has 

the power to enact ordinances amending the Code; and  

 

WHEREAS, Article 15, Section 103 of Title 31 of the Colorado Revised Statutes permits municipalities to make a 

publish ordinances not inconsistent with Colorado state law for carrying into effect or discharging the powers and 

duties conferred by Title 31 which are necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote 

the prosperity, and improve the morals, order, comfort, and convenience of such municipality and the inhabitants 

thereof not inconsistent with the laws of Colorado; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees determines that it is in the best interest of the community and the public health, 

safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town to amend the Town Code to add this provision to the Municipal Code.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, 

COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1. Legislative Findings. The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Board of Trustees in 

support of the enactment of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 2. Town Code Sec. 18-6-40 shall be amended as follows: 

 

The following signs shall be exempt from Section 18-6-70 - Permits Required: 

 

1) Official government notices posted by government officers in the performance of their duties to control traffic 

or to provide warning. Identification signs or bulletin boards accessory to government buildings are not 

exempt from the provisions of this Article. 

2) Temporary decorations or displays which are clearly incidental to and are customarily associated with any 

national, local or religious holiday or celebration. 

3) Temporary or permanent signs erected by a public utility company or construction company to warn of 

dangerous or hazardous conditions. 

4) Political signs for temporary use during an election. 

5) Temporary yard sale signs. 

 

Section 3. Severability. If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application thereof 

to any person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this 

Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and, to this end, the provisions of 

this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  

 

Section 4. Repeal of Prior Ordinances. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.  

 

185

14.



_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Section 5. Ordinance Effect. Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in 

this Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 

of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided, however, that the repeal of any ordinance or parts of ordinances of 

the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded 

and further provided that this repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any 

act done or committed in violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect thirty days after publication. 

186

14.



 

February 6, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Discussion of Proposed Language Amending Municipal Code Chapter 2 – 

Elections – As provided by Trustee Pattison 

Summary: The draft is submitted to the Board for review by Trustee Pattison.  Should the 

Board want to move forward the ordinance will be formatted and brought back for a second 

read and approval. 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

187

15.



_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-xx  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, AMENDING 

CHAPTER 2 OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA MUNICIPAL CODE  

 

RECITALS:  

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia (the “Town”), in the County of Delta and State of Colorado, is a municipal 

corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article I II, Section 1 - 3 -70 of the Town Municipal Code (“Code”) the Board of Trustees has 

the power to enact ordinances amending the Code; and  

 

WHEREAS, Article 15, Section 103 of Title 31 of the Colorado Revised Statutes permits municipalities to make a 

publish ordinances not inconsistent with Colorado state law for carrying into effect or discharging the powers and 

duties conferred by Title 31 which are necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote 

the prosperity, and improve the morals, order, comfort, and convenience of such municipality and the inhabitants 

thereof not inconsistent with the laws of Colorado; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees determines that it is in the best interest of the community and the public health, 

safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town to amend the Town Code to add this provision to the Municipal Code.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, 

COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:  

Section 1. Legislative Findings. The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Board of Trustees in 

support of the enactment of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 2. Town Code Sec. 2-1-40 shall be amended to town code as follows: 

 

2-1-40. - Ordinance effective date following election 

Any ordinance adopted by election shall be effective immediately on the later of: 

(a) the expiration of the required protest period following certification of election results, or 

(b) the effective date as written in the ordinance 

 

Section 3. Severability. If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application thereof 

to any person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this 

Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and, to this end, the provisions of 

this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  

 

Section 4. Repeal of Prior Ordinances. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.  

 

Section 5. Ordinance Effect. Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in 

this Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 

of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided, however, that the repeal of any ordinance or parts of ordinances of 

the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded 

and further provided that this repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any 

act done or committed in violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect thirty days after publication. 

188

15.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

189

16.



 

February 7, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety – Priority List 

Summary:  

Trustee review and prioritization of the GAPS committee list.  

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

190

17.



Governmental Affairs & Public Safety (GAPS) Priority List 

As provided by GAPS Committee in no order 

 Building inspection income versus expenses 

 Short-term rentals and affordable housing 

 Review of our code of conduct and rules of procedure for meetings 

 Regulation of food trucks 

 

Order of Importance As received by Trustees 

Trustee 1 of 7: 

1. Short term rentals 

2. Food trucks 

3. rules of conduct 

4. building inspector income vs expenses 

 

Trustee 2 of 7: 

1. Building Code Update Completion 

2. Public Safety/ PD included at GAPS meetings 

3. Food Trucks 

4. Short term rentals 

 

Trustee 3 of 7: 

 

Trustee 4 of 7: 

 

Trustee 5 of 7: 

 

Trustee 6 of 7: 

 

Trustee 7 of 7: 

 

191

17.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Space 2 Create 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

192

18.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

193

19.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

West Fourth Street Town Lot 

Summary:  

  
 To discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other property 

interest under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a). 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

194

20.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Clark Alley Sewer Line Project 

Summary:  

  
 For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to 

negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators, under C.R.S. 
Section 24-6-402(4)(e). 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: 

Trustee Diehl: Trustee Knutson: Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

195

21.



 

February 5, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Knutson: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

196

22.


	Top
	. ASF - S2C Work Session
	ASF - S2C Work Session

	. ASF 1 - Roll Call
	ASF 1 - Roll Call

	. ASF 2 - Agenda Approval
	ASF 2 - Agenda Approval

	. ASF 3 - Announcements
	ASF 3 - Announcements

	. ASF - Trustee Appointment
	ASF - Trustee Appointment

	1. ASF 4 - Visitors & Guests
	ASF 4 - Visitors &amp; Guests

	2. ASF - Consent Agenda
	ASF - Consent Agenda
	1118 - Special Meeting - Modification
	011420 Draft Min

	3. ASF 6 - Mayor's Report
	ASF 6 - Mayor&#39;s Report

	4. ASF - Committee Appointments
	ASF - Committee Appointments

	5. ASF 7 - Staff Reports
	ASF 7 - Staff Reports
	BLOTTER Jan

	6. ASF 8 -Treasurer's Report
	ASF 8 -Treasurer&#39;s Report

	7. ASF 9 - Disbursements
	ASF 9 - Disbursements
	Disbursements

	8. ASF - USDA - Unfinished Business
	ASF - USDA - Unfinished Business
	UPDATED - 20200208 BJN  Memo
	AMKO E-mail
	Paonia CO 2020A - Ordinance - Water and Sewer Rev Rfdg Bds-v3
	AMKO - Comparison - Paonia CO 2020A - Ordinance - Water and Sewer Rev Rfdg Bds - v3 to v2
	AMKO POS - Paonia CO - 2020A DRAFT 200210

	9. ASF - PITP
	ASF - PITP
	PITP Road Closure
	PITP Park EventApp

	10. ASF - WSCC Riverpark
	ASF - WSCC Riverpark

	11. ASF - S2C
	ASF - S2C

	12. ASF - Dogs at Large
	ASF - Dogs at Large

	13. ASF - Water Committee Creation
	ASF - Water Committee Creation

	14. ASF - Draft Sign Verbiage
	ASF - Draft Sign Ordinance
	Ordinance Draft - Signs

	15. ASF - Draft Election Ordinance
	ASF - Draft Election Ordinance
	Ordinance Draft - Election

	16. ASF 10 -Committee Reports
	ASF 10 -Committee Reports

	17. ASF - GAPS
	ASF - GAPS
	GAPS Priority List

	18. ASF 11 -S2C
	ASF 11 -S2C

	19. ASF 12 -Tree Board
	ASF 12 -Tree Board

	20. ASF - ES West Fourth Street
	ASF - ES West Fourth Street

	21. ASF - ES Clark Sewer Line
	ASF - ES Clark Sewer Line

	22. ASF 13 -Adjournment
	ASF 13 -Adjournment

	Bottom

